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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

Year Ended
31 December 2005

Year Ended
31 December 2004

£’ Million

£’ Million

European Embedded Value Basis
Life business
Unit trusts
Other
IT systems development

92.3
30.6
(4.1)
(4.3)

57.3
30.9
(6.8)
(5.6)

Operating profit before tax

114.5

75.8

Total profit before tax

213.4

130.9

Shareholders’ funds

828.8

663.4

International Financial Reporting Standards
Life business – shareholder profit
Unit trusts
Profit on sale of LAHC
Other
IT systems development

29.3
12.8
9.5
(4.1)
(4.3)

7.0
11.8
28.0
(6.8)
(5.6)

Profit before shareholder tax *

43.2

34.4

Profit before tax **

127.1

56.8

Shareholders’ funds

274.5

222.2

£221.0 million

£177.3 million

1,148

1,131

Funds under management

£12.3 billion

£9.5 billion

Wealth management – gross fees generated

£28.3 million

£21.2 million

* figures exclude policyholders’ tax gross up
** figures include policyholders’ tax gross up

New Business
New business (RP & 1/10th SP)
St. James’s Place Partnership – number of partners
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CHAIRMAN’S
S TAT E M E N T
I AM DELIGHTED TO REPORT SUBSTANTIAL GROWTH IN NEW BUSINESS AND A VERY STRONG
FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE DURING

2005, BOTH

EXCEEDING OUR STRETCHING OBJECTIVES

FOR THE YEAR . NEW BUSINESS FROM LONG - TERM SAVINGS AND INVESTMENTS

( MEASURED

ON THE INDUSTRY BASIS OF ANNUAL PREMIUMS PLUS ONE TENTH OF
SINGLE PREMIUMS ) WAS UP

Financial Performance
The financial statements have been restated to present the
result and prior year comparatives in accordance with
International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRS”).The
Supplementary Financial Information, previously called
Achieved Profit, has been restated to follow the new
European Embedded Value Principles (“EEV”).

25%

OVER THE YEAR .

Dividend
The Board is recommending a final dividend of 1.85 pence
per share, giving a total dividend of 3.15 pence per share for
the year, representing a 10.5% increase over the prior year.
Subject to the approval of shareholders at the Annual
General Meeting, the final dividend will be paid on
17 May 2006 to those shareholders on the register as at
10 March 2006.

The underlying pre-tax operating profits on the IFRS basis
were £33.7 million (2004: £6.4 million) and after taking
into account the disposal of LAHC, total pre-tax profits
were £43.2 million (2004: £34.4 million).

Partners and Staff
2005 has been an excellent year of growth in both new
business and profits which could not have been achieved
without the enthusiasm, commitment and dedication
of members of the Partnership and our staff. On behalf
of the Directors and shareholders I would like to thank
all members of the St. James’s Place community for
their contribution to our results last year.

On the EEV basis, which the Board believes provides a
more meaningful measure of the Group’s performance,
the pre-tax operating profit was £114.5 million (2004:
£75.8 million) an increase of 51%. Total pre-tax profit,
which includes the investment variance, was up from
£130.9 million last year to £213.4 million in 2005. The
Financial Commentary on pages 10 to 15 provides further
details on the results for the year.

Foundation
The St. James’s Place Foundation, the Group’s charitable
trust had another record year for fund raising in 2005.
Funds raised including the Company matching were
£1.7 million.
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
continued

As well as the regular funds raised by the 82% of our
community giving on a monthly basis by gift aid, there
have been many individual and team challenges with a
number of events each raising over £100,000. Further
details on the fund raising events and charities supported
are provided on pages 19 and 20.

These changes will enable us to comply with the
Combined Code provision that at least half the Board
comprises independent non-executive Directors.
Following the announcement that James Crosby will
resign as Chief Executive of HBOS in July 2006 we
announced on 17 February 2006 that James will step
down from the SJPC Board on 31 May 2006 to be
replaced with Andy Hornby, James’s designated successor
as Chief Executive of HBOS. At the same time John
Edwards will step down as HBOS’s other representative
on our Board and will be replaced by Jo Dawson, the
newly appointed HBOS director responsible for Insurance
and Investment.

On behalf of the Director team I would like to thank all
members of St. James’s Place and those suppliers who
have generously supported the Foundation by way of
sponsorship and donations.
Board Changes
As detailed in my statement included in our interim
results, 2005 has seen some significant Board changes.

Change of Company Name
As we have now disposed of all our non core investments,
the Board feels it is appropriate to remove the word
‘Capital’ from our company name. Accordingly, a
resolution changing the name of the Company to
St. James’s Place plc will be put to shareholders at the
Annual General Meeting on 9 May 2006.

After many years service, Lord Weir,Anthony Loehnis and
Charles Bailey all retired from the Board during the year.
In addition Phil Hodkinson and Grenville Turner stepped
down as HBOS representatives and were replaced by
John Edwards. I would like to thank each of them on
behalf of the Board for their excellent contribution and
support over the years.
Simon Gulliford, Mike Power and Roger Walsom were
appointed to the Board as independent non-executive
Directors during 2005 and all three are already making a
valuable contribution to the Group.

Mike Wilson
27 February 2006
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CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S
S TAT E M E N T
I SAID IN OUR

2004

REPORT THAT WE FORESAW VERY GOOD PROSPECTS FOR CONTINUED

GROWTH OVER THE LONGER TERM WHICH WE BELIEVED WOULD DELIVER SUPERIOR
SHAREHOLDER RETURNS . I AM PLEASED TO REPORT THAT WITH VERY POSITIVE MARKET

2005 WE WERE ABLE TO DELIVER OUTSTANDING GROWTH AND,
CONSEQUENCE , EXCELLENT RETURNS FOR OUR SHAREHOLDERS .

CONDITIONS IN
AS A

We remain excited by the growth opportunities available
to us in our chosen wealth management market sector and
believe that our business is well positioned to further
capitalise on these opportunities as one of the UK’s
pre-eminent and trusted face-to-face advisers.

a place where the advice they give to their clients benefits
from the St. James’s Place advice guarantee.
The productivity of the Partnership increased by an
impressive 23% over the year and is now around the same
level as its previous peak in 2001, ignoring any inflationary
increase. We believe there continues to be scope for
future increases.

The St. James’s Place Partnership
Our proven adviser-based approach to wealth
management is built around the experienced members of
the St. James’s Place Partnership.

In the last quarter we were delighted that the Partnership was
voted the Best Financial Adviser in the Guardian / Observer
Consumer Finance Awards, a true reflection of their quality.

Our number one goal is to ensure that St. James’s Place
remains a place where our Partners’ businesses can
continue to grow. In doing so our retention rate of existing
Partners will continue to be excellent and we will ensure
that we remain attractive to new high quality advisers.

New Business
New business is measured and presented as annual
premium equivalent.This is the standard industry measure
and is the sum of annual premiums plus one-tenth of
single premiums.

Membership of the St. James’s Place Partnership at
31 December 2005 was 1,148, up 1.5% over the year in line
with the revised expectations we set at the 2005 half year.
The slow growth in Partnership numbers has been our
one area of disappointment. We have put in place
measures to improve our recruitment result, including the
appointment of a dedicated recruitment Director and
some of our most senior and dedicated managers are now
solely focused on Partnership recruitment.
We believe that we remain one of the best homes for high
quality, trusted financial advisers and that we will see
growth in the number of Partners in the future.
When we look around the financial adviser marketplace we
see a number of opportunities to attract advisers looking for
a financially secure and stable home for their businesses, and
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CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S STATEMENT
continued

We have two key new business objectives, firstly to grow
new business by 15 – 20% per annum over the longer
term and secondly for our own products to represent at
least 80% of the new business sold. I am pleased to report
that we exceeded both of these objectives in 2005. New
business growth during the year was £221 million, which
is a 25% increase on 2004. The manufactured portion of
new business was 83%, up 2% on 2004.

corporate and trustee clients and strong investment
performance has resulted in our total funds under
management exceeding more than £12 billion for the
first time.
The active involvement of our Investment Committee
was once again demonstrated with a change to the
management of our Select Managed Fund. In April
2005 the Committee announced its decision to appoint
Nick Purves of Schroder Investment Management as
manager of the UK equity component of the fund. Our
Investment Committee continues to appoint and monitor
some of the best investment professionals with the aim
of producing superior investment returns for our clients
over the longer term.

We have now seen nine consecutive quarters of new
business growth with the final quarter of 2005, up 39%
over the corresponding quarter last year resulting in our
highest ever quarter of new business.
We were also pleased with the 33% growth in single
premium business which included a 36% rise in pension
business along with a 36% increase in unit trust business.
In addition regular premium pension business grew by
19% and excluding sales of the non-manufactured
stakeholder pensions the growth was 51%.

This approach has resulted in many accolades for our
funds and 2005 has proven to be no different. From a
Group perspective, we were awarded 1st place over
3 years in the category of Best Mixed / Multi Asset Unit
Trust Group by Lipper and awarded second place over
1 year in the Best UK Pensions Group (Smaller) category
by Standard & Poor’s. The THSP Managed Pension Fund
was, once again, awarded 1st place in the Balanced
Managed Pension Fund Sector by Standard & Poor’s.
More notably, this was the fourth occasion in five years
the Fund had received this award. Our GAM Managed
Pension Fund was also ranked as the best Balanced
Managed Pension Fund over 5 years by Moneywise.

Gross fees from our wealth management services rose by
33% to £28.3 million.
Investment Management
UK equity markets made their third consecutive year of
gains in 2005.The FTSE All-Share index achieved growth
of 22% with income reinvested and most international
equity markets made similar advances. This growth,
together with new inflows of business from private,

Investment in IT Systems
Over the last three years we have been investing in our
technology infrastructure with the aim of improving and
streamlining business processing. Our Service Delivery
Infrastructure programme (SDI) is largely complete and
we are now in the process of rolling this out across the
company and the Partnership.The new infrastructure is
already proving beneficial in terms of improved business
processing, access to client data records and management
information.
Regulation and Compliance
Once again the regulatory landscape continued to change
in 2005. The key event was the arrival of the depolarised
market. St. James’s Place adopted the new depolarisation
rules prior to the June 2005 deadline. In most senses this
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CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S STATEMENT
continued

turned out to be very much business as usual for us given
the earlier expansion in the range of products and services
we offer.

the St. James’s Place Guarantee, which states that the
St. James’s Place stands behind and guarantees the advice
given by members of the Partnership when recommending
any of the products and services provided by the companies
in the St. James’s Place Group.

We continued to expend considerable effort on ensuring
that our business maintained the highest possible regulatory
standards. We have a good and close working relationship
with the FSA whom we regard as a key stakeholder.

Inherent in everything we do is our desire to be fair and
reasonable to clients and all our stakeholders.

2006 Developments
The major development in 2006 is Pensions A Day in April
where a whole range of pensions regulations will be
replaced by a single set of rules. Following A Day we will be
launching two new plans: the St. James’s Place Retirement
Plan and the St. James’s Place Drawdown Plan. These
two new pension plans will form part of our Retirement
Account currently under development and which will
allow Partners and clients to have a consolidated and
complete picture of all their retirement plans in one place,
the St. James’s Place Retirement Account.

Outlook
The market backdrop remains positive for what we do for
the following reasons:

Investing, building and preserving capital is the centre of
our wealth management proposition and our investment
approach has an enviable long term track record.We must
continue to evolve and we have recently announced the
addition of two new funds to our range: a high interest
cash bond managed by AIG and the St. James’s Place AIM
Portfolio managed by Close Brothers and specifically
designed to offer full Inheritance Tax mitigation.

• Property – the increase in residential property
valuations over the last decade has meant that for an
increasing number of people their estates now fall into
the inheritance tax net,

• Demographics – people are living longer and as a
result time in retirement is both longer and more
expensive,
• Economics – the burden of funding pensions is
continuing to shift from companies to individuals
especially with the demise of defined benefit schemes,

• Individuals – are increasingly on their own to plan
and provide for their own financial future. No longer
can they rely on their company and the pension fund
trustees to do it for them; they will need to take advice
from another individual whom, most importantly,
they trust.

Partners and Employees
I would like to echo the comments Mike has already made
in his Chairman’s Statement on the continued enthusiasm,
commitment and dedication of both the Partnership
and our employees and to add my thanks to our whole
community including our outsourced service providers –
a tremendous effort by everyone.

We are in a growth market and the Board believes that
St. James’s Place remains well positioned to capitalise on
these opportunities going forward.

Our mission statement for the Partnership is ‘To be
regarded as the most professional and trusted provider of
advice on wealth management’. The advice is backed by

Mark Lund
27 February 2006
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FINANCIAL
C O M M E N TA RY
THE FINANCIAL COMMENTARY IS AS USUAL PRESENTED IN TWO SECTIONS : A SECTION
PROVIDING A COMMENTARY ON THE RESULTS FOR THE YEAR AND A SECOND SECTION
COVERING OTHER MATTERS OF INTEREST TO SHAREHOLDERS AND INVESTORS .

SECTION 1:
COMMENTARY ON THE RESULTS FOR THE YEAR

International Financial Reporting
Standards (IFRS)
The IFRS result is shown on pages 53 to 95.

2005 has seen some considerable changes in the bases we
are required to follow in preparing the financial results.

IFRS requires the pre-tax profit of the life business to
be ‘grossed-up’ for policyholder tax. The corresponding
amount is then deducted within the tax charge. This
requirement results in the current year pre-tax profit
being ‘grossed-up’ by some £83.9 million (2004: £22.4
million) giving a total pre-tax profit of £127.1 million
(2004: £56.8 million). This ‘grossing-up’ makes the
pre-tax profit very volatile and does not reflect the
shareholder return from the life business. The following
table and accompanying narrative refer to the profit of the
Group after eliminating this ‘gross-up’.

In common with all listed companies EU law requires
us to present our 2005 primary financial statements in
accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards (“IFRS”) as adopted for use in the European
Union. In adopting IFRS we have restated the consolidated
balance sheet at 31 December 2004, the related
consolidated income statement and the consolidated
statement of changes in equity for the year ended
31 December 2004. Full details of the restatement are
shown on pages 95 to 102. This restatement differs from
that initially published by the Group primarily due to
changes in the presentation of policyholder tax and the
classification of insurance and investment contracts. The
restated profit after tax and net assets are unaffected.

Year Ended
31 December
2005

Year Ended
31 December
2004

£’ Million

£’ Million

Life business
Unit trust business
Other

As shareholders are aware, in addition to the primary
financial information SJPC and life assurance groups
generally provide supplementary financial information
which takes into account the future expected cash flows
from the in-force business. Following industry guidance
and in common with other listed life assurance groups the
previously reported Achieved Profit (“AP”) result has been
restated for the adoption of the European Embedded
Value (“EEV”) Principles. Full details of the restatement
are included in our press release entitled “Restatement
of 2004 Full Year Results Under European Embedded
Value Principles” issued on 8 December 2005.

29.3
12.8
(4.1)

7.0
11.8
(6.8)

38.0

12.0

IT systems development

(4.3)

(5.6)

Operating profit

33.7

6.4

9.5

28.0

Profit before shareholder tax

43.2

34.4

Policyholder tax

83.9

22.4

127.1

56.8

47.6

39.7

Profit on sale of LAHC

Total pre-tax profit
Profit after tax
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FINANCIAL COMMENTARY
continued

The life business pre-tax profit for the year was £29.3
million (2004: £7.0 million).

In 2004 SJPC disposed of its holding in LAHC and
reported a pre-tax profit of £28.0 million. At the time of
the disposal a provision of £16.5 million was established
against possible claims under the transaction warranties
and indemnities. During 2005 £9.5 million of the
provision has been released following a review of the
status of the warranties and indemnities position. At
31 December 2005 the remaining provision was
£7.0 million.

The significant improvement in the life result reflects the
higher funds under management, additional tax relief
obtained for the company’s expenses and the release of
a £4.0 million provision. Shareholders will recall that
this provision was established last year against an
adverse outcome of a VAT case awaiting judgement from
the European Court of Justice (ECJ). Although the ECJ
decision did produce an adverse outcome, the adoption of
legislative changes to implement the Court’s decision
has been postponed on the advice of the European
Commission pending an EU review of VAT in the wider
financial services sector.Therefore a provision is no longer
considered appropriate.

The resulting total profit before shareholder tax on an
IFRS basis was £43.2 million, compared with £34.4 million
for the prior year.
The total net assets were £274.5 million (2004: £222.2
million) resulting in a net asset value per share of
61.4 pence (2004: 50.6 pence).

The profit for the unit trust business was £12.8 million
(2004: £11.8 million) which reflects the higher funds
under management.

European Embedded Value Basis
The table below summarises the pre-tax profit of the
combined business.

The other operations of the business incurred a loss of
£4.1 million (2004: £6.8 million). Included within this
figure is a £3.0 million cost (2004: £2.3 million) of
expensing share options in accordance with IFRS 2.

Year Ended
31 December
2005
£’ Million

Life business
Unit trust business
Other

The corresponding loss for 2004 included one-off
expenditure of some £3.0 million pre-tax together with
a £1.0 million pre-tax cost of establishing a provision
to cover the potential redress on in-force endowment
policies. During the current year a further £0.5 million
pre-tax was set aside for the potential endowment redress
and at 31 December 2005 the remaining provision was
£1.5 million.

92.3
30.6
(4.1)
118.8

IT systems development
Operating profit

The costs incurred on the strategic IT system
development during the year were £4.3 million pre-tax
(2004: £5.6 million). This majority of this development
is now completed and the future running costs will be
included in operational expenses going forward.

11

57.3
30.9
(6.8)
81.4
(5.6)

114.5

75.8

Investment return variance
Economic assumption
changes

86.1

26.5

3.3

0.6

Profit from core business

203.9

102.9

9.5

28.0

Total pre-tax profit

213.4

130.9

Profit after tax

160.7

101.0

Profit on sale of LAHC

Taking into account these factors the pre-tax operating
profit was £33.7 million (2004: £6.4 million).

(4.3)

Year Ended
31 December
2004
£’ Million
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FINANCIAL COMMENTARY
continued

The life business operating profit for the year was £92.3
million pre-tax (2004: £57.3 million pre-tax) and a full
analysis of the result is shown on page 118.This significant
improvement is down to an increase in the new business
contribution together with an improvement in the
experience variance.

The resulting pre-tax operating profit for the year was
£114.5 million (2004: £75.8 million) an increase of 51%.
During the year the average after tax increase in our fund
prices ranged from 13-18% above the embedded value
assumption resulting in a positive investment variance of
£86.1 million pre-tax (2004: £26.5 million).

The new business contribution increased by 62% from
£29.9 million pre-tax for 2004 to £48.4 million pre-tax,
reflecting the strong growth and favourable mix of
new business together with the continued control of
establishment expenses.

Taking into account the release of the LAHC provision
covered earlier in this statement and the small profit arising
from the changes to the economic assumptions, the total
pre-tax profit for the year was £213.4 million some £82.5
million higher than the £130.9 million for the prior year.

In 2005 there was a positive experience variance of £1.7
million pre-tax compared with a negative experience
variance in 2004 of £11.2 million pre-tax. Included in the
current year positive variance is the reversal of the £4.0
million VAT provision mentioned earlier.

The total net assets on an EEV basis at 31 December
2005 were £828.8 million (2004: £663.4 million)
resulting in a net asset value per share of 185.2 pence
(2004: 151.0 pence).

SECTION 2: OTHER MATTERS

The balance of the experience variance in 2005 is the sum
of a number of items including positive tax effects and
negative mortality experience. The large 2004 negative
experience variance was predominantly due to the
establishment of the £4.0 million VAT provision released
in 2005 and an increase to the maintenance expense
loading assumed in the EEV calculation.

Noted below are a number of issues about the Group that
are of interest to shareholders.
(i) Expenses
This section provides a reminder to shareholders of
categories and nature of expenditure incurred.

The pre-tax operating profit of the unit trust business was
£30.6 million (2004: £30.9 million) and a full analysis
of this result is shown on page 118. The new business
contribution in the current year was up from £15.9
million pre-tax to £18.8 million pre-tax, and there was
a small positive experience variance of £0.6 million
compared with a £5.2 million pre-tax positive experience
variance in the prior year. The high positive experience
variance in 2004 reflected stronger persistency whilst the
small deterioration in persistency rates experienced in the
first half of 2005 has not been repeated.

Shareholders will recall that “commission, investment
expenses and third party administration costs” are met
from corresponding policy margins.Any variation in these
costs flowing from changes in the volumes of new business
or the level of the stock markets does not directly impact
the profitability of the Company.
The “other new business related costs”, such as sales force
incentivisation vary with the level of sales – determined
on our internal measure. As production rises or falls these
costs will move in the corresponding direction.

As noted earlier in this statement, the other operations of
the Group incurred a loss for the year of £4.1 million (2004:
loss of £6.8 million) and the costs of the strategic IT systems
development were £4.3 million (2004: £5.6 million).

“Establishment costs” are the running costs of the Group’s
infrastructure and are relatively fixed in nature in the
short term. Consequently these costs remain broadly the
same irrespective of new business volumes.
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FINANCIAL COMMENTARY
continued

The “contribution from third party product sales”
reflects the net income received from wealth management
sales of £5.0 million (2004: £2.8 million), sales of
stakeholder products of £1.6 million (2004: £2.1 million)
and sales through the Protection Panel of £9.8 million
(2004: £9.3 million).

(ii) Tax Position
As highlighted in previous financial commentaries, the UK
life company has not been receiving full tax relief for all
of its expenses, as the tax relief is principally obtained by
offset against tax deductions on the income and capital
gains arising in the unit linked funds. Hence if the unit
linked funds do not realise sufficient capital gains, or if
realised capital gains are sheltered by realised capital losses
carried forward, full tax relief is not obtained.

The table below shows the breakdown of expenses in the
same format as usual:

Category

Paid from policy margins
Commission
Investment expenses
Third party administration
Direct expenses
Other new business
related costs
Establishment costs
Contribution from third
party product sales

Year Ended
31 December
2005

Year Ended
31 December
2004

£’ Million

£’ Million

131.6
35.1
19.2

99.1
25.2
20.5

185.9

144.8

20.5
75.4

16.7
71.7

(16.4)

(14.2)

79.5

74.2

265.4

219.0

At 31 December 2005 there remain approximately £112.9
million (2004: £115.7 million) of excess unrelieved
expenses and £209.3 million (2004: £191.8 million) of
deferred expenses being carried forward for use in future
years. Of these, £145.9 million (2004: £38.4 million) were
required to cover an excess of realised losses in the unit
linked funds over those available to the Company.
The utilisation of these expenses depends considerably
upon the level and timing of future net realised capital
gains, allowing for the interchanges between the total
company and fund gain positions.
The EEV Principles require a revised calculation approach
for the tax assets relative to previous years, including the
application of a stochastic methodology, as the value does
not move linearly with market movements. Within the
EEV result, the value at 31 December 2005 was £17.8
million (2004: £28.9 million). For IFRS reporting, the
value placed on the deferred tax asset was £16.0 million
(2004: £7.3 million).

At the start of the year we set a target of maintaining the
growth in the establishment expenses at between 5-10%
below the corresponding growth in new business. The
growth in the establishment expenses has been maintained
at 5.2% which is some 20% below the growth in new
business – therefore exceeding our target in this respect
and expanding the new business margin.

(iii) Operational Risks and Capital Management
The Group’s policy to managing the solvency capital in
the regulated entities is as follows:
• wherever possible, its liabilities are matched to
appropriate assets to minimise exposure to fluctuating
stock markets and interest rates;
• the solvency assets are held in deposits, AA or better
rated corporate bonds, government gilts or AAA rated
money market funds;
• the Group has never written nor intends to write
business with onerous investment guarantees or options;
• the Group has no defined benefit pension scheme
liabilities.

For 2006 we have set a target of maintaining the growth in
the establishment expenses in a range of 5-8% and if we
achieve both this target and the new business growth
target then shareholders can expect a further expansion in
new business margins in the coming year.
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FINANCIAL COMMENTARY
continued

(iv) Life Business Capital Available and Solvency
Requirements
The life assurance business of the Group, which is
transacted within the long-term funds of approved
insurance companies, is all non-profit business,
comprising both unit linked and non-linked business. Life
assurance assets attributable to shareholders have been
determined by deducting the regulatory value of
insurance and other liabilities from the value of assets.

Notes
(1) Under local GAAP
(2) This represents the other net assets of the Group including capital
allocated to other regulated business
(3) This adjustment represents the purchased value of in-force business
within the life fund
(4) Re-classified as investment contracts under IFRS

The change in total shareholders’ funds available to the life
businesses from that at 31 December 2004 reflects the
post-tax profits for 2005 calculated under local GAAP.
The sensitivity of pre-tax profit and shareholders’ funds to
changes in market conditions, together with the effect of
actual changes in assumptions in 2005, is set out in note
19 to the IFRS results. The processes used to determine
the assumptions that have the greatest effect on the
measurement of insurance liabilities are set out in note 2
to the IFRS results.

The capital and liabilities in respect of the life assurance
business are summarised in the tables below.
Capital

SJP UK (1)

SJPI (1)

Other
Subsidiaries,
Consolidation
and IFRS
Adjustments

£’ Million

£’ Million

£’ Million

Group
Total

£’Million

Shareholders’
funds outside fund

6.9

Shareholders’
funds inside fund

91.1

45.5

47.3

183.9

Total shareholders’
funds

98.0

45.5

131.0

274.5

Restrictions apply to the transfer of assets from any longterm funds. At all times each long-term fund must
maintain an excess of admissible assets over liabilities.
Transfers of assets from the shareholders’ funds are
subject to normal accounting rules relating to
distributable reserves.Within each business unit there are
no restrictions on the use of capital.

(2)

83.7

90.6
(3)

Adjustments onto
regulatory basis:
Adjustment to
assets
Other
adjustments

(4.4)

(3.2)

(7.6)

(33.9)

(5.0)

(38.9)

Total available
capital resources

59.7

37.3

131.0

The required minimum solvency margin for the two
life businesses is currently approximately £32.0 million
(2004:£30.0 million). All of the insurance companies are
capitalised to support their planned business without the
need for further capital resources.

228.0

There are no formal intra-group arrangements in place to
provide capital to particular funds or business units.
Liabilities

SJP UK

£’ Million

SJPI

£’ Million

Other
Subsidiaries,
Consolidation
and IFRS
Adjustments

Group
Total

£’ Million

£’Million

In calculating the EEV result, the cost of maintaining
this solvency capital is deducted from the value placed
on the in-force business – the total amount deducted at
31 December 2005 was approximately £3.0 million post
tax (2004: £3.0 million).

Long-term
business and
claims provisions 149.7
6.3
156.0
Unit linked
liabilities
7,664.5 2,036.7 (9,426.6) (4) 274.6
Total insurance
contract liability
provisions
7,814.2 2,043.0 (9,426.6) 430.6
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FINANCIAL COMMENTARY
continued

(v) Analysis of the Embedded Value
The table below provides a summarised breakdown of the
Embedded Value position at the reporting dates:
Year Ended
31 December
2005

Year Ended
31 December
2004

£’ Million

£’ Million

Value of in-force
- Life
- Unit trust
Solvency assets

503.0
140.7
185.1

404.4
113.5
145.5

Total embedded value

828.8

663.4

Included within those share options with an earliest date
of exercise prior to January 2006 are 10.1 million options
with an expiry date before the end of July 2007 with
anticipated proceeds of £13.4 million.
Of those options with an earliest date of exercise prior
to January 2006, 2,845,350 options require further
performance conditions to be met before vesting
unconditionally.
(vii) VAT
As mentioned earlier in this statement the European
Commission has announced a review of the VAT
exemption currently applied to the insurance and financial
services industries. A consultation document is expected
to be issued in early spring and the Company remains
exposed to the risk of a change in the existing VAT
exemption definitions.

(vi) Share Options Maturity
Options outstanding under the various share option
schemes at 31 December 2005 amount to 56.5 million
(31 December 2004: 52.3 million).
The total number of options including those in the SJP
Employee Trust, together with their anticipated proceeds,
are set out in the table below:
Earliest date
of exercise

Prior to Jan 2006
Jan – Jun 2006
Jul – Dec 2006
Jan – Jun 2007
Jul – Dec 2007
Jan – Jun 2008
Jul – Dec 2008
Jan – Jun 2009
Jul – Dec 2009
Jan – Jun 2010
Jul – Dec 2010

Andrew Croft
27 February 2006

Average Number of Anticipated
exercise share options
proceeds
price outstanding
£

Million

£’ Million

1.67
0.92
1.43
1.65
1.51
1.04
1.33
1.57
2.34
2.40
2.00

24.1
4.8
3.0
5.1
4.3
2.4
0.3
0.7
11.1
0.5
0.2

40.3
4.4
4.3
8.4
6.5
2.5
0.4
1.1
26.0
1.2
0.4

56.5

95.5
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C O R P O R AT E A N D S O C I A L
R E S P O N S I B I L I T Y R E P O RT
ST. JAMES’S PLACE FULLY SUPPORTS ALL THE INITIATIVES AIMED AT ENSURING COMPANIES
ADOPT A RESPONSIBLE ATTITUDE TOWARDS THEIR STAKEHOLDERS AND IN PARTICULAR
TO CLIENTS, STAFF, AND THE COMMUNITY.

Our Clients
Our mission statement is ‘To be regarded as the most
professional and trusted provider of advice on wealth
management’. The provision of high quality advice is
delivered by members of the St. James’s Place Partnership
who build strong relationships with their clients. Our
strategy is focused on being able to offer clients a
comprehensive range of products and services and we
consult regularly with members of the Partnership so
that the needs and expectations of clients are clearly
understood. In an environment where trust is paramount,
all clients can have peace of mind knowing that St. James’s
Place stands behind and guarantees the advice given by
members of the Partnership when recommending any of
the products and services provided by companies in the
St. James’s Place Group.

They are self-employed business people who represent
only St. James’s Place in respect of the financial products
and services made available by the Group. Despite their
self-employed status, members of the St. James’s Place
Partnership form a close bond with the Company and
share its core values. Providing Financial Advice clients
can trust is at the heart of what they do.
All members of the Partnership have experience in
Financial Services before joining St. James’s Place. On
average, they have over 15 years’ service in the Financial
Services industry.
Once with the Company, they are trained in St. James’s
Place products and services and receive regular
information and guidance with regard to changes in
legislation or regulation. A number of them will specialise
in particular aspects of financial advice, e.g. Pensions
advice, Inheritance Tax planning, Corporate markets,
Employee benefits etc., and the Company provides
further support and encourages continual professional
development in these areas.

Sound and trusted advice is at the heart of our proposition
and we place great emphasis on clearly communicating
the characteristics of our products and services to clients.
A substantial part of our business is the management of
clients’ money and we aim to do that well through our
investment management approach. When it comes to
settling life and health claims we take a positive approach
and do not hide behind “small print”. Wherever possible
we will pay claims in line with the spirit of the contract.
Inherent within everything we do is our desire to be fair
and reasonable to clients and all our stakeholders and
whenever we fall short of that we will do our utmost to
put things right quickly.

Members of the Partnership are also encouraged to build
long term relationships with their clients and with the
Company and our remuneration arrangements are
designed with that in mind. Partner retention has
remained incredibly high in recent years and averages at
over 90% per annum year on year.
Our Employees
We firmly believe that our employees give us a sustainable
competitive advantage in a marketplace where the
provision of high quality service is paramount. The
attitude, knowledge, skills and commitment of our people
continues to be a strong differentiator and we continue to

The Partnership
The St. James’s Place Partnership is made up of some
of the most experienced, able and highly regarded
professionals working in financial services.
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CORPORATE AND SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY REPORT
continued

invest in training and development programmes so that we
are able to meet the needs of our business and customers.
We have a structured induction process for new starters
which provides an insight into what its like to work at
St. James’s Place. Our values of integrity, openness and
fairness are the foundation for the way we deal with
our people.

purpose-built Head Office in our current home town of
Cirencester, which will provide 45,000 square feet of
space and enable all ‘back office’ functions to work
together in one building in 2007.
St. James’s Place has a well-established awareness of
statutory and social responsibilities with regard to the
employment of disabled staff, whether it be the
recruitment or subsequent management. The Group’s
approach ensures that every effort is made to achieve
continuity of employment in the event of an employee
becoming disabled. Similarly best practice principles
ensure that the Group’s responsibilities are met as an
equal opportunity employer.

Our employee retention rate for 2005 is 88% and
attracting new employees has rarely posed an issue for us.
Days lost through sickness across the business currently
stands at 3.7 days per employee per year, which is
significantly below the national average. We remain
committed to our equal opportunities policy for potential
and existing employees, recognising people’s individual
ability and merit, free from any form of discrimination.
Our workforce gender profile is fairly evenly split with a
total of 288 females and 271 male employees.

ENVIRONMENT REPORT
The Company recognises that it has a responsibility to the
environment and we will continue to take positive steps to
address our direct and indirect environmental impacts.

The performance and development of our people is
encouraged and supported with a formalised Performance
Development Review Process. Our reward package is
competitive with a comprehensive range of benefits
provided to all employees including pensions and health
cover benefits and the potential for annual bonuses linked
to the Company’s performance. Recognising the benefit
of all employees having the opportunity of an equity
interest in the Company everyone can join the Share Save
scheme and acquire discounted shares. 72% of all
employees are now members of this scheme.
Management are also given the opportunity to participate
in share incentive schemes, further details of which are
set out in the Remuneration Report.

Corporate Environmental Policy
The Company’s Corporate Environmental Policy can be
found on its website www.sjp.co.uk, and continues to
form the basis of the Group’s approach to reducing
environmental impacts.The policy sets out our objectives,
commitment to setting and measuring realistic targets and
communicating with our stakeholders. The policy
objectives are reviewed annually, and are used to drive the
changes in process and procedures in order to work
towards reducing CO2 emission levels wherever possible.
Achievements
The Company measures its environmental impacts using
eco-points. During 2004 we measured a 7% reduction in
the Company’s environmental impact versus a target of
2.7% reduction.This achievement was due to a number of
initiatives implemented during this and previous years,
which resulted in the following achievements against
our targets:

Communication
We remain committed to an open style of communication
and keep all employees and members of the Partnership
informed on a regular basis on matters which might affect
their day-to-day work or be of interest to them. We
encourage regular feedback from our people and
managers are expected to have monthly one-to-ones with
their team members and regular team meetings.
Directors and senior managers regularly visit SJP office
locations to disseminate key corporate messages and
obtain valuable feedback. Our working environments are
created to satisfy Health and Safety Regulations and in
2006 work will commence on the construction of a new

One of these initiatives was working with Action Energy,
in conjunction with the Carbon Trust, to undertake a
number of office surveys. The recommendations from
these surveys enabled improvements to working practices
within our locations. We also use the services of Entech
who check, monitor and produce our annual usage figures

17

206697 Report & Accounts Front

20/3/06

7:40 pm

Page 18

CORPORATE AND SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY REPORT
continued

for energy consumption. This along with other initiatives
helped us achieve a 10.2% reduction in our electricity and
gas emissions against a target of a 2% reduction.

The Company has for the last three years offered
electronic communication for shareholders
whereby shareholders can elect to receive Company
documentation and to vote on AGM resolution,
electronically rather than by post, which reduces printing
and distribution costs.This has recently been enhanced by
the eTree Initiative. For every shareholder that registers
to receive their communications electronically, a sapling
is donated on the shareholder’s behalf in an area selected
for reforestation in the UK via the Woodland Trust’s
“Tree for All” campaign. Further details can be found at
www.etreeuk.com.

The Company’s fleet management company provide
mileage and fuel usage figures, while other travel mileage
figures for rail and air are also produced using a standard
formula for calculating CO2 output. The Company’s
overall environmental impact from travel reduced by 3%
against a target of 5% reduction.
In early 2004 the Company decided to move from
providing bottled drinking water to mains supplied
filtered water which meant we only saw a 2.8% reduction
of mains water usages against a target of a 5% reduction.

One of our major objectives within the Environmental
policy is to keep stakeholders in St. James’s Place aware of
our policy, initiatives, targets and achievements.To help us
achieve this objective we published the 2004
Environmental Report on the Company website,
www.sjp.co.uk. The 2005 report will be posted later in
the year when all the data is available. We also are
committed to participating in leading environmental
surveys, such as the Business in the Environment
(BiE) index.

The successful paper-recycling programme first started in
2002, continues to be improved upon and paper recycled
increased by 54% against a target of 20% increase. There
are other recycling programmes in place covering the
disposal of PCs, mobile phones and toner cartridges that
generate resale value and the proceeds are donated to
the St. James’s Place Foundation.
Our strategy for issuing many of our internal
communications by e-mail or via our intranet systems
continues to develop, and now a vast amount of
information is electronically disseminated throughout the
Company. That has had a knock on effect of reducing the
amount spent on print and other marketing literature; but
has also reduced the amount of paper consumed and
subsequently destroyed. As this area of communication
continues to expand further improvements can be
expected, in particular as a result of the roll out of SDI
(Service Delivery Infrastructure) software used by the
Partnership for sending their applications via electronic
means. While it is still early days for this, it is expected
that in future years the Company should see the benefits
of this process materialise in improvement in paper
consumption along with other business issues.

St. James’s Place continues to be included in the
FTSE4Good index which comprises companies that
meet globally recognised corporate social responsibility
criteria.
For those investors particularly interested in investing
in environmentally friendly companies and to comply
with the policy on socially responsible investment by
Trustees of Occupational Pension Schemes, the Group
offers ethical funds. These funds invest in companies
demonstrating sound environmental and social policies.
The Investment Committee of the Board meets regularly
to monitor and review the performance of all the funds
under management against a series of defined criteria.
Targets and Initiatives
We have implemented a number of programmes that have
helped us achieve significant reductions with regard to the
Company’s impact on the environment. In 2006, we will
focus on involving more stakeholders; particularly staff,
Partners and suppliers.

During the latter part of 2005, all digital photocopiers
within Head Office were converted into multi functional
devices with the view to improving efficiency and to
reduce the number of individual printers in use. This in
turn will reduce the amount of toner cartridges being used.
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CORPORATE AND SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY REPORT
continued

The 2005 initiatives include implementing a staff
awareness programme, appointing environmental
champions, investigating supply of renewable electricity,
improving supplier awareness of their environmental
impacts and implementing new technology to further
reduce paper usage.

In addition to group events, individuals also push
themselves to the limit in an effort to raise as much
sponsorship as possible from their contacts and clients.
The challenges taken up include: the Sahara Marathon,
various Triathlons, a 5-Peaks Mountaineering Challenge,
3 Marathons in 3 different countries in 3 weeks,
and descending from the top of Guys Tower, Warwick
Castle on a rope (with the aid of the Royal Marines!).
This last event alone raised more than £220,000, with
Company matching.

Also during the coming year we will start work on our
new headquarters building in Cirencester and we aim to
achieve at least a “good” or “very good” using BREEAM
(Building Research Establishment Environmental
Assessment Method) when the building is complete.

In January 2005, staff and Partners raised a further
£90,000 for the Tsunami Appeal.

The various initiatives mentioned above should help us
achieve the following targets during 2006:

Energy
Water
Travel
General Waste
Paper Usage

In September 2005, two teams from our Manchester and
Cheshire offices swam the English Channel and raised
£100,000 including Company matching. This was one of
the most challenging events any of our community have
undertaken, involving many months of early morning
training in the freezing waters of North Wales.

Target
3% Reduction
1% Reduction
No target set
Driven by business need
3% Reduction
3% Reduction

However, the largest single fund-raising event of 2005 was
a triathlon organised by a Partner from our City Location.
55 teams from all over the country took part and raised
over £220,000.

THE ST. JAMES’S PLACE FOUNDATION
The ethos of raising money within the working
environment, for the benefit of the less fortunate
members of society, plays an important role in the lives
of those associated with St. James’s Place. Forming a
charitable trust (The Foundation) was included in the
original business plan for the Company in 1992.

Alongside these ad hoc fundraising initiatives, the
Foundation has consistently promoted the benefits of Gift
Aid supported by deductions from payroll and, in the case
of Partners, deductions from their gross earnings. This
has had two major benefits. Firstly, it provides a regular
monthly income to the Foundation and secondly, the
Foundation can reclaim the tax relief provided under the
Gift Aid regime.

The Foundation has two main activities – fundraising and
the awarding of grants.

The Company is very proud of the fact that 82% of the
St. James’s Place community of over 1,600 people are
making regular monthly donations to the Foundation
through Gift Aid. This demonstrates the commitment to
the Foundation throughout the Company at every level.
Over £350,000 of the money raised in 2005 was as a
result of these regular monthly donations.

Each of the Company’s regional offices and departments
within Head Office organise fundraising events. These
range from raffles bringing in a few hundred pounds, to
auctions of promises and other social events, which often
raise several thousand pounds. Every social event is looked
upon as an opportunity to raise funds for the Foundation.
Many of the Company’s local and national suppliers are
happy to support the Foundation and regularly donate
cash or goods to aid our fundraising efforts.

Every pound raised by members of the St. James’s Place
community is matched by the Company and 2005 was
another record breaking year, with funds raised exceeding
£1,600,000 (including matching).
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CORPORATE AND SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY REPORT
continued

Supporting the Foundation’s fundraising activities is a key
corporate objective.The management team, from the top
down, focuses on this aspect of the Company’s business, in
much the same way as it does on other key objectives.

In 2001 the Foundation entered into an arrangement with
the Variety Club of Great Britain to fund 21 Sunshine
Coaches for children with disabilities at special schools or
organisations located near to each of the Company’s
offices. This entailed a commitment of nearly £350,000
and the last coaches were handed over to the recipient
schools during 2005, helping many hundreds of children
lead a more active life than they otherwise would.

The Foundation’s management committee, in consultation
with the rest of the community, establish a “theme”
framework for awarding grants. For 2005 there have been
two themes. The first being “Cherishing the Children”,
whereby any charity that has a project in the UK that is for
the direct benefit of physically disabled children or those
suffering from a mental condition or those suffering from
a life threatening or degenerative illness, can apply for a
grant from the Foundation.

It is hoped that a close and lasting relationship will be
formed between the recipient organisations and members
of the relevant St. James’s Place location.
In total, over £6,320,000 has been given in grants to all
causes since the Foundation was established just over 14
years ago and the Foundation currently has approximately
£1.2 million available for future distribution and work is
underway to find suitable recipients for this money.

The second theme is the Hospice Movement, whereby
the Foundation makes grants to hospices in the UK for
items such as equipment, the cost of therapy and other
treatments. 2005 was the second year of an £800,000
funding partnership with Help the Hospices with a
programme called “Care beyond Cancer”. This three year
programme is focused on helping patients and their
families suffering from illnesses other than cancer. It is
hoped it will not only bring immediate benefits to
sufferers but also change some of the thinking about
hospice care in this area of need.

The Foundation is proud of what has been achieved over
the past 14 years and aims to continue to raise even more
funds in the years ahead so that even more people may
benefit from its success. Specifically, for 2006 the
Foundation’s target is that 85% of the St. James’s Place
community of Partners and employees give regularly by
way of Gift Aid and that over £1.7m of new funds are
raised, including matching by the Company.

In addition to the grants awarded under the “themes”, and
largely as a result of the additional monies available to
the Foundation from the Company’s “matching” policy,
the Foundation has been able to enter into a seven year
commitment with Hope & Homes for Children, a UK
based charity which provides family homes and other
support for children orphaned by war or disaster. More
than £1 million has been paid over to Hope & Homes
for Children in the last 5 years.

The Group will continue its focus on the various
initiatives described in this update in 2006 and beyond,
and ensure that Corporate and Social Responsibility
remains at the forefront of its business.
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PRESIDENT AND BOARD
OF DIRECTORS
Sir Mark Weinberg President
Aged 74, founded the St. James’s Place Group with Mike Wilson in 1991 and was Chairman of
St. James’s Place Capital plc until September 2004, when he resigned from the Board and was
appointed to the position of President. He currently chairs the Investment Committee. He
originally practised as a barrister and was formerly Deputy Chairman of the Securities and
Investments Board, the forerunner to the Financial Services Authority.

The current Directors of the Company are:
Mike Wilson Chairman
Aged 62, founded the St. James’s Place Group with Sir Mark Weinberg in 1991 and was Chief
Executive until September 2004. He has worked in the life assurance industry since 1963 and
with Sir Mark Weinberg since 1968. He is a trustee of the St. James’s Place Foundation and
Chairman of the Nomination Committee. He was formerly Chairman of the Mental Health
Foundation and a non-executive director of Vendôme Luxury Group plc between 1993 and 1998.
Mark Lund Chief Executive
Aged 48, became Chief Executive in September 2004 following his appointment as Deputy Chief
Executive and Chief Executive Designate in January 2004. He was formerly Chief Executive of
J P Morgan FundsHub and Chief Executive of Virgin Direct, prior to which he was a director of
Henderson Investors plc, where he worked for ten years. He is a member of the Investment
Committee and is a trustee of the St. James’s Place Foundation. He is a Fellow of the Securities
Institute and a member of the UK Society of Investment Professionals and the CFA Institute.
Sarah Bates Non-executive Director
Aged 47, joined the Board as an independent non-executive Director in September 2004 and is
a member of the Investment and Nomination Committees. She is a Director of Witan Pacific
Investment Trust, Invesco English and International Trust, New India Investment Trust and
JPMorgan Fleming American Investment Trust, as well as a strategic investment advisor to the
Merseyside and East Riding Pension Funds and lay advisor to the investment committee of
the Royal College of Surgeons. She has a law degree from Trinity Hall, Cambridge and an
MBA from London Business School.
David Bellamy Managing Director
Aged 53, was appointed to the position of Managing Director in January 2002, having previously
fulfilled the role of Group Operations Director. He has worked in the insurance industry since
1973 and joined the Group in April 1991. He was appointed to the board of St. James’s Place UK
plc in 1993 and to the Board of St. James’s Place Capital plc in September 1997. He is a trustee
of the St. James’s Place Foundation.
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PRESIDENT AND BOARD OF DIRECTORS
continued

Andrew Croft Group Finance Director
Aged 41, joined the Group as Financial Accountant in 1993 and was promoted to various roles
culminating in his appointment as Finance Director of St. James’s Place Capital plc in September
2004. He qualified as a Chartered Accountant at PriceWaterhouseCoopers in 1988 and has a
degree in Accounting and Economics from Southampton University. He is a trustee of the
St. James’s Place Foundation.
James Crosby Non-executive Director
Aged 50, is a non-independent non-executive Director representing HBOS plc, appointed in
June 2000. He was appointed Chief Executive of Halifax in 1999 and Chief Executive of HBOS
plc in 2001. He is also a non-executive director of ITV plc and of the Financial Services Authority.
He is a Fellow of the Faculty of Actuaries.
John Edwards Non-executive Director
Aged 50, was appointed to the Board as a non-independent, non-executive director on 22 July
2005 representing HBOS plc. He was appointed Chief Executive of the Insurance and Investment
Division of HBOS plc in July 2005 and recently transferred to become Chief Executive of the
HBOS European financial services business.

Ian Gascoigne Group Sales Director
Aged 49, was appointed to the Board as Group Sales Director in January 2003. His specific
responsibilities include the recruitment, growth and development of the St. James’s Place
Partnership. He has worked in the insurance industry since 1986, joined the Group in
December 1991 and was appointed to the Board of St. James’s Place UK plc in 1997. He has a
degree from Lancaster University and an MA from Leicester University and is also a trustee of
the St. James’s Place Foundation.
Simon Gulliford Non-executive Director
Aged 47, was appointed as an independent non-executive director in May 2005 and is a member
of the Remuneration and Risk Committees. He is Chief Executive of Simon Gulliford Ltd,
an independent marketing consultancy, prior to which he was Group Marketing Director of
Barclays plc. Other directorships include William Jackson & Sons Ltd and Archant Newspapers.
Formerly he was also Marketing Development Director of EMAP plc and Marketing Director of
Sears plc. He is a Council member of the Marketing Group of Great Britain and a Fellow of
the Marketing Society.
Derek Netherton Non-executive Director
Aged 61, is an independent non-executive Director, appointed in May 1996. He is Chairman
of the Audit Committee and a member of the Remuneration Committee. He is Chairman of
Greggs plc and his non-executive directorships outside the Group include Next PLC and Hiscox
plc. He is a Fellow of the Institute of Actuaries and was formerly a director of J. Henry Schroder
& Co Limited.
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PRESIDENT AND BOARD OF DIRECTORS
continued

Mike Power Non-executive Director
Aged 48, joined the Board as an independent non-executive director on 12 May 2005. He is
Chairman of the Risk Committee and a member of the Audit Committee. He is Professor of
Accounting and a Research Director of the ESRC Centre for Analysis of Risk and Regulation at
the London School of Economics and Political Science, where he has worked since 1987. He is a
Fellow of the Institute of Chartered Accountants in England and Wales and an Associate of the UK
Chartered Institute of Taxation. He sits on the risk management committee of the London School
of Economics and teaches and writes on risk management, regulation and compliance issues.
Michael Sorkin Non-executive Director
Aged 63, was appointed to the Board as an independent non-executive Director in January 2002.
He was appointed Senior Independent Director in May 2005, is Chairman of the Remuneration
Committee and a member of the Nomination and Audit Committees. He joined Hambros Bank
in 1968 and was a director of Hambros plc between 1986 and 1999 and a Managing Director of
S G Hambros from 1999 to 2001. He is Vice Chairman of Investment Banking at N M Rothschild
Corporate Finance Limited and a non-executive director of J Z Equity Partners plc.
Roger Walsom Non-executive Director
Aged 53, was appointed to the Board as an independent non-executive Director on 22 July 2005
and is a member of the Risk Committee. After several years in the insurance industry, he
graduated in law at Southampton University and qualified as a solicitor in 1980 with a City law
firm. He became a Partner at Ashurst, another leading City law firm, in 1988, specialising in the
financial services industry. He retired as a Partner in April 2005 but continues as a consultant to
Ashurst. He is also a non-executive director of The Pensions Regulator.
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DIRECTORS’
R E P O RT
& ACCOUNTS OF THE
COMPANY FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2005.

THE DIRECTORS PRESENT THEIR REPORT

Results and Dividends
An interim dividend of 1.3 pence per share (2004: 1.25
pence per share) was paid on 19 September 2005. The
Directors recommend that shareholders declare a final
dividend of 1.85 pence per share (2004: 1.6 pence per
share) on 17 May 2006 to shareholders on the register at
the close of business on 10 March 2006. A resolution to
renew the Directors’ authority to offer a scrip dividend
will be put to shareholders at the forthcoming Annual
General Meeting.

Directors
The present Directors of the Company are listed on pages
21 to 23.
Simon Gulliford was appointed to the Board on 12 May
2005 by resolution of the shareholders at the Annual
General Meeting on the same date. Anthony Loehnis and
Viscount Weir resigned from the Board on 12 May 2005.
Mike Power was appointed to the Board on 12 May 2005
and John Edwards and Roger Walsom were appointed to
the Board on 22 July 2005. Pursuant to the articles of
association of the Company, all three directors will retire
at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting and offer
themselves for re-election.

Status of Company
The Company is registered as a public limited company
under the Companies Act 1985.
Activities
The Company is a financial services holding company with
principal interests in wealth management including life
assurance and unit trust management. A full review of
the activities of the Group is given in the Chairman’s
Statement on pages 3 and 4 and the Chief Executive’s
Statement on pages 6 to 8.

Phil Hodkinson and Grenville Turner resigned from the
Board on 22 July 2005 and Charles Bailey resigned on
29 September 2005.
Pursuant to the articles of association, all those Directors
who were elected or last re-elected at or before the
Annual General Meeting held in 2003 shall retire from
office by rotation. The Director retiring by rotation at
the AGM is Ian Gascoigne. Derek Netherton will also be
seeking annual re-election to meet corporate governance
guidelines applicable to his length of service on the Board.
Further details can be found in the Corporate Governance
Report on pages 27 to 35.

Substantial Shareholders
The Directors are aware of the interests of the following
companies in 3% or more of the ordinary issued share
capital of the Company as at 27 February 2006:
HBOS plc: 268, 253, 352 (59.99%)
Fidelity International Ltd : 17, 390, 279 (3.91%)

Further details on the background of those Directors
seeking re-election are set out in the Directors’ Biographies
on pages 21 to 23 and in the Notice of the Annual General
Meeting. The Chairman is pleased to confirm that those
non-executive Directors seeking re-election continue to be
effective in their roles on the Board and its Committees
and have demonstrated their continued commitment.
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Details of all executive Directors’ service contracts are set
out in the Remuneration Report on pages 41 and 42.

£765,380 to the St. James’s Place Foundation. A list of
charitable donations made by the Foundation, together
with a report which outlines the basis on which priorities
for donations have been established, is available on request.

As stated in the Chairman’s Statement on page 4, James
Crosby and John Edwards will resign from the Board on
31 May 2006 to be replaced by Andy Hornby and Jo
Dawson as the HBOS-nominated Directors on the Board.
Both Andy Hornby and Jo Dawson will be subject to
re-election at the Annual General Meeting in 2007, being
the first general meeting following their appointment.

Political Contributions
It is the Group’s policy not to make any donations to
political parties within the meaning of the definitions set
out in the Political Parties, Elections and Referendums
Act 2000, and the Group did not make any political
donations during the year.

Directors’ Interests
The interests of the Directors in the share capital of
the Company and in the share capital of HBOS plc,
being the Company’s holding company, as at 31 December
2005, and any changes between that date and the date
of this Report, are set out in the Remuneration Report
on pages 47 and 48.

Employees
Full details of the number of employees within the Group
as at 31 December 2005 and the costs related to those
employees are shown in note 6 on page 69.
Details of the Group’s approach to employee involvement,
development and communication and the Group’s policy
for the employment, training and development of the
disabled can be found in the Corporate and Social
Responsibility Report on pages 16 and 17.

Except as stated in the Remuneration Report, no Director
has, or has had during the year under review, any beneficial
interest in any contract or arrangement with the Company
or any of its subsidiaries as defined by the Companies Act
1985 or pursuant to the Listing Rules published by the FSA.

Annual General Meeting
The Company’s Annual General Meeting will be held on
9 May 2006 at the Royal Overseas League, Park Place,
London SW1A 1LR at 11:00am.

Creditors’ Payment Policy
The payment of supplier invoices is made on the
Company’s behalf by St. James’s Place Management
Services Limited (“SJPMS”), a subsidiary company. It is
SJPMS’s policy to pay creditors in accordance with the
CBI Better Practice Payment Code on supplier payments.
SJPMS’s average number of days purchases outstanding
in respect of trade creditors at 31 December 2005 was
9 days (2004: 26 days).

Auditors
The auditors, KPMG Audit Plc, have indicated their
willingness to continue in office and a resolution that
they be re-appointed until the end of the 2007 Annual
General Meeting will be put to shareholders at the Annual
General Meeting on 9 May 2006.

Charitable Donations
As agreed by shareholders in 2000, the Group pays an
amount to the St. James’s Place Foundation (a charitable
trust) each year which matches donations received during
the year by the Foundation on a pound for pound basis, up
to a limit determined by the Directors from time to time,
which was set at £800,000 for 2005. During the year
ended 31 December 2005, the Group contributed

By Order of the Board

Hugh Gladman
Company Secretary
27 February 2006
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C O R P O R AT E
G OV E R N A N C E R E P O RT
THE COMPANY IS COMMITTED TO ACHIEVING HIGH STANDARDS OF
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE AND TO MAINTAINING HIGH LEVELS OF INTEGRITY
AND ETHICAL STANDARDS IN ALL OF ITS BUSINESS DEALINGS.

This report explains the approach the Company has
taken to apply the principles and provisions set out in
the Combined Code on corporate governance.

Provision A.2.2 of the Combined Code relates to
the appointment of the Chief Executive as Chairman.
The appointment of Mike Wilson as Chairman of
the Board in September 2004 was made following
detailed consultation with major shareholders. Further
information on the background to this appointment
was disclosed in the Report and Accounts of the Company
for 2004.

The Financial Services Authority requires listed
companies to disclose, in relation to section 1 of the
Combined Code, how they have applied its principles
and whether they have complied with its provisions
throughout the accounting year. The Board considers that
by July 2005 the Company had achieved compliance with
all of the provisions of the Combined Code as a result
of the changes made during the year to the composition
of the Board and its Committees. However, betweeen
1 January 2005 and 21 July 2005, the Company did not
comply with the provisions in A.3.2 and C.3.1 of the
Combined Code, as explained further below.

The Board
The Company applies the provisions of the Combined
Code through the Board and its Committees, which meet
regularly and have ready access to all relevant information
required to enable effective decision making.
The Board meets six times a year, with additional meetings
arranged on an ad hoc basis as required. During 2005 there
were six formal Board Meetings at which all Directors were
present with the exception of the following:

The process to achieve compliance with provision A.3.2
that at least half the Board comprises independent
non-executive Directors, began with the resignation of
Viscount Weir and Anthony Loehnis with effect from the
Annual General Meeting on 12 May 2005, to be replaced
by Simon Gulliford and Mike Power. Further changes to
the Board were made throughout the year including
the appointment of Roger Walsom and John Edwards
and the resignation of Grenville Turner, Phil Hodkinson
and Charles Bailey.

Meeting
March 2005
May 2005
July 2005
September 2005
November 2005

Apologies
James Crosby, Phil Hodkinson
Phil Hodkinson, Michael Sorkin
James Crosby, Phil Hodkinson
Simon Gulliford, Derek Netherton
John Edwards

Board members are given notice in advance of Board
meetings of all matters to be discussed, together with
supporting documentation. This will normally include
detailed reports on current trading, sales, operational
issues, compliance, risk, accounting and financial matters.
The Board also receives reports from the Chairmen of
the various Committees of the Board.

In relation to provision C.3.1, the Audit Committee now
comprises solely independent non-executive Directors
following the resignation of Phil Hodkinson.
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The Board has a formal schedule of matters specifically
reserved to it. The primary responsibilities of the Board
are to:

other significant commitments of the Chairman
are disclosed in his biography on page 21. The Chief
Executive’s primary responsibility is to manage the Group
and implement the strategies adopted by the Board.

• determine the overall strategy of the Group;
• ensure that the Group’s operations are well managed
and proper succession plans are in place;
• review major transactions or initiatives proposed by
the executive Directors;
• implement appropriate corporate governance
procedures;
• periodically review the results and operations of the
Group;
• ensure that proper accounting records are maintained
and adequate controls are in place to safeguard the
assets of the Group from fraud and other significant
risks;
• identify and manage risk; and
• decide the Group’s policy on charitable and political
donations.

The Board delegates day to day business and risk
management control to the executive Directors and
other senior executives, who meet twice a month
to consider operational issues as well as business
development plans, financial and operating budgets and
forecasts, capital expenditure proposals, compliance
matters and key performance indicators. Their decisions
are communicated throughout the Group as appropriate.
Directors and Directors’ Independence
Following the various board changes announced during
the year, culminating with the resignation of Charles
Bailey in September 2005, the Board consisted of four
executive and eight non-executive Directors (excluding
the Chairman) at the end of the financial year. Six of
the non-executive Directors are considered by the Board
to be independent of management and free from any
business or other relationships which could materially
interfere with the exercise of their judgement. These are
Sarah Bates, Derek Netherton, Michael Sorkin, Simon
Gulliford, Mike Power and Roger Walsom.

In addition, a Board Control Manual sets out the primary
policy and decision-making mechanisms within the Group
and defines the terms of reference of the Committees set
out below and the Group’s risk policies. It also contains
the detailed job descriptions of the Directors showing
their individual responsibilities. The Board Control
Manual is reviewed by the Board annually.

When determining whether a non-executive Director is
independent, the Board considers for each non-executive
Director whether they are independent in character and
judgement, how they conduct themselves in Board
meetings, whether they have any relationships or there are
any circumstances which are likely to affect, or could
appear to affect, their judgement; and whether they act in
the best interests of the Company and its shareholders at
all times. The Board has considered the independence of
Derek Netherton with particular care, given that he has
served on the Board for more than nine years. The Board
strongly believes that Derek Netherton continues to
contribute significantly to the Board and its Committees
through his individual skills and considerable knowledge
of both the Company and the financial services industry.
In particular, he continues to demonstrate a strong

The statement of Directors’ responsibilities in preparing
the accounts is set out on page 34 and the statement from
the auditor on its reporting responsibilities is on page 51.
The statement on going concern can be found on page 33.
The Roles of the Chairman and Chief Executive
The division of responsibilities between the Chairman of
the Board, Mike Wilson, and the Chief Executive, Mark
Lund, is clearly defined and has been approved by the
Board. It is the responsibility of the Chairman, Mike
Wilson, to ensure the continued effectiveness of the Board
of Directors and communication with shareholders. He
also liaises with the Chief Executive, Mark Lund, to make
recommendations to the Board on Group strategy. Any
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independence of management in the manner in which he
discharges his responsibility as a Director at Board and
Committee meetings by questioning and constructively
challenging management as and when he considers it
appropriate. In addition, shareholders will note that there
have been several changes to the Board over the last 12
months. In view of the above, the Board do not believe
that it would be prudent to replace Derek Netherton with
a further non-executive Director appointment. However,
this matter is subject to annual review and the Board (with
the assistance of the Nomination Committee) plan to
continue the process of refreshing the Board over time.
The terms and conditions of appointment of the nonexecutive Directors are available on request and will be
available at the Annual General Meeting in May 2006.

Performance Evaluation
During 2005 the Chairman held separate meetings with
the non-executive Directors. Various changes were
requested by the non-executive Directors following these
meetings, for example more meetings with senior
management, which have since been implemented. In
addition, led by the Senior Independent Director, the nonexecutive Directors also met without the Chairman
present to appraise the Chairman’s performance and
discuss other topical issues.
The Board carried out an annual evaluation of its own
performance and of its committees and individual
Directors by way of a detailed questionnaire and
interviews carried out by the Company Secretary. Various
changes were made to Board procedures as a result
of feedback arising from the Board evaluation process,
including changes to the information contained in
Board packs.

The Senior Independent Director
Michael Sorkin has acted as the Senior Independent
Director since 12 May 2005, following the resignation of
Lord Weir. The Senior Independent Director is available to
meet shareholders on request and to ensure that the Board
is aware of shareholder concerns not resolved through the
existing mechanisms for investor communication.

Board Committees
The Board has formally constituted six committees,
being the Audit, Investment, Nomination, Remuneration,
Risk and Urgent Issues Committees.The membership and
terms of reference of the Board committees are reviewed
at least annually and are available on request and on the
Company’s website.

Professional Development
Directors receive training in their duties and responsibilities
on appointment as part of an induction process designed to
assist them in their understanding of the business. The
Directors are also offered training on an ongoing basis via a
rolling programme coordinated by the Company Secretary.
The Directors are regularly updated on their duties and
responsibilities and have access to the advice of the
Company Secretary and to independent professional
advice where needed in furtherance of their duties. Further
training is made available as necessary to ensure that the
whole Board is kept abreast of relevant developments
applicable to their roles and topical issues are also addressed
before each Board meeting. Topics covered during these
sessions during 2005 included depolarisation, pensions
reform and marketing opportunities. Non-executive
Directors may also meet with major shareholders
as necessary.

During 2005 the Board carried out a detailed review
of the Board and Committee structures via a project
entitled “Managing our Future”. As a result of this review,
several changes were made to the terms of reference and
procedures for Board Committees, the most notable being
the establishment of the Risk Committee instead of the
more narrowly focused Compliance Committee.
A summary of the various Committees of the Board is set
out below.
Audit Committee
The Audit Committee now comprises solely independent
non-executive Directors, following the resignation of
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Phil Hodkinson in July 2005. The Committee, chaired
by Derek Netherton, also comprises Michael Sorkin and
Mike Power.

• carry out an annual review of the Group’s system of
internal control; and
• assess the appropriateness of the Group’s ‘whistleblowing’
procedures.

All Committee members have considerable financial
experience, as can be seen from the Directors’ biographical
details, appearing on pages 21 to 23.

During the year, the Committee formally reviewed draft
interim and annual reports and associated preliminary
and interim announcements, focussing on key areas of
judgement, accounting policies and any changes required
to those. It reviewed reports of the Risk Management and
Internal Audit functions and external audit findings. The
Committee reviewed at each meeting a progress report on
the internal audit plan and received regular updates on the
implementation of that plan. In addition, the Committee
decided to increase the number of meetings from 4 to 5 so
that an entire meeting could be dedicated to the annual
review of the Group’s system of internal controls.

During 2005 the Committee met five times with all
members present with the exception of the following:Meeting
April 2005
July 2005

Apologies
Phil Hodkinson, Derek Netherton
Phil Hodkinson

The Audit Committee meets with executive Directors and
management, as well as privately with both the external
and internal auditors, and its responsibilities are to:

The Audit Committee annually reviews the auditors’
independence and the services being provided by the
external auditors. In order to ensure auditor objectivity
and independence, the Committee has established a
financial limit of £100,000 on the fees that can be paid to
the external auditors in respect of non-audit advice and
consultancy work.

• examine any matters relating to the financial affairs of
the Group, including reviewing and advising the
Board on the Company’s interim and annual financial
statements, its accounting policies and compliance with
accounting standards;
• review the nature and scope of the work to be
performed by the external auditors, the results of the
audit work and the responses of management;
• make recommendations on the appointment and
remuneration of the external auditors and to monitor
their performance;
• review any non-audit services provided by the external
auditors and to maintain responsibility for ensuring the
independence, cost effectiveness and objectivity of the
external auditors;
• monitor and oversee the Group’s internal control
procedures and risk management processes;
• approve the internal audit plan for the year and review
reports on the results of such internal audits including
the response of management;
• review the activities, resources, organisational structure
and operational effectiveness of the internal audit
function;
• receive reports from the internal audit function on the
adequacy and effectiveness of the Group’s control
framework;

Details of the amounts paid to the external auditors
during the year for audit and other services are set out
in the Notes to the Accounts on page 68.
Remuneration Committee
The Remuneration Committee comprises solely
independent non-executive Directors. The Committee,
chaired by Michael Sorkin, also comprises Derek Netherton
and Simon Gulliford. A summary of the terms of reference
of the Remuneration Committee is set out below:
• to determine all aspects of executive Director and
senior management remuneration;
• to determine the discretionary bonus scheme for
executive Directors and to review the performance of
the Directors against the scheme;
• to determine appropriate incentives to executive
Directors to encourage enhanced performance including
grants of options or awards of shares and determining
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the policy and performance conditions of such grants or
awards;
• to determine the policy for and scope of termination
payments and severance terms for executive Directors;
and
• to be responsible for selecting, appointing and setting
the terms of reference for any remuneration consultants
who advise the Committee.

of candidates were identified as potentially suitable and
following thorough interviewing and referencing, the
appointments were recommended to the Board by the
Committee. The Committee also considered succession
plans for the Board as a whole and senior management.
Meetings are held on an ad-hoc basis as issues arise and
resolutions were passed by written resolution where it
was impractical to convene a formal meeting. The
Committee held one formal meeting in 2005 and all
members were present.

Meetings are held on an ad-hoc basis as issues arise. The
Committee met four times during 2005 with all members
present, with the exception of Lord Weir who was unable
to attend one meeting in January 2005.

Risk Committee
The Risk Committee, comprising solely non-executive
Directors, is chaired by Mike Power and also comprises
Simon Gulliford and Roger Walsom. The Committee took
over and expanded the remit of the former Compliance
Committee, dealing with all risks affecting the Group.

Further details on the work of the Committee is set out in
the Remuneration Report on page 37.
Nomination Committee
The Nomination Committee is chaired by Mike Wilson
and also comprises Sarah Bates and Michael Sorkin.

The Committee’s main responsibilities are:

A summary of the terms of reference of the Committee is
set out below:

• to foster a culture of effective risk identification and
management throughout the Group;
• to review the material and emerging risks affecting the
Group and to call for reports from management on how
material risks are being managed;
• to report to the Audit Committee and the Board on any
material areas of concern or weakness identified by the
Committee;
• to review and approve the Group’s risk appetite
statement and risk policies;
• to carry out an annual review of the procedures for the
identification, recording and mitigation of material risks
across the Group; and
• to make recommendations for changes in risk related
practices or procedures.

• to review the structure, size and composition of the
Board and evaluate the balance of skills, knowledge and
experience required for a role and the preparation of
a description of any new role and the capabilities
required;
• to consider new appointments and to make
recommendations on suitable candidates to the Board; and
• to consider succession planning for senior executive
positions and the need for the progressive refreshing of
the Board.
During 2005 the Committee was actively involved in
planning and implementing the various changes to the
Board, including the appointments of Simon Gulliford,
Mike Power and Roger Walsom. For each non-executive
Director appointment (with the exception of John
Edwards, who was appointed under the terms of the
HBOS Relationship Agreement) a detailed specification of
the role and capabilities was prepared and this specification
was then passed to an external search agency to identify
potential candidates. As a result of this process, a number

During 2005 the Committee met five times and all
members were present with the exception of Charles
Bailey who was unable to attend the April 2005 meeting.
During the year, the Committee oversaw the
implementation of recommended actions arising from an
FSA risk visit in September 2004 and the FSA interim risk
assessment in March 2005. The Committee formally

31

206697 Report & Accounts Front

20/3/06

7:40 pm

Page 32

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
continued

considered and reviewed the material, emerging
and topical risks affecting the Group and received a
presentation from the Group Services business area on the
identification, management and mitigation of risks in that
area. The Committee reviewed at each meeting risk
reports from the Irish life company St. James's Place
International plc and also reviewed the way the business
implemented changes to its operations as a result of the
depolarisation changes introduced by the Financial
Services Authority.

Urgent Issues Committee
Comprising the Chairman or the Chief Executive and
at least two other Directors, one of whom must be a
non-executive Director, the role of the Urgent Issues
Committee is to make decisions on matters of urgency
which cannot await the next meeting of the Board. It can act
only by unanimous decision. If this cannot be reached, the
issue under consideration will be referred for decision to
the full Board. The Committee did not meet during 2005.
Directors’ and Officers’ Insurance
The Group has taken out insurance covering Directors
and officers against liabilities which they may incur in their
capacity as Directors or officers.

Investment Committee
The Investment Committee comprises Sir Mark Weinberg
(in the chair), Mark Lund and Sarah Bates and is responsible
for monitoring the performance and suitability of the
external fund managers, with assistance from investment
consultants Stamford Associates. It met six times during
2005. Its main responsibilities are:

Relations with Shareholders
The Board maintains close relationships with institutional
shareholders through dialogue and frequent meetings. In
addition, there are regular meetings with the Company’s
brokers, JPMorgan Cazenove and Dresdner Kleinwort
Wasserstein, who facilitate meetings with other investors
and their representatives. Attendance notes from such
meetings are circulated to members of the Board so they
are aware of the views of major shareholders. The Senior
Independent Director is available for consultation with
shareholders should the need arise. Non-executive
Directors are also available to meet with major
shareholders on request.

• to oversee the Group’s investment management
approach;
• to monitor the performance and suitability of the fund
managers and to ensure that they follow the terms of
their agreements with the Group;
• to make recommendations in relation to the appointment
or removal of fund managers;
• to oversee market risk; and
• to consider and make recommendations in relation to
the appointment and the continued effectiveness of the
investment consultant.

The Company’s Annual General Meeting is held in
London where members of the Board are available to
answer shareholders’ questions on the activities of the
Board and its Committees.Where possible, the timing and
location of the meeting is designed to encourage the
participation of small shareholders.

At the start of the year the Committee increased the
frequency of its meetings to give more time to both
strategic planning issues and longer in-depth meetings with
individual fund managers. During the year, apart from
monitoring and, where appropriate, changing specific fund
managers, the Committee devoted considerable time to
longer-term strategic wealth management issues. The
Committee is currently looking for a suitable replacement
for Ted Williams who has announced his intention to retire
from Schroders in the near future. A copy of the Report
of the Investment Committee 2005, which gives more
details on the work of the Investment Committee, can be
obtained by contacting the Company.

Relationship with HBOS plc
The Company and Halifax Group plc entered into a
Relationship Agreement in order to regulate the
relationship between the two companies after the
completion of the Partial Offer in June 2000. Following
the merger of Halifax and Bank of Scotland in 2001, the
Relationship Agreement was novated to HBOS plc.
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The principal purpose of the Relationship Agreement is to
ensure that the Company can operate independently of
the HBOS group and to provide that the relationship
between members of the HBOS group and the SJPC
Group will be conducted on an arm’s length basis. Under
the Agreement, HBOS has power to appoint a number of
Directors to the Board and its Committees. The number
varies in relation to HBOS’ shareholding in the Company
and HBOS currently has the right to appoint three nonexecutive Directors to the Board. As at the date of this
report, HBOS has appointed two non-executive Directors
to the SJPC Board, being James Crosby and John Edwards.

Group Risk Committee on how these risks and
vulnerabilities are being managed. The Internal Audit
function’s work plans are based on the key risks facing
the business, including any emerging risks. As new
procedures and working practices are adopted, risk
factors are considered and appropriate internal controls
are embedded into the Group’s management systems
wherever possible.
The Group’s senior management have clearly defined
responsibilities and accountabilities for managing specific
areas of risk and these are documented in individual
job descriptions. These are subject to frequent review
to ensure that they remain aligned with business
developments and any new or emerging risks. Adherence
to regulatory codes of conduct is required at all times and
the Board actively promotes a culture of quality and
integrity. In addition to these ongoing procedures,
the Audit Committee conducts an annual review that
considers the effectiveness of the Group’s systems of
internal control including financial, operational,
compliance and other risk management systems. The
review also includes the nature and scope of the ongoing
monitoring processes, including the effectiveness of the
internal audit function, and the potential impact on these
processes as a result of any changes during the year to the
risks that the Group is facing.

Going Concern
The Directors confirm that they are satisfied that the
Company and the Group have adequate resources to
continue in business for the foreseeable future. For this
reason, they continue to adopt the going concern basis in
preparing the accounts.
Risk Management and Internal Control
The Directors are responsible for the Group’s system
of internal control and for reviewing its effectiveness.
This includes a responsibility for financial, operational and
compliance controls in managing the risks inherent in
the business. The formally constituted Audit and Risk
Committees of the Board along with the appropriately
staffed and qualified Internal Audit, Risk Management
and Compliance functions support the Directors in the
discharge of these responsibilities.

When control issues of significance have occurred the
Audit Committee has received full and detailed reports
from management and internal audit, including proposals
for amending and strengthening the business systems
involved in line with the Group’s focus on continuous
improvement. Where appropriate, such cases have been
taken forward to the Board by the Chairman of the Audit
Committee for noting and discussion.

The Group has fully complied with provision C.2.1 of the
Code throughout the financial year and up to the date of
approval of the Annual Report and Accounts.
In accordance with the Turnbull Guidance on Internal
Control, the Directors and senior managers of the Group
are committed to maintaining a strong control culture
within all business areas and have established processes for
evaluating and managing the significant risks faced by the
Group. In particular, the Group’s senior management
adopts a risk management process that identifies the key
vulnerabilities and risks facing each business area and
reports, via Group Risk, to the Executive Committee and

In establishing the system of internal control, the
Directors have regard to materiality of relevant risk, the
likelihood of a risk occurring and the cost of mitigating
risk. It is therefore designed to manage, rather than
eliminate risk and as such can provide only reasonable
and not absolute assurance against the risk of material
misstatement or loss.
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In the Board’s view, the information it has received from
entity wide risk assessment, operational management, and
the reports issued by the internal auditors was sufficient
to enable it to review the effectiveness of the Company’s
system of internal control in accordance with the
Guidance for Directors on Internal Control (Turnbull).

The group financial statements are required by law and
IFRSs, as adopted by the EU, to present fairly the financial
position of the group; the Companies Act 1985 provides
that, in relation to such financial statements, references
that in the relevant part of that Act to financial statements
giving a true and fair view, are references to their
achieving a fair presentation.

Statement of Business Practice
To further the Group’s continued commitment to
Corporate Governance, the Company has published a
statement of business practice. This statement, in the
form of a booklet entitled “Our Approach”, is provided
to all employees and members of the St. James’s Place
Partnership and covers areas such as:

The parent company financial statements are required by
law to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the
parent company.
In preparing each of the group and parent company
financial statements, the Directors are required to:

• the Group’s objectives;
• the St. James’s Place brand and how its integrity and
value is maintained;
• the Group’s corporate culture and management style;
• how the Group deals with internal and external
communication; and
• the Group’s commitment to the St. James’s Place
Foundation, a charitable trust, more details of which
can be found on pages 19 and 20.

• select suitable accounting policies and then apply them
consistently;
• make judgements and estimates that are reasonable and
prudent;
• for the group financial statements, state whether they
have been prepared in accordance with IFRSs adopted
by the EU;
• for the parent company financial statements, state
whether applicable UK Accounting Standards have
been followed, subject to any material departures
disclosed and explained in the parent company financial
statements; and
• prepare the financial statements on the going concern
basis unless it is inappropriate to presume that the group
and the parent company will continue in business.

The booklet emphasises the values of integrity, trust,
openness, partnership and teamwork and is designed
to guide individual and corporate actions, decisions and
standards.
Statement of Directors’ Responsibilities in
Respect of the Report and Accounts
The Directors are responsible for preparing the
Report and Accounts in accordance with applicable law
and regulations.

The Directors are responsible for keeping proper accounting
records which disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time
the financial position of the parent company and enable them
to ensure that its financial statements comply with the
Companies Act 1985. They have general responsibility for
taking such steps as are reasonably open to them to safeguard
the assets of the group and to prevent and detect fraud and
other irregularities.

Company law requires the Directors to prepare group and
parent company financial statements for each financial
year. Under the law they are required to prepare
the group financial statements in accordance with
International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as
adopted by the EU and have elected to prepare the parent
company financial statements in accordance with UK
Accounting Standards.

The Directors have chosen to prepare supplementary
information in accordance with the European Embedded
Value Principles issued in May 2004 by the CFO Forum as
supplemented by the Additional Guidance on European
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Embedded Value Disclosures issued in October 2005 (“the
EEV Principles”). When compliance with the EEV
Principles is stated, those principles require the Directors
to prepare supplementary information in accordance with
the methodology contained in the EEV Principles and to
disclose and explain any non-compliance with the EEV
Guidance included in the EEV Principles.
In preparing the EEV supplementary information, the
Directors have:
• prepared the supplementary information in accordance
with the EEV Principles;
• identified and described the business covered by the EEV
Principles;
• applied the EEV Principles consistently to the covered
business;
• determined assumptions on a realistic basis, having regard
to past, current and expected future experience and to
any relevant external data, and then applied them
consistently; and
• made estimates that are reasonable and consistent.
Under applicable law and regulations, the Directors are
also responsible for preparing a Directors’ Report,
Directors’ Remuneration Report and the Corporate
Governance Statement that comply with that law and
those regulations.
The Directors are responsible for the maintenance
and integrity of the corporate and financial information
included on the Company’s website. Legislation in the
UK governing the preparation and dissemination of
financial statements may differ from legislation in
other jurisdictions.

35

206697 Report & Accounts Front

20/3/06

7:40 pm

Page 36

206697 Report & Accounts Front

20/3/06

7:40 pm

Page 37

R E M U N E R AT I O N
R E P O RT
THE DIRECTORS HAVE PLEASURE IN PRESENTING THEIR

31 DECEMBER 2005,
IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE COMPANIES ACT 1985.

REMUNERATION REPORT FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED

The Report will be put to shareholders for approval at the forthcoming AGM. It also contains
additional information required by the Listing Rules of the Financial Services Authority and by
the Combined Code referred to in the Corporate Governance Report on page 27.
The sections marked with an asterisk (“*”) have been audited by KPMG Audit Plc.
The Remuneration Committee
The Remuneration Committee (the “Committee”), on behalf of the Board, determines the
remuneration packages of the Chairman and executive Directors of the Company. The Committee
also monitors the remuneration of the senior management team and supervises the operation of the
executive long term incentive schemes.
At the beginning of the financial year, the Committee comprised The Viscount Weir as Chairman,
Derek Netherton, Charles Bailey and Michael Sorkin, all of whom were independent non-executive
Directors. During 2005,Viscount Weir and Charles Bailey retired from the Board. Simon Gulliford
joined the Committee following his appointment to the Board as an independent non-executive
Director and Michael Sorkin became Chairman of the Committee. Charles Bailey resigned as a
member of the Committee in September 2005. The membership and terms of reference of
the Committee are reviewed at least annually and the terms of reference are available on request
and on the Company’s website. Details of the number of meetings of the Committee during the year
can be found in the Corporate Governance Report on page 31.
The Company Secretary, Hugh Gladman, acts as Secretary to the Committee, providing advice on
corporate governance, legal and regulatory issues and the design and operation of the long term
incentive schemes. At the Committee’s request, Committee meetings are also attended by other
executives, in particular Mark Lund, the Chief Executive and Mike Wilson, the Chairman, who make
recommendations to the Committee regarding changes to the remuneration packages of individual
Directors or policy generally. Such recommendations are discussed by the Committee and adopted
or amended as the Committee sees fit. No Director is present at any part of a meeting of the
Committee when his own remuneration or contractual terms are being discussed.
The Committee also has access, as required, to professional advice and market data and this was
provided by New Bridge Street Consultants LLP (“NBSC”) in 2005. NBSC was appointed by
the Committee to provide advice on executive remuneration, long term incentives and other
remuneration issues and has not provided any other services to the Company.
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Remuneration Policy
The Committee applies the principles set out in the Combined Code when setting remuneration
policy. The remuneration policy for 2005 and future years, as approved by the Committee, is
designed to ensure that remuneration is sufficiently competitive to attract, retain and motivate
executive Directors of sufficient calibre to enable the Group to achieve its business objectives.
When looking at total remuneration (salary, pension, fringe benefits, annual bonus and long term
incentives), the Committee aims to set salary, pension and fringe benefits at around the median
position for companies of similar size in both the UK financial services market (although a cross
check is also made against companies of a similar size in other sectors), with significant annual
bonus and long term incentive awards enhancing an executive’s potential total remuneration, but
only if stretching short term and long term performance targets are achieved. In this way, the
Committee aims to incentivise the Directors to achieve above average results compared with
competitor organisations. The incentive schemes are designed to be retentive in nature as well as
linking the value of an award to movements in the share price, in line with shareholder interests.
Based on data provided by NBSC, the Committee considers that approximately 50% of executive
Director total remuneration is performance related.
The Chairman, Mike Wilson, is not entitled to participate in the annual bonus scheme. He does
however, participate in the long term incentive schemes, but on the basis that any shares in the
Company which vest to Mike Wilson will be retained by him until he ceases to be a Director of the
Company, less any shares required to meet a tax liability on vesting.
The Committee has followed the provisions of Schedule A to the Combined Code in designing
schemes of performance-related remuneration. Further details of all of the above elements of
remuneration are set out below.
Salaries
Salaries are reviewed annually in January, using data on the salaries and benefits for executives of
other financial services groups and companies in other sectors of a comparable size to the Company.
The Committee carried out a full review of the salaries of all the executive Directors in February
2006, with the help of data provided by NBSC. As stated above, the Committee aimed to set
salary levels at around the median position for companies of a similar size in both the UK financial
services market (with a cross check with other sectors) with adjustments then being made to take
into account the responsibility and accountabilities of each role, the experience of the relevant
individual and any other relevant factors. On this basis, the Committee approved the following
salary increases for the executive Directors with effect from 1 January 2006, with a view to the
executive Directors fixed benefits (salary, pension and fringe benefits) when taken together
representing around 90-95% of the median, based on the comparator data provided by NBSC.

Mark Lund
David Bellamy
Ian Gascoigne
Andrew Croft

New Salary
£425,000
£280,000
£280,000
£258,000

Previous Salary
£380,000
£250,000
£250,000
£230,000

No change was made to Mike Wilson’s salary of £500,000 per annum.
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The salary increases have been determined after recognising the need to increase salary levels so as
to provide broadly competitive fixed benefits. The increases also recognise the development of the
executive Directors and their performance over the years.
Annual Bonus
For 2006, as in previous years, the Committee has determined that the maximum annual bonus will
be 120% of salary, with half of any bonus earned payable in cash, the remainder being invested in
SJPC shares and deferred for 3 years.The performance targets set by the Committee are based on a
sliding scale, to progressively reward incremental performance. The range of operating profit before
tax for the 2006 bonus represents a significant increase from the actual level of operating profit
before tax in 2005 and the maximum bonus has been calibrated to ensure that it will only be payable
if the Committee considers that “outstanding” performance has been achieved by the Group and
also by the individual Director concerned.
Taking the cash and shares element of the bonus together, up to 80% of salary will be awarded by
reference to the performance of the Group, largely based on growth in European Embedded Value
operating profit before tax and net growth in the sales force, although the Committee retains the
discretion to amend the bonus, up or down, to take into account other relevant factors such as the
Group’s performance compared with competitor organisations, regulatory issues and completion of
other business plan objectives. Up to a further 40% of salary will be awarded by reference to
individual performance and the achievement of personal objectives set at the start of the year.
No executive Director has a contractual right to receive an annual bonus award. The satisfaction of
the targets is assessed by reference to the Company’s internal management information systems
verified by the Committee, which the Committee believes is the most appropriate method, given
the internal nature of the performance targets. Mike Wilson does not participate in the annual
bonus scheme.
The Committee believes that the annual bonus scheme is an effective incentive for the executive
Directors, whilst at the same time offering strong retentive characteristics through the deferred
element, as well as being aligned with shareholder interests due to the value of the deferred element
of the award on vesting being dependent on share price performance.
Long Term Incentive Schemes
All UK employees of the Group, including the executive Directors, are eligible to enter into a Save
As You Earn (SAYE) contract, under which they are able to save up to £250 per month, and at the
end of the 3 or 5 year savings period acquire shares in the Company at a price not less than 80 per
cent of the market price at the date of the invitation to participate.
Since 1997 the Company operated a discretionary share option scheme for executive Directors
and senior employees under which options were granted at market value. At the Annual General
Meeting in 2005, shareholders approved a new Performance Share Plan (PSP). This enabled the
Committee to make awards of performance shares to the executive Directors for the first time in
2005, rather than grants of share options. The Committee also adopted shareholding guidelines
for the executive Directors in 2005 whereby as and when awards vest under the PSP or other long
term incentive schemes, the Directors are required to retain shares to the value of 100% of their
salary, less any shares required to pay any tax liability which arises on vesting.
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The Committee believes that PSP awards act as a better incentive mechanism for the executive
Directors and senior management and are also more retentive, whilst at the same time reducing the
accounting costs which would otherwise have been incurred by continuing with share option grants.
The Committee reviewed the grant levels and the performance condition in January 2006 and
decided to continue with the existing policy of making annual PSP awards to the executive Directors
with a value of 150% of base salary subject to the same mix of EPS and TSR performance conditions
as in 2005. Awards vest after three years subject to the achievement of a performance condition.
For the PSP awards made in 2006, two-thirds of the shares are subject to an earnings growth
condition and one-third of the shares are subject to a comparative Total Shareholder Return (“TSR”)
condition, both measured over a single three-year period. The Committee believes that this provides
an appropriate balance of targets that both incentivise the executives whilst also keeping their
interests aligned with those of shareholders.
Earnings per share is calculated by reference to adjusted consolidated profit after tax on the
European Embedded Value (EEV) basis of accounting for both the life and unit trust businesses
(on a fully diluted per share basis). The adjustment to the consolidated after tax figures will be to
strip out any earnings from Life Assurance Holding Corporation (an investment that has been
sold), the EEV investment variance and any economic assumption change. Shareholders will
appreciate that these factors are not within the control of management, with the latter two factors
combined producing wide variations in reported earnings due to stock market fluctuations.
For the awards made in 2006, the two-thirds of the shares based on earnings will vest if the
following growth targets are achieved:
Average annual earnings growth
Below RPI + 8%
RPI + 8%
RPI + 18% or more
Between the above points

Proportion exercisable
Zero
25%
100%
Pro rata between 25% and 100%

A consistent approach will be taken to measuring earnings over any transition period to international
accounting standards.
Shareholders will note that the above scale from RPI + 8% to 18% represents a lower range of
numbers than the earnings condition for awards made in 2005. However, in the last Remuneration
Report the Committee stated as follows:

“ The Committee has set out the initial earnings targets, taking into account the relatively low base point from
where the growth targets will be measured. The Committee will ensure that appropriately demanding targets
are set for each award but recognises that this level of growth is unlikely to be appropriate for subsequent awards
if profitability recovers strongly and earnings are measured from a much higher base point”.
Shareholders will be aware that profitability did recover strongly in 2005 and therefore it was
appropriate to lower the earnings scale in 2005, although the Committee believes the revised
earnings condition is equally demanding.
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For the awards made in 2006, the one third of shares based on TSR will vest (as for awards made in
2005) as follows:
Company’s ranking compared
to comparator group # at end
of performance period
Below median
Median
Upper quartile
Between the above points

Proportion exercisable

Zero
25%
100%
Pro rata

Details of the awards made under the PSP are set out on page 45.

# The comparator group comprises: Aberdeen Asset Management, AMVESCAP, Aviva, Bradford & Bingley,
Close Brothers, F&C Asset Management, Friends Provident, Henderson Group, Investec, Legal & General, New
Star Asset Management, Old Mutual, Prudential, Rathbone Brothers, Resolution, Royal & SunAlliance,
Schroders.These companies were selected by the Committee as a result of having business interests comparable
to those of the St. James’s Place Group.
Pension and Death in Service Benefits
In 2005 employer contributions of 17.5% of base salary were made to the money purchase section
of the Group’s occupational pension scheme for the executive Directors, with the exception of
Mark Lund who received a contribution of 15% of base salary due to his shorter period of
service with the Group.
The Committee reviewed its policy on pensions in the light of A Day and decided to make no changes
to the structure of the pension arrangements for the executive Directors (no current executive
Directors are affected by the Lifetime Allowance). However, the comparative data from NBSC
showed that the executive Directors were well behind the median position compared to the
comparator group and therefore with effect from 1 January 2006 it was decided to increase the
employer pension contribution for the executive Directors to 20% of base salary. As noted in the
policy section, this level of pension benefits, taken together with benefits and base salary levels for
2006, provides for fixed elements of pay to be positioned at around 90% of the median of the data
provided by NBSC.
The costs of the pension and death in service arrangements for the executive Directors during the
year ended 31 December 2005 are shown on pages 44 and 45.
Service Agreements
It is the Committee’s policy that service agreements should generally terminate on the executive’s
60th birthday and should not contain notice periods in excess of one year.The terms and conditions
of the Directors’ service agreements are reviewed regularly and all service agreements contain an
express obligation on the executive to mitigate his loss in the event the agreement is terminated.
In addition, the Company reserves the right to pay an amount representing the value of salary and
benefits in lieu of any outstanding period of notice on a monthly basis so that, should the executive
obtain alternative employment during the notice period, the monthly payments can be reduced to
take into account any earnings received under the new employment.
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When considering the size of any proposed termination payment, the Committee would take into
account a number of factors including the health, length of service, age and the performance of the
relevant executive, including the duty to mitigate his own loss, with a broad aim to avoid rewarding
poor performance while dealing fairly with cases where the departure is due to other reasons, for
example illness.
All of the executive Directors have entered into a service agreement with the Company. Each
service agreement can be terminated, inter alia, by either party giving the other not less than
twelve months’ written notice. The agreements automatically terminate on the 60th birthday of
the executive, except that for Mike Wilson his contract terminates on 5 December 2008 (or
such later date as the parties shall agree). All the service agreements provide for benefits in
kind, including life assurance, pension provision, private health insurance and a company car.
Mike Wilson is also entitled to a chauffeur.
Further details of the service agreements of the executive Directors are provided below:
Executive

Mike Wilson
Mark Lund
David Bellamy
Ian Gascoigne
Andrew Croft

Date of contract

Base salary
£

Date contract
automatically
terminates

15 May 2002
16 July 2003
15 April 2002
19 March 2003
1 April 2005

500,000
425,000
280,000
280,000
258,000

5 December 2008
1 July 2017
15 April 2013
7 July 2016
11 June 2024

Currently, no executive Director acts as a non-executive Director on the Board of another company.
Non-Executive Directors
The remuneration of the non-executive Directors is determined by the Board as a whole, within
the limits set by the provisions of the Articles of Association.A basic annual fee of £20,000 per annum
is paid to the non-executive Directors, with additional fees being paid in respect of Board Committee
and other responsibilities. The Board reviewed the fees paid to the non-executive Directors in
January 2006, in light of the increase in the number of Board and Committee meetings and increased
responsibilities due to the new Combined Code and other corporate governance changes.
Set out below are the annual fees paid to the non-executive Directors in 2005 and those currently
payable in relation to 2006:
Director

Sarah Bates
James Crosby#
John Edwards
Simon Gulliford
Derek Netherton
Mike Power
Michael Sorkin
Roger Walsom

2005 fee
£

Annual fee 2006
£

Date of Letter
of Appointment

Year of
re-election at AGM

30,000
20,000
20,000
32,500
37,500
45,000
35,000
30,000

32,500
20,000
20,000
32,500
37,500
45,000
37,500
30,000

26 July 2004
19 June 2000
27 July 2005
11 April 2005
15 Mar 1999
22 April 2005
16 Oct 2001
22 July 2005

2008
2007
2006
2008
2006
2006
2008
2006

Notes:
(i)
Fees to Directors marked with # are payable directly to HBOS plc.
(ii) Fees paid to Directors who left during 2005 are set out on page 44.
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The non-executive Directors do not have service contracts or any benefits in kind arrangements and
do not participate in any of the Group’s pension or long term incentive arrangements.The term of
the appointment of each non-executive Director (other than those appointed by HBOS plc pursuant
to the Relationship Agreement described more fully on pages 32 and 33) is for 3 years, terminating
on the date on which the non-executive Director is required to retire by rotation at the AGM,
at which time the appointment will be reviewed by the Board. Any period of service longer than six
years is subject to particularly rigorous review by the Nominations Committee of the Board.
Performance Graph
The graph below, prepared in accordance with the Companies Act 1985, shows a comparison of
the Company’s TSR performance against the FTSE All-Share index over the last five financial years.
The Company considers this to be the most appropriate comparative index, given the broad nature
of the index and the companies within it.

The graph below shows a comparison of the Company’s TSR performance against the FTSE All-Share
index since July 1997, when the Company restructured and changed its focus to concentrate on its
wealth management business.
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Directors’ Remuneration*
Total Directors’ remuneration for the year ended 31 December 2005 is shown below, with comparative
figures for the year ended 31 December 2004:
Year Ended
31 December 2005
£

Year Ended
31 December 2004
£

312,788

211,411

3,017,873

2,619,364

19,942

-

262,750
3,613,353

205,010
3,035,785

Aggregate emoluments
Fees to non-executive Directors
Emoluments to executive Directors
Aggregate gains on exercise of share options
Company contributions to money
purchase pension schemes – see note (iii) to the table below

The following table, which has been prepared in accordance with regulatory requirements, sets out
the elements of Directors’ aggregate emoluments for the year ended 31 December 2005 or for the
period ended 31 December 2005 if appointed during the year.
Director

Charles Bailey
Sarah Bates
David Bellamy
Andrew Croft
James Crosby
John Edwards
Ian Gascoigne
Simon Gulliford
Phil Hodkinson
Anthony Loehnis
Mark Lund
Derek Netherton
Mike Power
Michael Sorkin
Grenville Turner
Roger Walsom
The Viscount Weir
Mike Wilson

Salaries
& Fees

Bonus

Deferred
Bonus

Death In
2005
Service
Aggregate
& Other Emoluments
Benefits

2004
Aggregate
Emoluments

£

£

£

£

£

£

39,375
31,592
250,000
230,000
20,000
8,819
250,000
20,739
16,776
29,454
380,000
37,500
28,681
34,780
11,185
13,322
20,565
500,000

137,500
126,500
137,500
209,000
-

137,500
126,500
137,500
209,000
-

32,700
29,335
29,753
57,769
37,316

39,375
31,592
557,700
512,335
20,000
8,819
554,753
20,739
16,776
29,454
855,769
37,500
28,681
34,780
11,185
13,322
20,565
537,316

30,000
6,667
389,696
236,552
15,000
403,825
20,000
37,500
599,021
30,000
20,000
15,000
27,500
801,834

Notes:
(i)
Death in service and other benefits comprise the cost of life assurance, entitlement to company car or cash equivalent, fuel,
private health care, life and critical illness cover and are generally the amounts which are returned for taxation purposes.
(ii) The fees in respect of the services of James Crosby, John Edwards, Phil Hodkinson and Grenville Turner were paid directly
to HBOS plc.
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(iii)

(iv)

Company contributions to money purchase pension schemes for David Bellamy, Andrew Croft, Ian Gascoigne, Mark Lund
and Mike Wilson were £43,750, £40,250, £43,750, £47,500 and £87,500 respectively. No other Directors had any such
contributions made on their behalf.
For the annual discretionary bonus in 2005, executive Directors could earn up to 80% of salary by reference to Group
performance based on growth in operating profit and other business plan targets set at the start of the year. A further
payment of up to 40% of salary could be earned by reference to individual performance, based on personal objectives set
at the start of the year and the executive’s performance generally in 2005. On this basis, the Committee awarded a bonus
of 110% of salary to each of the executive Directors, 50% of which was payable in cash and the remaining 50% used to
purchase deferred shares which vest in 3 years. Further details of the annual bonus scheme can be found on page 39.

Share Awards
The tables below set out details of share awards that have been granted to individuals who were
Directors during 2005 and which had yet to vest at some point during the year.
Performance Share Plan – awards held during 2005*
Director

David Bellamy
Andrew Croft
Ian Gascoigne
Mark Lund
Mike Wilson

Balance at
1 January
2005

Granted
in year

-

170,648
156,996
170,648
259,385
341,296

Exercised
Balance at
in year 31 December
2005

-

170,648
156,996
170,648
259,385
341,296

Date from
which
exercisable

Expiry
date

17 May 2008
17 May 2008
17 May 2008
17 May 2008
17 May 2008

17 Nov 2008
17 Nov 2008
17 Nov 2008
17 Nov 2008
17 Nov 2008

Notes:
(i)
These awards were made on 17 May 2005 when the share price was £2.1775. The awards are exercisable, subject to
satisfaction of the performance condition on 17 May 2008. The performance period is the 3 year period ending on
31 December 2007.
(ii) For awards made in 2005, the performance condition relates to EPS for two-thirds of the award and TSR for one-third of
the award, as more fully described on page 40, except that for 2005 awards the EPS scale starts at RPI + 12.5% for 25%
of the award to vest and ends at RPI + 22.5% for 100% of the award to vest, with pro-rata vesting between the said points.

Deferred Bonus Scheme – shares held during 2005*
The table below sets out details of the awards held by the Directors under the deferred element of
the annual bonus scheme during 2005:
Director

David Bellamy
Andrew Croft
Ian Gascoigne
Mark Lund
Mike Wilson

Balance as at
1 January 2005

36,371
15,477
33,673
78,583

Released
during
year (i)

Granted
during
year (ii)

8,108
6,756
18,081

30,371
33,057
31,818
50,619
65,082

Balance as at
31 December
2005 (iii)

58,634
48,534
58,735
50,619
125,584

Notes:
(i)
Following the end of the restricted period, these shares were released to the Directors on 12 May 2005.These shares were
originally awarded on 2 April 2002 when the share price was £2.775.The share price on 12 May 2005 was £2.23.
(ii) Share awards were granted on 29 March 2005, equal in value to the 2004 annual cash bonus.These shares will be held in
trust for a restricted period ending on 29 March 2008. The share price on 29 March 2005 was £2.42.
(iii) Outstanding awards at the year end relate to share awards granted in 2005 (see (ii)) and 2004 (where the restricted period
ends on 30 March 2007). The share price at the date of award for the 2004 grant (30 March 2004) was £1.8575.
(iv) No award under the deferred bonus scheme was made to the executive Directors in 2003. Further details of the deferred element
of the annual bonus scheme are set out on page 39.
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Executive Share Option Schemes – options held during 2005*
Details of the options held by the Directors in 2005 under the Company’s executive scheme (together
with any outstanding options held under the previous scheme operated by St. James’s Place Wealth
Management Group plc) and any movements during the year are as follows:
Director

Options
held at
1 January
2005

Granted
in year

Exercised
in year

Options
held at
31 December
2005

Exercise
price

Date from
which
exercisable

Expiry
date

David Bellamy

375,000

-

-

375,000

£1.33

13 July 2007

Andrew Croft

131,250
353,932
176,470
57,419

-

-

353,932
176,470
57,419

£2.40
£0.89
£1.781/2
£1.331/2

30,000
25,000
144,351
134,453
9,188
208,434

-

9,188
-

30,000
25,000
144,351
134,453
208,434

£1.45
£1.45
£1.191/2
£1.781/2
1.71p
£1.33

109,375
337,078
184,873
750,000
758,426
378,151

-

-

337,078
184,873
750,000
758,426
378,151

£2.40
£0.89
£1.781/2
£1.781/2
£0.89
£1.781/2

1 July 2001
to 1 July 2003
23 May 2005
10 Mar 2006
27 Feb 2007
1 July 2002
to 30 June 2003
15 Mar 2007
28 Feb 2006
6 June 2006
27 Feb 2007
19 Jan 2003
1 July 2002
to 1 July 2003
23 May 2005
10 Mar 2006
27 Feb 2007
27 Feb 2007
10 Mar 2006
27 Feb 2007

Ian Gascoigne

Mark Lund
Mike Wilson

23 May 2012
10 Mar 2013
27 Feb 2014
13 July 2007
15 Mar 2012
13 Dec 2010
6 June 2013
27 Feb 2014
19 Jan 2006
13 July 2007
23 May 2012
10 Mar 2013
27 Feb 2014
27 Feb 2014
10 Mar 2013
27 Feb 2014

Notes:
(i)
On 1 March 2005, the options granted to David Bellamy and Ian Gascoigne on 23 May 2002 to acquire 131,250 and
109,375 shares respectively at an exercise price of £2.40 per share, lapsed in accordance with the Scheme rules as a result
of the performance condition which applied to these options not being met.
(ii) On 13 May 2005, Ian Gascoigne exercised options over 9,188 at an exercise price of 1.71 pence per share. The market
price of the shares on 13 May 2005 was £2.1875.The aggregate gain on the exercise of these options was £19,942.
(iii) The exercise price corresponds with the market price (as defined in the Scheme rules) on the date on which the options were
granted. At 31 December 2005 the mid market price for SJPC shares was £2.68. The range of prices between 1 January
2005 and 31 December 2005 was between £2.10 and £2.76.
(iv) For options granted prior to 2004 to be exercisable requires the Company to have satisfied a performance target based on
growth in operating profit of at least RPI plus 5% per annum over a 3 year period. For options granted in 2004, the
Company’s EPS must have grown by an average annual rate of RPI + 3% to 5% over a fixed 3 year period for 33.33% to
100% of the options to be exercisable.
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SAYE Share Option Schemes – options held during 2005*
Details of the options held by the Directors in 2005 under the SAYE scheme and the equivalent
predecessor scheme are as follows:
Director

David Bellamy
Andrew Croft
Ian Gascoigne
Mark Lund
Mike Wilson

Options
held at
1 January
2005

Granted
in year

Exercised
in year

Options
held at
31 December
2005

Exercise
price

Date from
which
exercisable

Expiry
date

22,812
13,125
13,125
11,354
22,812

-

-

22,812
13,125
13,125
11,354
22,812

£0.72
£0.72
£0.72
£1.44
£0.72

1 May 2008
1 May 2006
1 May 2006
1 May 2009
1 May 2008

31 Oct 2008
31 Oct 2006
31 Oct 2006
31 Oct 2009
31 Oct 2008

Share Interests
St. James’s Place Capital plc*
The interests of Directors in the share capital of the Company as at the beginning of the year, or as at
the date of appointment, if applicable, and as at 31 December 2005, or as at the date of resignation,
if applicable, are given below:
31 December 2005††
Ordinary Shares of
15 pence each
Director
Charles Bailey††
Sarah Bates
David Bellamy
Andrew Croft
James Crosby
John Edwards†
Ian Gascoigne
Simon Gulliford†
Phil Hodkinson††
Anthony Loehnis††
Mark Lund
Derek Netherton
Mike Power†
Michael Sorkin
Grenville Turner††
The Viscount Weir††
Roger Walsom†
Mike Wilson

1 January 2005†
Ordinary Shares of
15 pence each

Beneficial

Non-Beneficial

Beneficial

Non-Beneficial

14,490
13,500
464,859
52,534
201,986
6,062
73,199
10,000
1,277
3,625,584

238,100
30,000
750,000

14,490
442,596
19,477
197,736
6,062
22,580
10,000
1,277
5,078,583

238,100
750,000

† or date of appointment
†† or date of resignation
Notes:
(i)
The beneficial interests of the executive Directors set out above include deferred bonus scheme awards held in trust for
the Directors, details of which are set out on page 39.
(ii) The Company’s register of Directors’ interests contains full details of Directors’ shareholdings and any share awards under
the Company’s various share schemes.
Between 31 December 2005 and 27 February 2006 there were no transactions in the Company’s shares by Directors.
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REMUNERATION REPORT
continued

Dilution
Dilution limits agreed by shareholders at the time of shareholder approval of the various long term
incentive schemes allow for the following:
• up to 5% of share capital in ten years to be used for grants to employees under discretionary schemes;
• up to 10% of share capital in ten years to be used for grants to employees under all employee share
schemes; and
• up to 15% of share capital in ten years to be used for grants to employees and members of the
St. James’s Place Partnership (the Group’s salesforce) under all share schemes i.e. both the
employee and ‘Partner’ share schemes. This increased limit reflects the unique structure of the
business and the importance of the Partnership to the ongoing success of the Group.
The table below sets out, as at 31 December 2005, the number of new ordinary shares in the
Company which have been issued, or are capable of being issued (subject to the satisfaction of any
applicable performance conditions) as a result of options or awards granted under the various long
term incentive schemes operated by the Company in the last 10 years.
Share Scheme

Number of new
ordinary shares
of 15 pence each

% of total issued
share capital
as at 31 December 2005

SAYE schemes
Executive Share Option schemes
Partners Share Option schemes

4,255,415
11,135,376
48,317,943

0.95%
2.49%
10.80%

Total:

63,708,734

14.24%

HBOS plc*
The Directors had no interests in the share capital of HBOS plc as at 31 December 2005 except for
the beneficial interests given below:

Director

James Crosby
John Edwards†
Ian Gascoigne
Mark Lund
Mike Wilson

31 December 2005
Ordinary Shares of
25 pence each

1 January 2005†
Ordinary Shares of
25 pence each

284,758
955
3,500
474
1,500

279,407
614
3,500
455
1,500

† or date of appointment
Between 31 December 2005 and 27 February 2006 there have been no transactions in shares of
HBOS plc by Directors.
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REMUNERATION REPORT
continued

Interests in Shares Held in Trusts
Certain executive Directors and employees are deemed to have an interest or a potential interest as
potential discretionary beneficiaries under the SJPC Employees Share Trust. As such, they were
treated as at 31 December 2005 as being interested in 5,815,578 ordinary shares of 15p held by
S G Hambros Trust Company (Guernsey) Limited, the trustee of that trust.
This report was approved by the Board of Directors and signed on its behalf by

Michael Sorkin
Chairman, Remuneration Committee
27 February 2006
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
TO THE MEMBERS OF ST. JAMES’S PLACE CAPITAL PLC

We have audited the group financial statements of St. James’s Place Capital plc on pages 53 to 102 for the
year ended 31 December 2005 which comprise the Group Income Statement, the Group Balance Sheet,
the Group Cash Flow Statement, the Group Statement of Changes in Shareholders’ Equity and the related
notes.These financial statements have been prepared under the accounting policies set out therein.
We have reported separately on the parent company financial statements of St. James’s Place Capital plc
for the year ended 31 December 2005 and on the information in the Directors’ Remuneration Report
that is described as having been audited.
This report is made solely to the company’s members, as a body, in accordance with section 235 of the
Companies Act 1985. Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the company’s
members those matters we are required to state to them in an auditor’s report and for no other
purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone
other than the company and the company’s members as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or
for the opinions we have formed.
Respective responsibilities of directors and auditors
The directors’ responsibilities for preparing the Report and Accounts and the group financial
statements in accordance with applicable law and International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs)
as adopted by the EU are set out in the Statement of Directors’ Responsibilities on page 34.
Our responsibility is to audit the group financial statements in accordance with relevant legal and
regulatory requirements and International Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland).
We report to you our opinion as to whether the group financial statements give a true and fair view
and whether the group financial statements have been properly prepared in accordance with the
Companies Act 1985 and Article 4 of the IAS Regulation.We also report to you if, in our opinion, the
Directors’ Report is not consistent with the group financial statements, if the company has not kept
proper records, if we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit, or
if information specified by law regarding directors’ remuneration and other transactions is not disclosed.
We review whether the Corporate Governance Statement reflects the company’s compliance with
the nine provisions of the 2003 FRC Combined Code specified for our review by the Listing Rules of
the Financial Services Authority, and we report if it does not.We are not required to consider whether
the board’s statements on internal control cover all risks and controls, or form an opinion on the
effectiveness of the group’s corporate governance procedures or its risk and control procedures.
We read other information contained in the Report and Accounts and consider whether it is consistent
with the audited group financial statements. We consider the implications for our report if we become
aware of any apparent misstatements or material inconsistencies with the financial statements. Our
responsibilities do not extend to any other information.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
TO THE MEMBERS OF ST. JAMES’S PLACE CAPITAL PLC
continued

Basis of audit opinion
We conducted our audit in accordance with International Accounting Standards on Auditing (UK
and Ireland) issued by the Auditing Practices Board. An audit includes examination, on a test basis, of
evidence relevant to the amounts and disclosures in the group financial statements. It also includes an
assessment of the significant estimates and judgments made by the directors in the preparation of the
group financial statements, and of whether the accounting policies are appropriate to the group’s
circumstances, consistently applied and adequately disclosed.
We planned and performed our audit so as to obtain all the information and explanations which we
considered necessary in order to provide us with sufficient evidence to give reasonable assurance that
the group financial statements are free from material misstatement, whether caused by fraud or other
irregularity or error. In forming our opinion, we also evaluated the overall adequacy of the presentation
of information in the group financial statements.
Opinion
In our opinion:
• the group financial statements give a true and fair view, in accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the
EU, of the state of the group’s affairs as at 31 December 2005 and of its profit for the year then ended;
• the group financial statements have been properly prepared in accordance with the Companies Act
1985 and Article 4 of the IAS Regulation.
KPMG Audit Plc
Chartered Accountants
Registered Auditor
London
27 February 2006
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CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT

Note
Insurance premium revenue
Less premiums ceded to reinsurers

Year Ended
31 December
2005

Year Ended
31 December
2004

£’ Million

£’ Million

104.6
(31.2)

108.5
(27.2)

Net insurance premium revenue

73.4

81.3

Fee and commission income

82.4

62.7

9.5
1,812.0

28.0
819.5

1,821.5

847.5

Profit on sale of investment in
Life Assurance Holding Corporation
Other investment return

4

Total investment income
Other operating income
Net income

3

1.9

1.5

1,979.2

993.0

Policy claims and benefits
Gross amount
Reinsurers’ share

(60.9)
26.2

(59.8)
21.7

Net policyholder claims and benefits incurred

(34.7)

(38.1)

Change in insurance contract liabilities
Gross amount
Reinsurers’ share

(75.4)
9.2

(10.5)
(6.9)

Net change in insurance contract liabilities

(66.2)

(17.4)

(1,480.9)

(647.5)

(218.8)
(48.4)
(3.1)

(179.2)
(49.8)
(3.0)

(270.3)

(232.0)

127.1

58.0

Investment contract benefits
Fees, commission and other acquisition costs
Administration expenses
Other operating expenses
5
Operating profit
Financing costs

-

(1.2)

Profit before tax

3

127.1

56.8

Tax on policyholders’ return
Tax on shareholders’ return
Total tax expense

7
7
7

(83.9)
4.4
(79.5)

(22.4)
5.3
(17.1)

47.6

39.7

12.7

11.8

Pence

Pence

1.30
1.85

1.25
1.60

3.15

2.85

10.8
10.3

9.1
8.8

Profit for period attributable to shareholders
Dividends

8

Dividend per share
Interim dividend
Proposed final dividend

8
8

Total
Basic earnings per share
Diluted earnings per share

9
9

The notes and information on pages 58 to 102 form part of these accounts.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

Year Ended
31 December
2005

Year Ended
31 December
2004

£’ Million

£’ Million

Opening equity shareholders’ funds

222.2

181.6

Profit for the financial period, being total
recognised income for the financial period

47.6

39.7

(12.7)

(11.8)

8.4
6.5

8.0
3.8

(0.5)

(1.4)

3.0

2.3

Net increase to shareholders’ funds

52.3

40.6

Closing equity shareholders’ funds

274.5

222.2

Dividends
Issue of share capital
Scrip dividend
Exercise of share options
Consideration paid for own shares
P & L reserve credit in respect of share option charges

The notes and information on pages 58 to 102 form part of these accounts.

54

206697 Report & Accounts Front

20/3/06

7:40 pm

Page 55

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET AT 31 DECEMBER

Assets
Intangible assets
Deferred acquisition costs
Acquired value of in-force business
Property & equipment
Deferred tax assets
Investment property
Investments
Equities
Fixed income securities
Investment in Collective Investment Schemes
Currency forwards
Reinsurance assets
Insurance contract receivables
Income tax assets
Other receivables
Cash & cash equivalents

2005

2004

Note

£’ Million

£’ Million

10
10

325.0
67.4
392.4
5.9
70.5
319.4

294.4
70.5
364.9
6.9
54.9
129.8

7,317.3
573.1
583.0
0.2
77.9
15.1
21.0
97.1
1,337.7

5,637.9
656.3
381.4
0.2
70.3
8.5
7.8
89.9
897.2

10,810.6

8,306.0

19
20

430.6
9.6

351.3
17.7

21
22

9,411.9
17.2
2.5
212.6
8.9
19.5
249.7
9.9
71.4
92.3

7,192.2
22.4
6.6
124.8
11.3
11.2
231.8
5.1
51.2
58.2

10,536.1

8,083.8

274.5

222.2

67.1
29.6
(8.7)
186.5

65.9
15.9
(8.4)
148.8

11
12
13

16
17
18

Total assets
Liabilities
Insurance contract liability provisions
Other provisions
Financial liabilities
Investment contracts
Borrowings
Currency forwards
Deferred tax liabilities
Reinsurance payables
Payables related to direct insurance contracts
Deferred income
Income tax liabilities
Other payables
Net asset value attributable to unit holders

23
16
24
25
15

Total liabilities
Net assets
Shareholders’ equity
Share capital
Share premium
Other reserves
Retained earnings

27
29
29
29

Total shareholders’ equity
Net assets per share

274.5

222.2

Pence

Pence

61.4

50.6

The financial statements on pages 53 to 102 were approved by the Board of Directors on 27 February 2006 and signed
on its behalf by:

M Lund
Chief Executive

A Croft
Finance Director

The notes and information on pages 58 to 102 form part of these accounts.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

Cash generated from operations

Year Ended
31 December
2005

Year Ended
31 December
2004

Note

£’ Million

£’ Million

30

445.1

Interest paid
Income taxes (paid) / received

(2.4)

Net cash from operating activities

442.7

Cash flows from investing activities
Acquisition of property, plant and equipment
Proceeds from sale of plant and equipment
Investments:
Proceeds from sale

(89.6)
(1.2)
2.9
(87.9)

(1.9)
0.2

(3.1)
0.3

3.8

64.4

2.1

61.6

Cash flows from financing activities
Proceeds from the issue of share capital
Consideration paid for own shares
Repayment of borrowings
Dividends paid

5.7
(0.5)
(5.2)
(4.3)

3.7
(1.4)
(31.2)
(3.8)

Net cash from financing activities

(4.3)

(32.7)

Net cash from investing activities

Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents

440.5

(59.0)

Cash and cash equivalents at 1 January

897.2

956.2

1,337.7

897.2

Cash and cash equivalents at 31 December
The notes and information on pages 58 to 102 form part of these accounts.
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NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS

1. ACCOUNTING P OLICIES
St. James’s Place Capital plc (“the Company”) is a company incorporated and domiciled in England and Wales.
Statement of Compliance
The group financial statements consolidate those of the Company and its subsidiaries (together referred to as the “Group”).
The group financial statements have been prepared and approved by the Directors in accordance with International
Financial Reporting Standards as adopted by the EU (“adopted IFRSs”).The Group has applied all IFRSs and
interpretations adopted by the EU including all amendments to existing standards that are not effective until later
accounting periods, except for the following:

• Amendments to IAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements (Capital Disclosures)
• IFRS 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures
The effective date for both this amendment and the new standard is 1 January 2007, and it is likely that further
disclosures will be required when the standards are applied.
The group financial statements also comply with the revised Statement of Recommended Practice issued by the
Association of British Insurers in December 2005 in so far as these requirements do not contradict IFRS requirements.
The Group is preparing its financial statements in accordance with IFRS as adopted for use in the EU for the first
time and consequently has applied IFRS 1. An explanation of how the transition to adopted IFRSs has affected the
reported financial position, financial performance and cash flows of the Group is provided in note 35.
Basis of Preparation
The financial statements are presented in pounds sterling, rounded to the nearest one hundred thousand pounds.They
are prepared on a historical cost basis except for assets classified as investment property, investments and currency
forwards, which are held at fair value.
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with IFRSs requires management to make judgments, estimates
and assumptions that affect the application of policies and reported amounts of assets and liabilities, assets and
expenses.The estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical experience and various other factors that
are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances, the results of which form the basis of making the judgments
about carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. Actual results may
differ from these estimates.
The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the period of
the revision and future periods if the revision affects both current and future periods.
Judgment made by management in the application of IFRSs that have significant effect on the financial statements
and estimates with a significant risk of material adjustment in the next year are discussed in note 2.
The accounting policies set out below have been applied consistently to all periods presented in these consolidated
financial statements and in preparing the opening IFRS balance sheet as at 1 January 2004 for the purpose of
transition to IFRS.
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NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS
continued

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(a) Basis of consolidation
The consolidated financial information incorporates the assets, liabilities and the results of the Company and of its
subsidiary undertakings. Subsidiaries are those entities in which the Group directly or indirectly has the power to
govern the financial and operating policies in order to gain benefits from its activities (including unit trusts in which
the Group holds more than half of the units).The financial statements of subsidiaries are included in the consolidated
financial statements from the date that control commences until the date that control ceases.
Intragroup balances, and any income and expenses or unrealised gains and losses arising from intragroup transactions,
are eliminated in preparing the consolidated financial statements.
(b) Product classification
The Group’s products are classified for accounting purposes as either insurance contracts or investment contracts.
Insurance contracts are contracts which transfer significant insurance risk. Contracts that do not transfer significant
insurance risk are treated as investment contracts.Where contracts contain both insurance and investment components
and the investment components can be measured reliably, the contracts are unbundled and the components are
separately accounted for as insurance contracts and investment contracts respectively.
(c) Long-term business
(i)
Premium income
For unit linked insurance contracts, premiums are recognised as revenue when the liabilities arising
from them are recognised. All other premiums are accounted for when due for payment.
Investment contract premiums are not included in the income statement but are reported as deposits
to investment contract liabilities in the balance sheet.

(ii)

Revenue from investment contracts
Fees charged for services related to the management of investment contracts are recognised as revenue as the
services are provided. Initial fees which exceed the level of recurring fees and relate to the future provision
of services, are deferred and amortised over the anticipated period in which services will be provided.

(iii) Claims
For insurance contracts, death claims are accounted for on notification of death. Surrenders for non-linked
policies are accounted for when payment is made. Critical illness claims are accounted for when admitted.
All other claims and surrenders are accounted for when payment is due.
For investment contracts, benefits paid are not included in the income statement but are instead deducted
from investment contract liabilities.The movement in investment contract benefits represents the
investment return credited to policyholders.

(iv)

Acquisition costs
For insurance contracts, acquisition costs comprise direct costs such as initial commission and the indirect
costs of obtaining and processing new business. Acquisition costs which are incurred during a financial year
are deferred by use of an explicit asset which is amortised over the period during which the costs are
expected to be recoverable and in accordance with the incidence of future related margins.
For investment contracts only directly related acquisition costs, which vary with and are related to securing
new contracts and renewing existing contracts, are deferred to the extent that they are recoverable out of
future revenue. Deferred acquisition costs are amortised on a straight line basis over the average lifetime of
the Group’s investment contracts. All other costs are recognised as expenses when incurred.
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NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS
continued

(v)

Insurance contract liabilities
Under current IFRS requirements, insurance contract liabilities are measured using accounting policies
consistent with those adopted previously under existing accounting practices.
Insurance contract liability provisions are determined following an annual actuarial investigation of the
long-term fund in accordance with regulatory requirements.The provisions are calculated on the basis of
current information and using the gross premium valuation method.The Group’s accounting policies for
insurance contracts meet the minimum specified requirements for liability adequacy testing under IFRS 4,
as they consider current estimates of all contractual cash flows, and of related cash flow such as claims
handling costs.
Long-term business provisions can never be definitive as to their timing nor the amount of claims and are
therefore subject to subsequent reassessment on a regular basis.

(vi)

Investment contracts
Investment contracts consist of unit linked contracts. Unit linked liabilities are measured at fair value
by reference to the value of the underlying net asset value of the Group's unitised investment funds,
determined on a bid value, at the balance sheet date. An allowance for deduction of future tax to be paid
in respect of unrealised capital gains, discounted to reflect the time period over which such gains are
expected to be realised, is also reflected in the measurement of unit linked liabilities.
The decision by the Group to designate its unit linked liabilities as fair value through the income statement
reflects the fact that the underlying portfolio is managed, and its performance evaluated, on a fair value basis.

(d) Reinsurance
The Group’s insurance subsidiaries cede insurance premiums and risk in the normal course of business. Outwards
reinsurance premiums are accounted for in the same accounting period as the related premiums for the direct
reinsurance business being reinsured. Reinsurance assets include balances due from reinsurance companies for paid
and unpaid losses, ceded unearned premiums and ceded future life policy benefits. Amounts recoverable from
reinsurers are estimated in a manner consistent with the claim liability associated with the reinsured policy.
(e) Fee & commission income
Fee & commission income primarily consists of management fees on investment contracts (see accounting policy note
c (ii)) and commission due in respect of products sold on behalf of third parties. Commission is accounted for when
earned.
(f) Investment return
Investment return comprises investment income and investment gains and losses. Investment income includes
dividends, interest and rent. Dividends are accrued on an ex-dividend basis. Interest and rent are accounted for
on an accruals basis.
(g) Revenue
Revenue consists principally of premium income, fee and commission income and investment return. Accounting
policies in respect of each of these are set out in the following accounting policy notes:
• Premium income: (c) (i)
• Fee & commission income: (e)
• Investment return: (f)
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NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS
continued

(h) Expenses
(i)
Operating lease payments
Leases where a significant proportion of the risks and rewards of ownership is retained by the lessor are
classified as operating leases. Payments made under operating leases are recognised in the income
statement on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease. Lease incentives received are recognised in
the income statement as an integral part of the total lease expense and are spread over the life of the lease.

(ii)

Financing costs
Financing costs comprise interest payable on borrowings calculated using the effective interest rate method.

(i) Income taxes
Income tax on the profit or loss for the year comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax is recognised in the income
statement except to the extent that it relates to items recognised directly in equity, in which case it is recognised in equity.

(i)

Current tax
Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable income for the year, using tax rates enacted or
substantially enacted at the balance sheet date, and any adjustment to tax payable in respect of previous years.

(ii)

Deferred tax
Deferred tax is provided using the balance sheet liability method, providing for temporary differences between
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the amounts used for taxation
purposes.The following differences are not provided for: goodwill not deductible for tax purposes, the initial
recognition of assets or liabilities that affect neither accounting or taxable profit, and differences relating to
investments in subsidiaries to the extent that they will probably not reverse in the foreseeable future.The
amount of deferred tax provided is based on the expected manner of realisation or settlement of the carrying
amount of assets and liabilities, using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the balance sheet date.
A deferred tax asset is recognised only to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be
available against which the asset can be utilised. Deferred tax assets are reduced to the extent that it is no
longer probable that the related tax benefit will be realised.

(iii) Policyholder and shareholder tax
The total income tax expense for a period includes tax which is not related to profits earned by
shareholders for the period, being the tax that is attributed to policyholders in the unit linked funds. The
tax charge in the income statement is therefore analysed between shareholders’ tax and policyholders’ tax,
the latter reflecting tax charges paid by the unit linked funds to relevant tax authorities and deductions for
deferred tax on unrealised capital gains provided within the UK unit linked funds.
(j) Dividends
Dividend distributions to the Company’s shareholders are recognised as liabilities in the period in which the dividends
are declared, and, for the final dividend, when approved by the Company's shareholders at the annual general meeting.
(k) Intangible assets
(i)
Deferred acquisition costs
See accounting policy note c (iv).

(ii)

Acquired value of in-force business
Investment and insurance contracts acquired in business combinations are measured at fair value, being the
present value of future profits, at the time of acquisition.The acquired value of in-force contracts is
amortised over the estimated life of the contracts.
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NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS
continued

The acquired value of in-force business is expressed as a gross figure in the balance sheet with the
associated tax included within deferred tax liabilities.

(iii) Goodwill
Goodwill on the acquisition of subsidiaries prior to 31 March 2004 has been charged directly to reserves.
Prospectively the Group’s policy is to recognise goodwill on the balance sheet as an intangible asset,
measured at cost less any accumulated impairment losses.
(l) Property & equipment
Items of property & equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses (see
accounting policy note q).The deemed cost of owner occupied property is the fair value by a determined
independent valuer as at 1 January 2004, the date of transition to IFRS.
Depreciation is charged to the income statement on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of the
property and equipment as follows:
•
•
•
•
•

Computers:
Fixtures and fittings:
Office equipment:
Motor vehicles:
Buildings:

3 years
5 years
5 years
4 years
50 years

(m) Investment property
Investment properties, which are all held within the unit linked funds, are properties which are held to earn rental
income and/or for capital appreciation.They are stated at fair value.
An external, independent valuer, having an appropriate recognised professional qualification and recent experience
in the location and category of property being valued, values the portfolio every month.The fair values are based
on market values, being the estimated amount for which a property could be exchanged on the date of valuation
between a willing buyer and a willing seller in an arm’s length transaction after proper marketing wherein the parties
had each acted knowledgeably, prudently and without compulsion.
Any gain or loss arising from a change in fair value is recognised in the income statement. Rental income from
investment property is accounted for as described in accounting policy note (f).
(n) Investments
The Group’s investments are all classified as fair value through profit and loss, with all gains and losses recognised
through the income statement.The fair values of quoted financial investments, which represent the vast majority of
the Group’s investments, are based on current bid prices. If the market for a financial investment is not active, the
Group establishes fair value by using valuation techniques such as recent arm’s length transactions, reference to
similar listed investments, discounted cash flow models or option pricing models.
The decision by the Group to designate its investments at fair value through the income statement reflects the fact
that the investment portfolio is managed, and its performance evaluated, on a fair value basis
The Group recognises purchases and sales of investments on trade date.
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NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS
continued

(o) Currency forwards
The Group uses currency forwards within its unit linked funds to hedge its exposure to foreign currency. Each
contract is recognised initially at cost and is subsequently stated at fair value, with all changes in value recognised in
the income statement.
(p) Other receivables
Other receivables are stated at amortised cost less impairment losses.
(q) Impairment policy
Formal reviews to assess the recoverability of deferred acquisition costs on insurance and investment contracts and the
acquired value of in-force business are carried out at each balance sheet date.The carrying amounts of the Group’s
other assets that are not carried at fair value are also reviewed to determine whether there is any indication of
impairment. If there is any indication of irrecoverability or impairment, the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated.
Impairment losses are reversed – through the income statement – if there is a change in the estimates used to
determine the recoverable amount. Such losses are reversed only to the extent that the asset’s carrying amount does
not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation or amortisation where
applicable, if no impairment loss had been recognised.
(r) Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents include cash in hand, deposits held at call with banks, other short-term highly liquid
investments, and bank overdrafts to the extent that the Group has a right of set-off.
(s) Provisions
Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events such
that it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate of
the amount of the obligation can be made.The Group recognises provisions for onerous contracts when the expected
benefits to be derived from a contract are less than the unavoidable costs of meeting the obligations under the contract.
(t) Borrowings
Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of transaction costs, and subsequently stated at amortised cost.
The difference between the proceeds and the redemption value is recognised in the income statement over the
borrowing period on an effective interest rate basis.
(u) Other payables
Other payables are stated at amortised cost.
(v) Net asset value attributable to unit holders
The Group consolidates unit trusts in which it holds more than half of the units.The minority interests in these unit
trusts are measured at fair value and are shown in the balance sheet as net assets attributable to unit holders. Income
attributable to the holdings is accounted for within investment income, offset by a corresponding change in
investment contract benefits.
(w) Employee benefits
(i)
Pension obligations
The Group operates a defined contribution personal pension plan for its employees. Contributions to this
plan are recognised as an expense in the income statement as incurred.
The Group also has an occupational pension scheme with both a defined contribution and a defined benefit
section, both of which are closed to new members.
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Contributions to the defined contribution section, in respect of existing members, are recognised as an
expense in the income statement as incurred.
The defined benefit section has no active members and there are thus no employer contributions.The
residual liabilities to the current and deferred pensioners have been matched by purchased annuities
(both immediate and deferred) from insurance companies and therefore no surplus or deficit will arise.

(ii)

Share-based payments
The Group operates a number of share-based payment plans.The fair value of equity instruments granted
is recognised as an expense spread over the vesting period of the instrument, with a corresponding
increase in equity in the case of equity settled plans.The total amount to be expensed is determined by
reference to the fair value of the awards at the grant date, measured using standard option pricing models.
At each balance sheet date, the Group revises its estimate of the number of equity instruments that are
expected to vest and it recognises the impact of the revision of original estimates, if any, in the income
statement, such that the amount recognised for employee services are based on the number of shares that
actually vest.The charge to the income statement is not revised for any changes in market vesting conditions.

(x) Treasury shares
Where any Group company purchases the Company’s equity share capital, the consideration paid is deducted from
equity attributable to shareholders, as disclosed in the Treasury Shares reserve.Where such shares are subsequently
sold, reissued or otherwise disposed of, any consideration received is included in equity attributable to shareholders,
net of any directly attributable incremental transaction costs and the related income tax effects.
(y) Foreign currency translation
The Group’s presentational currency is pounds sterling.The functional currency of the Group’s foreign operations is
the currency of the primary economic environment in which these entities operate.
Foreign currency transactions are translated into sterling using the approximate exchange rate prevailing at the date
of the transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated using the rate of
exchange ruling at the balance sheet date and the gain or losses on translation are recognised in the income statement.
Non-monetary assets and liabilities which are held at historical cost are translated using exchange rates prevailing at
the date of transaction; those held at fair value are translated using exchange rates ruling at the date on which the fair
value was determined.
(z) Segment reporting
The principal activity of the Group is the transaction of long-term insurance and investment business and the Group
segments its operations by lines of business: life, unit trust and other business. Expenses allocated to business units
reflect those expenses incurred by the legal entities comprising the segments.
Separate geographical segmental information is not presented since the Group does not segment its business
geographically, its customer base being predominantly based in the United Kingdom.
(aa) Current and non-current disclosure
Assets and liabilities which are expected to be recovered or settled no more than twelve months after the balance
sheet date are disclosed as current.Those expected to be recovered or settled more than twelve months after the
balance sheet date are disclosed as non-current. Deferred tax balances are all treated as non-current.
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2. C RITICAL ACCOUNTING E STIMATES
ACCOUNTING P OLICIES

AND

J UDGEMENTS

IN

A PPLYING

The primary area in which the Group has applied judgement in applying accounting policies lies in the classification
and unbundling of contracts between insurance and investment business. Contracts with a significant degree of
insurance risk are treated as insurance; pension contracts in general have been treated as investment contracts and,
where they contain a significant degree of insurance risk, they have been unbundled. All other contracts are treated as
investment contracts.The Group has also elected to treat all assets backing linked and non unit-linked contracts as fair
value through profit or loss although some of the assets in question may ultimately be held to maturity.
The principal areas in which the Group applies accounting estimates and assumptions are in deciding the amount of
management expenses that are treated as acquisition expenses, the amortisation of deferred acquisition costs and
deferred income, providing for long-term insurance business and in determining the fair value and amortisation of
acquired in-force business. Estimates are also applied in determining the recoverability of deferred acquisition costs
and the acquired value of in-force business.
Certain management expenses vary with the level of sales and have been treated as acquisition costs. Each line of
costs has been reviewed and its variability to sales volumes estimated on the basis of the level of costs that would be
incurred if sales ceased.
Deferred acquisition costs and deferred income are amortised on a straight-line basis over the average lifetime of the
underlying investment contracts.The average lifetime of the contracts has been estimated from the experienced
termination rates and the average age of clients at inception and maturity.
There have been no new business combinations during the year.The acquired value of the in-force business has been
amortised on a basis that reflects the expected profit stream arising from the business acquired at the date of
acquisition.This profit stream was estimated from the experienced termination rates, expenses of management and
age of the clients under the individual contracts as well as global estimates of investment growth, based on recent
experience at the date of acquisition.
Deferred acquisition costs and acquired value of in-force business relating to insurance and investment contracts are
tested annually for recoverability by reference to expected future income levels.
The assumptions used in the calculation of insurance business liabilities that have the greatest effect on the income
statement of the Group are the assumed rate of investment return, the expenses assumed and the mortality and
morbidity tables used for the calculation of non-linked insurance liabilities.
The valuation discount rate for non-linked business was set at 3.0% at 31 December 2005 (3.0% as at 31 December
2004).This rate is based on the regulatory maximum allowable rate rounded to the lower 0.1%.The expenses assumed
for the insurance business are based on an investigation of the expenses incurred in respect of each line of business.
They are assumed to increase with inflation each year.The inflation rate assumed at 31 December 2005 is between
2.9% and 4.0% depending on the territory of the contract (between 2.9% and 4.0% as at 31 December 2004).
Mortality costs are determined following a comparison of market data with actual experience.The rates used are based
on recognised industry tables, suitably adjusted to reflect this comparison.The rates used in the valuation were between
60% and 242% of TM/TF92. Morbidity rates were based on those charged by our reassurers for recent new business.
Estimates are also applied in determining the level of deferred tax asset on unrelieved expenses and other provisions
– these are set out in notes 12 and 20 respectively.
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3. S EGMENT R EPORTING
The Group segments its operations into three lines of business:
1. Life business – offering pensions, protection and investment products through the Group’s life
assurance subsidiaries.
2. Unit trust business – offering unit trust investment products, including ISAs and PEPs, through
the St. James’s Place Unit Trust Group.
3. Other – offering financial products such as annuities, mortgages and stakeholder pensions,
from third party providers.

The income and results of these segments are as follows:

Net Income

Year Ended
31 December
2005

Year Ended
31 December
2004

£’ Million

£’ Million

Life business
Net insurance premium income
Net movement on deferred income
Investment income – unit-linked policyholders

73.4
(7.8)
1,787.2

81.3
(2.9)
811.5

Total life business

1,852.8

889.9

Unit trust business
Fee income
Net movement on deferred income

49.0
(10.1)

35.3
(5.3)

Total unit trust business

38.9

30.0

Other business
Commission income
Investment income – sale of investment in LAHC
Investment income – other shareholders
Investment income – other(1)
Other operating income

51.3
9.5
5.4
19.4
1.9

35.6
28.0
3.1
4.9
1.5

Total other business

87.5

73.1

1,979.2

993.0

Net income(2)

(1) Investment income - other relates to investment income on minority interest holdings in the St. James’s Place unit trusts
which are subject to consolidation (the minority interest holdings are disclosed as “net asset value attributable to unit holders”
within the balance sheet). This income is offset by a change in investment contract benefits within the income statement.
(2) All income is generated from external transactions.
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3. S EGMENT R EPORTING ( CONTINUED )

Segment Result

Life business
Policyholder tax gross up
Shareholder
Unit trust business
Profit on sale of investment – LAHC
Other loss
Total other business

Year Ended
31 December
2005

Year Ended
31 December
2004

£’ Million

£’ Million

83.9
29.3
12.8
9.5
(8.4)
1.1

Total operating profit

127.1

Financing costs

-

22.4
7.0
11.8
28.0
(11.2)
16.8
58.0
(1.2)

Profit before tax

127.1

56.8

Income taxes
Policyholder tax
Shareholder tax

(83.9)
4.4

(22.4)
5.3

Profit after tax

47.6

39.7

Year Ended
31 December
2005

Year Ended
31 December
2004

£’ Million

£’ Million

Other Segmental Information

Segment Assets
Life business
Unit trust business
Other business
Unallocated assets
Consolidation adjustments

10,433.9
82.2
260.7
91.5
(57.7)

8,016.5
57.8
250.8
62.7
(81.8)

Total Assets

10,810.6

8,306.0

Segment Liabilities
Life business
Unit trust business
Other business
Unallocated liabilities
Consolidation adjustments

10,097.9
76.9
72.8
222.5
66.0

7,780.5
54.4
153.8
129.9
(34.8)

Total Liabilities

10,536.1

8,083.8

Capital expenditure
Other business

1.9

3.1

Depreciation Expense
Other business

2.8

2.9

36.2
3.1
4.2

36.8
2.9
3.5

Amortisation Expense
Life business – DAC
Life business – PVIF
Unit trust business – DAC
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4. O THER I NVESTMENT R ETURN
Year Ended
31 December
2005

Year Ended
31 December
2004

£’ Million

£’ Million

Dividend income
Interest income
Rental income
Net realised gains
Net unrealised gains
Income attributable to minority interest holdings in unit trusts

198.5
48.7
12.8
498.2
1,034.4
19.4

170.3
38.5
2.7
245.6
357.5
4.9

Total other investment return

1,812.0

819.5

Year Ended
31 December
2005

Year Ended
31 December
2004

£’ Million

£’ Million

30.0
2.8
3.1
40.4
8.1

27.2
2.9
2.9
40.3
7.1

0.4
-

0.3
-

5. E XPENSES
The following items are included within the expenses disclosed in the income statement:

Employee costs (see note 6)
Depreciation
Amortisation of PVIF
Amortisation of DAC
Payment under operating leases
Auditor’s remuneration
Audit services
Other services
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6. E MPLOYEE C OSTS
Year Ended
31 December
2005

Year Ended
31 December
2004

£’ Million

£’ Million

Wages and salaries
Social security costs
Pension costs in relation to defined contribution schemes

24.2
3.4
2.4

22.3
2.6
2.3

Total employee benefits

30.0

27.2

Average number of persons employed by the Group during the year

549

505

The above information includes Directors’ remuneration.
Details of the Directors’ remuneration, share option, pension entitlements and interests in shares are disclosed in the
Remuneration Report on pages 37 to 49 .

7. I NCOME TAXES
Year Ended
31 December
2005

Year Ended
31 December
2004

£’ Million

£’ Million

Policyholder tax
Overseas withholding taxes
Deferred tax

7.1
76.8

4.6
17.8

Total policyholder tax charge for the year

83.9

22.4

Year Ended
31 December
2005

Year Ended
31 December
2004

£’ Million

£’ Million

Shareholder tax
UK corporation tax
Current year (credit)/charge
Prior year credit
Group relief
Current year
Prior year charge
Overseas taxes
Deferred tax charge/(credit)
On unrelieved expenses
Other
Total shareholder tax credit for the year
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(5.7)
(11.6)

3.4
(2.7)

6.9
10.3
0.4

(1.6)
1.8
-

(8.7)
4.0

(7.3)
1.1

(4.4)

(5.3)
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7. I NCOME TAXES ( CONTINUED )
Year Ended
31 December
2005

Year Ended
31 December
2004

£’ Million

£’ Million

127.1

56.8

UK corporation tax at 30%

38.1

17.0

Effects of:
Pension losses – not relieved
Disposal of LAHC – non taxable
Deferred tax adjustment on unrelieved expenses
Overseas withholding tax in unit linked funds
Deferred tax in unit linked funds
Other adjustments

(7.1)
(2.9)
(8.7)
7.1
56.0
(3.0)

(1.8)
(8.4)
(7.3)
3.4
12.9
1.3

Tax charge for the year

79.5

17.1

Reconciliation of tax charge
Profit before tax

8. D IVIDENDS
The following dividends have been paid by the Group:
Year Ended
31 December
2005

Year Ended
31 December
2004

Year Ended
31 December
2005

Year Ended
31 December
2004

Pence
per share

Pence
per share

£’ Million

£’ Million

Final dividend in respect
of previous financial year

1.60

1.50

6.9

6.4

Interim dividend in respect
of current financial year

1.30

1.25

5.8

5.4

Total

2.90

2.75

12.7

11.8

The Directors have resolved to pay a final dividend of 1.85 pence per share (2004: 1.60 pence).This amounts to £8.3 million

(2004: £6.9 million) and will, subject to shareholder approval at the Annual General Meeting, be paid on 17 May 2006
to those shareholders on the register as at 10 March 2006.
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9. E ARNINGS P ER S HARE

Basic earnings per share
Adjustments – disposal of LAHC
Basic adjusted earnings per share
Diluted earnings per share
Adjustments – disposal of LAHC
Diluted adjusted earnings per share

Year Ended
31 December
2005

Year Ended
31 December
2004

Pence

Pence

10.8
(2.2)

9.1
(6.5)

8.6

2.6

10.3
(2.1)

8.8
(6.2)

8.2

2.6

Year Ended
31 December
2005

Year Ended
31 December
2004

£’ Million

£’ Million

The earnings per share (EPS) calculations are based on the following figures:

Earnings
Profit after tax (for both basic and diluted EPS)
Adjustments – disposal of LAHC

47.6
(9.5)

39.7
(28.0)

Adjusted profit (for both basic and diluted EPS)

38.1

11.7

Weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue (for basic EPS)
Adjustments for outstanding share options

442.0
20.4

434.6
14.7

Weighted average number of ordinary shares (for diluted EPS)

462.4

449.3

Weighted average number of shares
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10. I NTANGIBLE A SSETS
Deferred Acquisition Costs
Life
Life
Unit trust
business
business
business
– insurance – investment – investment
DAC
DAC
DAC

Total DAC

Acquired
value of
in-force
business

Total

£’ Million

£’ Million

£’ Million

£’ Million

£’ Million

£’ Million

Cost
At 1 January 2004
Additions

41.5
12.1

195.0
37.8

39.6
8.7

276.1
58.6

73.4
-

349.5
58.6

At 31 December 2004

53.6

232.8

48.3

334.7

73.4

408.1

At 1 January 2005
Additions

53.6
8.9

232.8
48.8

48.3
13.3

334.7
71.0

73.4
-

408.1
71.0

At 31 December 2005

62.5

281.6

61.6

405.7

73.4

479.1

Amortisation
At 1 January 2004
Charge for the year

18.6

18.2

3.5

40.3

2.9

43.2

At 31 December 2004

18.6

18.2

3.5

40.3

2.9

43.2

At 1 January 2005
Charge for the year

18.6
15.2

18.2
21.0

3.5
4.2

40.3
40.4

2.9
3.1

43.2
43.5

At 31 December 2005

33.8

39.2

7.7

80.7

6.0

86.7

Carrying value
At 31 December 2004

35.0

214.6

44.8

294.4

70.5

364.9

At 31 December 2005

28.7

242.4

53.9

325.0

67.4

392.4

Outstanding
amortisation period
At 31 December 2004

6 years

14 years

14 years

21 years

At 31 December 2005

6 years

14 years

14 years

20 years

Amortisation of deferred acquisition costs is charged within the fees, commission and other acquisition costs line in the
income statement.The amortisation of the acquired value of in-force business is charged within other operating costs.
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11. P ROPERTY & E QUIPMENT
Fixtures, Fittings,
Computers &
Office Equipment

Motor
Vehicles

Land &
Buildings

Total

£’ Million

£’ Million

£’ Million

£’ Million

Cost
At 1 January 2004
Additions
Disposals

25.2
2.5
(1.0)

1.7
0.6
(0.6)

1.2
-

28.1
3.1
(1.6)

At 31 December 2004

26.7

1.7

1.2

29.6

At 1 January 2005
Additions
Disposals

26.7
1.2
-

1.7
0.7
(0.5)

1.2
-

29.6
1.9
(0.5)

At 31 December 2005

27.9

1.9

1.2

31.0

Depreciation
At 1 January 2004
Charge for the year
Disposals

20.3
2.5
(0.9)

0.8
0.4
(0.4)

-

21.1
2.9
(1.3)

At 31 December 2004

21.9

0.8

-

22.7

At 1 January 2005
Charge for the year
Disposals

21.9
2.4
-

0.8
0.4
(0.4)

-

22.7
2.8
(0.4)

At 31 December 2005

24.3

0.8

-

25.1

Net book value
At 31 December 2004

4.8

0.9

1.2

6.9

At 31 December 2005

3.6

1.1

1.2

5.9
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12. D EFERRED TAX A SSETS
31 December
2005

31 December
2004

£’ Million

£’ Million

Life business – unrelieved expenses
Life business – deferred income
Unit trust business – deferred income
Other

16.0
32.7
16.8
5.0

7.3
31.6
13.8
2.2

Total deferred tax asset

70.5

54.9

The valuation of the deferred tax asset in respect of unrelieved expenses has been calculated as at 31 December 2005
using a market consistent stochastic model of future income streams against which expenses will be relieved.The
amount of unrelieved expenses for which no deferred tax asset has been recognised is £242.1 million at 31 December
2005 (2004: £271.0 million).

13. I NVESTMENT P ROPERTY
31 December
2005

31 December
2004

£’ Million

£’ Million

Balance at 1 January
Additions
Disposals
Changes in fair value

129.8
167.1
(1.5)
24.0

128.5
(1.5)
2.8

Balance at 31 December

319.4

129.8

The rental income and direct operating expenses recognised in the income statement in respect of investment
properties are set out below. All expenses relate to property generating rental income.

Rental income
Direct operating expenses
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Year Ended
31 December
2005

Year Ended
31 December
2004

£’ Million

£’ Million

12.8
0.2

2.7
0.2
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14. A SSETS H ELD TO C OVER U NIT L INKED L IABILITIES
Included within the balance sheet are the following assets and liabilities which represent the net assets held to cover
linked liabilities. The difference between these assets and liabilities and those shown in the consolidated balance sheet
represents assets and liabilities held outside the unit linked funds.
31 December
2005

31 December
2004

£’ Million

£’ Million

Assets
Investment property
Investments
Equities
Fixed income securities
Investment in Collective Investment Schemes
Currency forwards
Other receivables
Cash and cash equivalents

319.4

129.8

7,230.8
507.5
460.4
0.2
57.6
1,240.8

5,582.1
598.7
305.3
0.2
37.3
811.3

Total assets

9,816.7

7,464.7

Liabilities
Financial liabilities
Currency forwards
Deferred tax liabilities
Other payables

2.5
100.8
24.6

6.6
21.7
12.3

Total liabilities

127.9

40.6

9,688.8

7,424.1

Net assets held to cover linked liabilities

15. A SSETS ATTRIBUTABLE TO U NIT H OLDERS
The following assets and liabilities are attributable to minority interest holdings in the St. James’s Place unit trusts
which are subject to consolidation:
31 December
2005

31 December
2004

£’ Million

£’ Million

Investments – equities
Cash and cash equivalents
Other receivables
Other payables

86.5
5.4
0.6
(0.2)

55.8
2.2
0.3
(0.1)

Net assets attributable to unit holders

92.3

58.2
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16. R EINSURANCE B ALANCES
31 December
2005

31 December
2004

£’ Million

£’ Million

Reinsurers’ share of insurance contract liabilities
Long-term insurance contract liability
Claims outstanding

72.9
5.0

66.1
4.2

Reinsurance assets

77.9

70.3

Current
Non current

13.2
64.7

12.2
58.1

77.9

70.3

Reinsurance payables

8.9

11.3

Current
Non current

1.3
7.6

1.6
9.7

8.9

11.3

Reinsurance payables relate to amounts payable in respect of a financial reassurance arrangement in connection with
uncertainty on the Group’s critical illness claims experience.
A reconciliation of the movement in the net reinsurance balance is set out below:
31 December
2005

31 December
2004

£’ Million

£’ Million

Net reinsurance balance at 1 January
Reassurance component of net change in claims provision
Reassurance component of change in insurance liabilities

59.0
0.8
9.2

67.5
(1.6)
(6.9)

Net reinsurance balance at 31 December

69.0

59.0
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17. O THER R ECEIVABLES
31 December
2005

31 December
2004

£’ Million

£’ Million

St. James’s Place Partnership loans
Deferred LAHC proceeds
Prepayments
Miscellaneous
Unit linked funds

6.7
7.8
5.8
19.2
57.6

18.1
11.6
4.1
18.8
37.3

Total other receivables

97.1

89.9

Current
Non current

87.9
9.2

67.5
22.4

97.1

89.9

31 December
2005

31 December
2004

£’ Million

£’ Million

18. C ASH & C ASH E QUIVALENTS

Cash at bank
Deposits with credit institutions
Bank overdrafts

70.2
31.4
(10.1)

33.7
54.3
(4.3)

91.5

83.7

Balances held within unit linked funds
Balances held within unit trust funds

1,240.8
5.4

811.3
2.2

Total cash & cash equivalents

1,337.7

897.2

31 December
2005

31 December
2004

£’ Million

£’ Million

Cash & cash equivalents held outside
unit linked and unit trust funds

All cash & cash equivalent balances are considered current.

19. I NSURANCE C ONTRACT L IABILITY P ROVISIONS

Balance at 1 January
Change in insurance contract liabilities
Change in claims provision

351.3
75.4
3.9

341.3
10.5
(0.5)

Balance at 31 December

430.6

351.3

Current
Non current

47.4
383.2

42.2
309.1

430.6

351.3
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19. I NSURANCE C ONTRACT L IABILITY P ROVISIONS ( CONTINUED )
The effect of changes in assumptions used to measure insurance assets and insurance liabilities
The tables below set out the impact of actual changes in assumptions on insurance assets and liabilities and the sensitivity of the
profit and loss and net assets to the key variables used to measure insurance assets and liabilities.The analyses reflect the change
in the variable/assumption shown while all other variables/assumptions are left unchanged. In practice variables/assumptions
may change at the same time as some may be correlated (for example, an increase in interest rates may also result in an increase
in expenses if the increase reflects higher inflation). It should also be noted that in some instances sensitivities are non-linear.
Sensitivity Analysis

Change in
Change in
Change in
Assumption Profit before Profit before
Tax
Tax
2005
2004

Change in
Net Assets
2005

Change in
Net Assets
2004

%

£’ Million

£’ Million

£’ Million

£’ Million

-1%

2.5

3.4

1.2

2.2

Expense assumptions

-10%

4.3

1.4

3.9

1.2

Mortality / morbidity

-5%

1.6

1.7

1.4

1.5

Increase in
Gross
Insurance
Liabilities
2005

Increase in
Gross
Insurance
Liabilities
2004

Increase in
Gross
Insurance
Assets
2005

Increase in
Gross
Insurance
Assets
2004

£’ Million

£’ Million

£’ Million

£’ Million

Economic assumptions

0.3

1.1

2.7

1.1

Expenses

4.3

2.6

-

-

Mortality / morbidity

5.8

2.0

-

-

Interest rates

Impact of Actual Changes
in Assumptions

Terms and conditions of insurance contracts
The terms and conditions of the principal insurance contracts offered by the Group are set out in the table below. The Group
has no with profit contracts.
Category

Main Risks

Essential Policyholder
Terms
Benefits

Conventional Term Assurances

Mortality, Premiums are
morbidity
regularly
reviewed

Guaranteed Conventional Assurances

Mortality

Unit-linked Assurances

Mortality, Premiums are
morbidity
regularly
reviewed
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20. O THER P ROVISIONS
LAHC Endowments

Office
Restructuring

Other
Provisions

Total

£’ Million

£’ Million

£’ Million

£’ Million

£’ Million

16.5

1.0

-

0.2

17.7

(9.5)

0.5

0.9

-

At 31 December 2005

7.0

1.5

0.9

0.2

9.6

Current
Non current

4.5
2.5

0.8
0.7

0.9
-

0.2

6.2
3.4

7.0

1.5

0.9

0.2

9.6

At 1 January 2005
Charged to the
consolidated income statement
Additional provisions
Unused amounts released

1.4
(9.5)

The LAHC provision relates to possible endowment and pensions sales claims under the transaction warranties and
indemnities associated with the disposal of LAHC in 2004. Following the settlement of various matters for which the
Group had made provision at 31 December 2004, £9.5 million of the provision has been released.The provision at
31 December 2005 represents the Directors’ best estimate of the likely maximum outflow over the next two years.
The endowments provision relates to the cost of redress for mortgage endowment complaints.The provision is based
on estimates of the total number of complaints expected to be upheld and the average cost of redress.
The office restructuring provision represents the expected amounts payable under a number of non-cancellable
operating leases for office space that the Group no longer occupies.The provision is based on estimates of the rental
payable until the approximate dates on which the Group expects either to have sublet the affected space or to have
reached break clauses within the relevant lease agreements.
Other provisions refer to outstanding obligations remaining from the Halifax acquisition of 60% of the share capital
of the Company in June 2000.

21. I NVESTMENT C ONTRACT B ENEFITS
31 December
2005

31 December
2004

£’ Million

£’ Million

Balance at 1 January
Premiums
Claims & benefits
Investment contract benefits
Less investment contract benefits attributable
to minority interest holdings in unit trusts

7,192.2
1,286.2
(528.0)
1,480.9

5,962.0
1,026.2
(438.6)
647.5

(19.4)

(4.9)

Balance at 31 December

9,411.9

7,192.2

Current
Non current

385.9
9,026.0

266.1
6,926.1

9,411.9

7,192.2
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22. B ORROWINGS

Bank loan

31 December
2005

31 December
2004

£’ Million

£’ Million

17.2

22.4

The Company granted a Fixed Sum Guarantee in 2003 to Bank of Scotland in connection with loans made to
members of St. James’s Place Partnership by Bank of Scotland.
Under the terms of the guarantee, Bank of Scotland agreed, at the request of the Company, to provide loans
(“Partner Loans”), either by way of new loans or by an equitable assignment of existing loans, to the members of
the St. James’s Place Partnership. In the event of default on any of these loans the Company guarantees to repay the
outstanding balance of the loan.
The guarantee can be terminated at any time by the Company giving three months’ notice. At 31 December 2005, the
balance of Bank of Scotland loans covered by this guarantee was £65.7 million (31 December 2004: £52.5 million.).
Under the terms of the Assignment Agreement, the Assigned Loans remain legally in the name of the Group and the
outstanding balance of £17.2 million is thus shown as both and asset under other receivables, and a financial liability
under borrowing.

23. D EFERRED TAX L IABILITIES
31 December
2005

31 December
2004

£’ Million

£’ Million

On deferred acquisition costs
On purchased value of in-force business
Within unit linked funds
Other

88.7
20.1
100.8
3.0

78.9
21.0
21.7
3.2

Total deferred tax liability

212.6

124.8

Deferred tax liabilities of £6.0 million as at 31 December 2005 (2004: £5.0 million) have not been recognised in
respect of taxes that would be payable on the remittance of earnings from overseas subsidiaries. Unremitted earnings
totalled £30.1 million at 31 December 2005 (2004: £24.8 million).

24. D EFERRED I NCOME
31 December
2005

31 December
2004

£’ Million

£’ Million

Life business
Unit trust business

193.6
56.1

185.8
46.0

Total deferred income

249.7

231.8
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25. O THER PAYABLES
31 December
2005

31 December
2004

£’ Million

£’ Million

Accruals
Miscellaneous
Unit linked funds

32.8
14.0
24.6

27.4
11.5
12.3

Total other payables

71.4

51.2

All other payable balances are considered current.

26. F INANCIAL & I NSURANCE R ISK
The Group adopts a prudent approach to the management of financial risk, with a view to minimising, where
practicable, its exposure to market, credit, liquidity and interest rate risks.The Group similarly adopts a cautious
approach to the management of insurance risk, with the adoption of a unit linked or reviewable premium approach
to product design and the use of reinsurance to minimise solvency risk and profit volatility.
Since the majority of the Group’s business is unit-linked, for which policyholders carry the financial risk, the risks
relating to unit-linked investment are excluded from the assessment of risks affecting the Group’s business, as are
the risks associated with the minority interest holdings in the Group’s unit trusts which are subject to consolidation.
However, an overall change in the market value of the unit-linked funds would affect the annual management charges
accruing to the Group since these charges, which typically range between 0.75% and 1.5% pa, are based on the
market value of funds under management. In addition, a reduction in stock market levels would defer the receipt of
tax relief on UK life business expenses and could reduce the volume of new business sales.
Shareholders’ funds are invested in AAA rated unitised money market funds and deposits with approved banks,
in accordance with the SJPC Group Credit Policy, with a view to minimising credit and market risk. Maximum
counterparty limits set for each company within the Group and aggregate limits are also set at a Group level.
Non-linked liabilities are matched by fixed interest securities with minimum AA credit ratings; maximum counterparty
limits are again set for each company within the Group and at an aggregate Group level. All fixed interest securities
held by the Group are fixed rate and the Group is therefore not subject to cash flow interest rate risk. Fair value
interest rate risk is not material since non-linked liabilities tend to move in line with the matching asset values.
Reinsurance risk is managed in accordance with the Group’s Reinsurance Policy with credit ratings of potential
reinsurers required to meet or exceed minimum specified levels. Consideration is also given to size, risk
concentrations/exposures and ownership in the selection of reinsurers.The Group also seeks to diversify its
reinsurance credit risk through the use of a range of reinsurers.
The outstanding reinsurance balance in the long-term business fund (LTBF) predominantly reflects the reserve for
reassurance resulting from the prudent valuation basis adopted by the Group and does not represent balances which
are outstanding from reinsurers. As such this does not create any credit exposure.The remainder of the outstanding
reinsurance balance reflects reserves that reassurers are holding on the Group’s behalf and this does result in credit
exposure.The amount of this exposure relates primarily to one A-rated reassurer, as set out in the credit risks tables
below.The Group is actively seeking to minimise this concentration of credit risk.

81

206697 Report & Accounts Back

20/3/06

7:46 pm

Page 82

NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS
continued

26. F INANCIAL & I NSURANCE R ISK ( CONTINUED )
The Group is subject to insurance risk under its insurance business.The principal risk under such business is that the
frequency of claims is greater than allowed for in the insurance liabilities.The significant factors that could increase the
overall frequency of claims are epidemics, widespread changes in lifestyle and natural disasters.The variability of risks
is improved by careful selection, the implementation of a strong underwriting strategy and the use of reinsurance
arrangements, and the Group is not subject to significant concentrations of insurance risk.The sensitivities of the
Group’s insurance assets and liabilities to changes in the key variables used in their measurement are set out in note 19.
The Group is subject to minimal liquidity risk since it maintains a high level of liquid assets to meet its liabilities.
Neither is the Group subject to significant currency risk since financial assets are denominated primarily in the same
currencies as the associated liabilities.
The Group’s exposure to credit risk from financial support to the Partnership is managed through securing lending
on future commission streams or business values, coupled with the application of monetary limits on the amounts
lent to individual Partners.
Credit Risk
The following table sets out the credit risk exposure and ratings of financial and other assets which are most
susceptible to credit risk as at 31 December 2005:
AAA

AA

A

Unrated

Nil Credit
Exposure

£’ Million

£’ Million

£’ Million

£’ Million

£’ Million

Unit Attributable
Linked
to Unit
Funds
Holders

Total

£’ Million

£’ Million £’ Million

507.5

573.1

460.4

583.0

Fixed income securities

65.6

Investment in Collective
Investment Schemes*

122.1

Cash & cash equivalents

17.8

59.4

14.3

Amounts due from reassurers
Claims outstanding
Reassurers share of LTBF

0.1
2.7

0.9
1.1

4.0
30.5

38.6

5.0
72.9

Total amount due from
reassurers

2.8

2.0

34.5

38.6

77.9

Other receivables
St. James’s Place Partnership
loans
Deferred LAHC proceeds
Other
Total other receivables

0.5

1,240.8

5.4

6.7
24.4

57.6

0.6

6.7
7.8
82.6

31.1

57.6

0.6

97.1

7.8
7.8

1,337.7

*Investment of shareholder assets in Collective Investment Schemes refers to investment in unitised money market funds held
for the longer term.
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26. F INANCIAL & I NSURANCE R ISK ( CONTINUED )
The table below sets out comparative credit risk data as at 31 December 2004:
AAA

AA

A

Unrated

Nil Credit
Exposure

£’ Million

£’ Million

£’ Million

£’ Million

£’ Million

Fixed income securities

57.6

Investment in Collective
Investment Schemes

75.6

Cash & cash equivalents

18.5

60.8

4.4

Amounts due from reassurers
Claims outstanding
Reassurers share of LTBF

0.4
1.7

1.6
1.4

2.2
25.8

37.2

Total amount due from
reassurers

2.1

3.0

28.0

37.2

Other receivables
St. James’s Place Partnership
loans
Deferred LAHC proceeds
Other
Total other receivables

0.5

Unit Attributable
Linked
to Unit
Funds
Holders
£’ Million

£’ Million £’ Million

598.7

656.3

305.3

381.4

811.3

2.2

-

70.3

18.1
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897.2
4.2
66.1

22.6

37.3

0.3

18.1
11.6
60.2

40.7

37.3

0.3

89.9

11.6
11.6
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26. F INANCIAL & I NSURANCE R ISK ( CONTINUED )
Interest Rate Risk
The following table sets out the exposure of the Group’s financial assets and liabilities to interest rate risk based on
contractual maturity dates as at 31 December 2005:
Up to
1 year

1–5
years

Over
5 years

Non
interest
bearing

£’ Million

£’ Million

£’ Million

£’ Million

Financial Assets
Equities
Fixed income securities
Investment in Collective
Investment Schemes

3.1

1.4
3.9

Total other receivables

5.3

Cash & cash equivalents

91.5

Financial Liabilities
Investment contracts
Borrowings
Currency forwards
Other payables

7.2

£’ Million

86.5

7,317.3

507.5

573.1

122.6

460.4

583.0

-

0.2

0.2

24.4

6.7
7.8
24.4

57.6

0.6

6.7
7.8
82.6

24.4

38.9

57.6

0.6

97.1

91.5

1,240.8

5.4

1,337.7

17.2
46.6

9,411.9
0.2

9,411.9
17.2
2.5
71.4

2.0

2.0

£’ Million

65.6
0.5

3.3
3.9

£’ Million £’ Million

Total

7,230.8

Currency forwards
Other receivables
St. James’s Place
Partnership loans
Deferred LAHC proceeds
Other

Unit Attributable
linked
to unit
funds
holders

62.5

122.1

Total ex.
unit
linked
funds and
other unit
holders

17.2
46.6

2.5
24.6

The effective interest rate on the St. James’s Place Partnership loans was 5.88 % for the year ended 31 December
2005 (2004: 5.59 %).The effective interest rate on borrowings was 5.65 % for the year ended 31 December 2005
(2004: 5.38 %).
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26. F INANCIAL & I NSURANCE R ISK ( CONTINUED )
The table below sets out comparative interest rate risk data as at 31 December 2004:
Up to
1 year

1–5
years

Over
5 years

Non
interest
bearing

Total ex.
unit
linked
funds and
other unit
holders

£’ Million

£’ Million

£’ Million

£’ Million

£’ Million

£’ Million

£’ Million

£’ Million

-

5,582.1

55.8

5,637.9

57.6

598.7

656.3

76.1

305.3

381.4

-

0.2

0.2

Financial Assets
Equities
Fixed income securities

7.3

Investment in Collective
Investment Schemes

75.6

50.3
0.5

Currency forwards
Other receivables
St. James’s Place
Partnership loans
Deferred LAHC
proceeds
Other

3.4

8.3

3.9

7.7

Total other receivables

7.3

16.0

Cash & cash equivalents

70.1

13.6

Financial Liabilities
Investment contracts
Borrowings
Currency forwards
Other payables

6.4

6.4

18.1

Total

18.1

22.6

11.6
22.6

37.3

0.3

11.6
60.2

22.6

52.3

37.3

0.3

89.9

83.7

811.3

2.2

897.2

22.4
38.8

7,192.2
0.1

7,192.2
22.4
6.6
51.2

22.4
38.8
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27. S HARE C APITAL
Number of
Ordinary Shares

Share Capital
£’ Million

At 1 January 2004
Scrip dividend
Exercise of options

431,927,882
4,447,263
2,949,601

64.8
0.7
0.4

At 31 December 2004
Scrip dividend
Exercise of options

439,324,746
3,428,344
4,678,033

65.9
0.5
0.7

At 31 December 2005

447,431,123

67.1

The total authorised number of ordinary shares is 605 million (2004: 605 million), with a par value of 15 pence per
share (2004: 15 pence per share). All issued shares are fully paid.

28. S HARE -B ASED PAYMENTS
During the year ended 31 December 2005 the Group operated a number of different equity settled share-based
payment arrangements, which are aggregated as follows:
• SAYE plan – this is a standard Inland Revenue approved scheme that is available to all employees where individuals
can contribute up to £250 per month over three or five years to purchase shares at a price not less than 80% of the
market price at the date of the invitation to participate.
• Executive deferred bonus schemes – under these plans the deferred element of the annual bonus is used to purchase
shares (at market value) in the Company to be held in an employee trust.The shares vest after three years and in
addition to the performance targets which apply prior to any entitlement being granted, further performance
conditions may also apply on vesting.
• Executive performance share plan – under this plan, which was introduced in 2005, two-thirds of shares are
subject to an earnings growth condition of the Group and one-third of shares are subject to a comparative total
shareholder return condition, both measured over a single three year period. Further information regarding the
vesting conditions of the earnings growth and total shareholder return dependent portions of the award is given in
the Remuneration Report on page 40.
• Executive share option schemes – these include both approved and unapproved elements and vest after three or
five year periods subject to satisfying personal and/or Group earnings performance.
• Sales management share option schemes – these include both approved and unapproved elements and vest after
three or five years subject to satisfying personal sales related performance criteria.
• Partner share option schemes – these are offered to the Partners of the St. James’s Place Partnership and vest over
three to six years subject to satisfying personal sales related performance criteria.
Share options outstanding under the various share option schemes at 31 December 2005 amount to 56.5 million shares
(2004: 52.3 million). Of these, 40.5 million are under option to Partners of the St. James’s Place Partnership, 12.7 million
are under option to executives and senior management (including 3.9 million under option to Directors as disclosed in the
Remuneration Report on page 46) and 3.3 million are under option through the SAYE scheme.These are exercisable on a
range of future dates.

86

206697 Report & Accounts Back

20/3/06

7:46 pm

Page 87

NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS
continued

28. S HARE -B ASED PAYMENTS ( CONTINUED )
The table below summarises the share-based payment awards since 7 November 2002:
SAYE

Executive
Deferred
Bonus

Awards in 2002:
Date of grant

-

-

-

27 December

Number granted

-

-

-

32,000

Awards in 2003:
Date of grant
Number granted

1 April
3,525,520

-

-

Various
3,549,123

Various
495,169

Various
2,505,235

Awards in 2004:
Date of grant
Number granted

1 April
279,054

30 March
310,783

-

Various
3,362,905

Various
370,417

Various
2,070,940

Awards in 2005:
Date of grant
Number granted
Contractual life

1 April
191,395
3.5 and 5.5 years

29 March
614,168
3 years

17 May
1,719,518
3 years

Various
525,016
10 years

Various
30,000
6 years

Various
10,893,682
10 years

3 and 5 year
saving periods

3 years
service and
achievement
of personal
targets in
some
instances

3 years
service and
achievement
of earnings
and TSR
targets

3 to 5 years
service and
achievement
of personal
and/or
earnings
targets

3 to 5 years
service and
achievement
of personal
targets

3 to 6 years
service and
achievement
of personal
targets

Vesting conditions

87

Executive
Executive
Sales
Partner
Performance Share Option Management Share Option
Share Plan
Schemes Share Option
Schemes
Schemes
27 December

13 November
to 30 December
15,000
275,965
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28. S HARE -B ASED PAYMENTS ( CONTINUED )
Financial assumptions underlying the calculation of fair value
The fair value expense has been based on the fair value of the instruments granted, as calculated using appropriate derivative
pricing models.The table below shows the assumptions and models used to calculate the grant-date fair value of each award:

Valuation model

SAYE

Executive
Deferred
Bonus

Executive
Executive
Sales
Partner
Performance Share Option Management Share Option
Share Plan
Schemes Share Option
Schemes
Schemes

Black Scholes

Black Scholes

Monte Carlo Binomial Lattice Binomial Lattice Binomial Lattice

Awards in 2002:
Fair value (pence)
Share price (pence)
Exercise price (pence)
Expected volatility (% pa) (1)
Expected dividends (% pa)
Risk-free interest rate (% pa)

-

-

-

Awards in 2003:
Fair value (pence)
Share price (pence)
Exercise price (pence)
Expected volatility (% pa) (1)
Expected dividends (% pa)
Risk-free interest rate (% pa)

34.02/37.62 (2)
90.00
72.00
45
3.1
3.8/4.1

-

-

Awards in 2004:
Fair value (pence)
Share price (pence)
Exercise price (pence)
Expected volatility (% pa) (1)
Expected dividends (% pa)
Risk-free interest rate (% pa)

78.26/85.08 (2) 81.65/185.75(3)
179.50
185.75
144.00
0.00
50/45
N/A
1.5
N/A(4)
4.6/4.7
N/A

Awards in 2005:
Fair value (pence)
Share price (pence)
Exercise price (pence)
Expected volatility (% pa) (1)
Expected dividends (% pa)
Risk-free interest rate (% pa)
Volatility of competitors (% pa)
Correlation with competitors (%)

104.13/ 113.44 (2) 99.22/242.00 (3)
245.00
194.00
45/40
1.2
4.8
N/A
N/A

242.00
0.00
N/A
N/A(4)
N/A
N/A
N/A

54.13
133.00
133.00
45
2.3
4.3

54.13
52.50 to 60.44
133.00 129.00 to 148.50
133.00 129.00 to 148.50
45
45
2.3
2.3
4.3
4.3

34.80 to 64.31 32.56 to 64.31
85.50 to 158.00 80.00 to 158.00
85.50 to 158.00 80.00 to 158.00
45
45
2.3
2.3
4.3
4.3

30.53 to 64.31
75.00 to 158.00
75.00 to 158.00
45
2.3
4.3

- 71.56 to 80.56 73.53 to 92.74 71.01 to 109.31
- 163.00 to 183.50 167.50 to 211.25 161.75 to 249.00
- 163.00 to 183.50 167.50 to 211.25 161.75 to 249.00
50/45
50/45
50/45
1.5
1.5
1.5
4.9
4.9
4.9
51.30/146.50 91.23 to 105.37
53.69/153.83 (5)
219.75/230.75(6) 222.50 to 257.00
0.00 222.50 to 257.00
45
45/40
1.3
1.2
N/A
4.4
20 to 65
N/A
25
N/A

88

99.22

89.79 to 103.83

242.00 219.00 to 253.25
242.00 219.00 to 253.25
45/40
45/40
1.2
1.2
4.4
4.4
N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A
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28. S HARE -B ASED PAYMENTS ( CONTINUED )
Notes:
(1) Expected volatility is based on an analysis of the Company’s historic volatility over a period (typically 3 or 5 years) which is commensurate with
the expected term of the options or the awards.
(2)

Typically the vesting periods for the SAYE plan are 3 or 5 years and this results in having two fair values in the table above (for awards made
in 2004 and 2005). These vesting periods may be extended by up to six months in order to catch up on missed contributions (up to a
maximum of 6).

(3)

There are two populations of the executive deferred bonus schemes, one of which is subject to performance conditions on vesting as well as
the initial performance criteria which apply prior to any entitlements being granted to both populations.There are therefore two fair values
in the table above with the lower value in each case being relevant to the portion subject to further performance criteria on vesting.

(4)

Dividends payable on the shares during the vesting period are paid out during the vesting period for the executive deferred bonus schemes
and so no dividend yield assumption is required.

(5)

The awards made under the executive performance share plan are dependent upon earnings growth in the Company (two-thirds of the
award) and a total shareholder return of a comparator group of companies (one-third of the award).This results in having two fair values for
each of the awards made in the table above, the first being in relation to the comparator total shareholder return and the second relating to
the Company’s earnings growth.

(6)

Awards were made under the executive performance plan on two separate occasions during 2005.
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28. S HARE -B ASED PAYMENTS ( CONTINUED )
Year Ended
31 December
2005
Number of
options

Year Ended
31 December
2005
Weighted
average exercise
price

Year Ended
31 December
2004
Number of
options

Year Ended
31 December
2004
Weighted
average exercise
price

SAYE:
Outstanding at start of year
Granted
Forfeited
Exercised
Expired
Outstanding at end of year
Exercisable at end of year

3,418,867
191,395
(272,845)
(84,947)
3,252,470
896

£0.78
£1.44
£0.96
£0.94
£0.83
£2.12

3,545,391
279,054
(386,342)
(19,236)
3,418,867
18,143

£0.76
£1.94
£0.78
£0.72
£0.78
£1.86

Executive Share Options:
Outstanding at start of year
Granted
Forfeited
Exercised
Expired
Outstanding at end of year
Exercisable at end of year

12,679,468
525,016
(944,536)
(447,254)
11,812,694

£1.49
£2.39
£2.14
£1.47

£1.59
£1.78
£2.90
£1.36

£1.48

10,833,610
3,362,905
(710,721)
(806,326)
12,679,468

3,280,470

£1.59

3,700,038

£1.58

1,161,264
30,000
(236,250)
(62,291)
892,723

£1.54
£2.42
£1.63
£1.43

1,037,044
370,417
(246,197)
1,161,264

£1.41
£1.80
£1.37

150,625

£1.86

£1.49

Sales Management Share Options:
Outstanding at start of year
Granted
Forfeited
Exercised
Expired
Outstanding at end of year
Exercisable at end of year

£1.56

66,250

£1.54
£2.49

Partner Share Options:
Outstanding at start of year
Granted
Forfeited
Exercised
Expired
Outstanding at end of year

35,069,345
10,893,682
(1,671,318)
(3,765,993)
40,525,716

£1.60
£2.36
£1.48
£1.40

Exercisable at end of year

17,786,330
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£1.55
£1.82
£1.44
£1.35

£1.83

39,211,642
2,070,940
(4,232,382)
(1,980,855)
35,069,345

£1.70

17,587,078

£1.66

£1.60
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28. S HARE -B ASED PAYMENTS ( CONTINUED )
The average share price during the year was 239.64 pence.
The SAYE plan options outstanding at 31 December 2005 had exercise prices of 72 pence, 144 pence and 194 pence
and a weighted average remaining contractual life of 1.5 years.
The options outstanding under the executive share option schemes had exercise prices ranging from 85.5 pence to
257 pence and a weighted average remaining contractual life of 0.8 years.
The options outstanding under the sales management share option schemes at 31 December 2005 had exercise prices
ranging from 80 pence to 248.5 pence and a weighted average remaining contractual life of 0.7 years.
The options outstanding under the Partner share option schemes at 31 December 2005 had exercise prices ranging
from 75 pence to 253.25 pence and a weighted average remaining contractual life of 1.3 years.
Early exercise assumptions
The following allowance has been made for the impact of early exercise once options have vested:
(1) SAYE plan – all option holders are assumed to exercise half-way through the six month exercise window
(2) Executive, sales management and partner share option schemes – it is assumed that 10% of option holders are
forced to exercise their options each year irrespective of the level of the share price. For the remainder it is assumed
that one-half will exercise their options each year if the share price is at least 33% above the exercise price.
Allowance for performance conditions
The executive performance share plan includes a market based performance condition based on the company’s total
shareholder return relative to an index of comparator companies.The impact of this performance condition has been
modelled using Monte Carlo simulation techniques, which involve running many thousands of simulations of future
share price movements for both the Company and the comparator index. For the purpose of these simulations it is
assumed that the share price of the Company and the comparator index are 25% correlated and that the comparator
index has volatilities ranging between 20% pa and 65% pa.
The performance condition is based on the company’s performance relative to the comparator index over a three
year period commencing on 1 January each year. The fair value calculations for the awards that were made in 2005
therefore include an allowance for the actual performance of the company’s share price relative to the index over
the period between 1 January 2005 and 17 May 2005, the award date.
Charge to profit and loss account
The table below sets out the charge to the profit and loss account in respect of the share-based payment awards that
have been made since 7 November 2002:

Share option expense
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Year Ended
31 December
2005

Year Ended
31 December
2004

£’ Million

£’ Million

3.0

2.3
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29. R ESERVES

At 1 January 2004

Profit for the year
Dividends
Issue of share capital
Scrip dividend
Exercise of options
Consideration paid
for own shares
Own shares vesting charge
Release of reserves
on issue of shares
P & L reserve credit in
respect of share option

Share
Premium

Treasury
Shares
Reserve

Profit
and Loss
Reserve

£’ Million

£’ Million

£’ Million

£’ Million

£’ Million

£’ Million

119.4

0.2

2.2

116.8

5.1

(10.1)

Shares to Miscellaneous
be Issued
Reserves
Reserve

39.7
(11.8)

39.7
(11.8)

7.3
3.4

7.3
3.4
(1.4)
0.8

(1.4)
-

(0.8)

0.1

(0.1)

-

2.3

At 31 December 2004
Profit for the year
Dividends
Issue of share capital
Scrip dividend
Exercise of options
Consideration paid
for own shares
Own shares vesting charge
P & L reserve credit in respect
of share option charges

15.9

At 31 December 2005

29.6

Total

(10.7)

148.8
47.6
(12.7)

2.3
0.1

2.2

7.9
5.8

156.3
47.6
(12.7)
7.9
5.8

(0.5)
0.2

(11.0)

(0.2)

(0.5)
-

3.0

3.0

186.5

0.1

2.2

207.4

The shares to be issued reserve was established on the acquisition of the remaining share capital of St. James’s Place
Wealth Management Group (“SJPWM”) by SJPC in 1997. SJPC agreed at the time of the acquisition to issue further
shares, up to a maximum of 25.8 million, to satisfy the exercise of options in SJPWM held at the time of acquisition.
The reserve was established in recognition of this commitment and 1,969 shares have still to be issued from the reserve.
Miscellaneous reserves represent other non-distributable reserves.
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30. C ASH G ENERATED

FROM

O PERATIONS

Cash flows from operating activities
Profit before tax for the period
Adjustments for:
Depreciation
Amortisation of acquired value of in-force business
Fair value gains on non-operating investments
Interest expense
P&L reserve credit in respect of share option charges
Profit on sale of investment
Changes in operating assets and liabilities
Increase in deferred acquisition costs
Increase in investment property
Increase in investments
(Increase) / decrease in reinsurance assets
Increase in insurance contract receivables
Increase in other receivables
Increase in insurance contract liability provisions
Increase / (decrease) in provisions
Increase in financial liabilities
Decrease in reinsurance liabilities
Increase in payables related to direct insurance contracts
Increase in deferred income
Increase / (decrease) in other payables
Increase in net assets attributable to unit holders
Cash generated from operations

Year Ended
31 December
2005

Year Ended
31 December
2004

£’ Million

£’ Million

127.1

56.8

2.8
3.1
(0.1)
3.0
(9.5)

2.9
2.9
(0.1)
1.2
2.3
(28.0)

(30.6)
(189.6)
(1,797.8)
(7.6)
(6.6)
(23.5)
79.3
1.4
2,215.6
(2.4)
8.3
17.9
20.2
34.1

(18.3)
(129.8)
(1,242.4)
8.8
(4.0)
(4.5)
10.0
(0.1)
1,236.1
(0.3)
1.8
8.2
(9.2)
16.1

445.1

(89.6)

The cash generated from operations includes both policyholder and shareholder cash flows. Policyholder cash and cash
equivalents held within the unit linked funds and within unit trusts subject to consolidation, which are not available
for use by the Group, are set out in note 18.

31. P ENSION A RRANGEMENTS
The total cost of employer contributions to defined contribution personal pension plans for SJPC’s employees during
the year was £2.0 million (2004: £2.0 million).
Employer contributions to the defined contribution section of the occupational pension scheme, which is operated for
SJPC’s senior employees, for the year totalled £0.4 million (2004: £0.3 million).
The defined benefits section of the occupational scheme is closed to new members and has no active members.
Accordingly there have been no employer contributions during the year.The residual liabilities to the current and
deferred pensioners have been matched by purchased annuities (both immediate and deferred) from insurance
companies and therefore no surplus or deficit will arise.
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32. F INANCIAL C OMMITMENTS
At 31 December 2005 the Group had the following annual commitments under non-cancellable leases in connection
with the rental of office buildings:
31 December
2005

31 December
2004

£’ Million

£’ Million

Within one year
Between two and five years
In more than five years

1.5
6.7

1.3
6.0

Total financial commitments

8.2

7.3

33. R ELATED PARTY T RANSACTIONS
The Company and the Group have entered into related party transactions with HBOS plc (“HBOS”), various
subsidiaries of HBOS and the directors of the Company and the Group. HBOS, which owns 60% of the Company’s
share capital, is the ultimate controlling party of the Group.
Transactions with HBOS and HBOS Group Companies
The following transactions were carried out, on an arm’s length basis, with HBOS and its subsidiaries during the year:
• Commission of £2.5 million (2004: £3.0 million) was receivable from the sale of banking services for St. James’s
Place Bank (a division of Halifax plc)
• Commission of £1.7 million (2004: £2.9 million) was receivable from the sale of Stakeholder pensions offered by
Clerical Medical
• Commission of £5.5 million (2004: £5.4 million) was receiveable from the sale of Halifax, Bank of Scotland
and Birmingham Midshires mortgages
• HBOS provided a guarantee at a cost of £0.5 million (2004: £0.5 million) to the Company’s reassurers in respect
of the Company’s obligations in relation to a financial reassurance arrangement
• During the year, deposits were placed with Bank of Scotland on normal commercial terms. At 31 December 2005
these deposits amounted to £1.7 million (2004: £7.7 million)
• Amounts lent by, or assigned to, the Bank of Scotland to members of The St. James’s Place Partnership, under
guarantee by SJPC, totalled £65.7 million (2004: £52.5 million)
• Fees of £2.8 million (2004: £1.5 million) were payable to Insight Investment Management Limited in respect
of investment management services to a number of SJPC life, pension and unit trust funds. The outstanding
balance payable at 31 December 2005 was £0.6 million (2004: £0.6 million)
• Fees of £0.1 million (2004: £0.1 million) were payable to HBOS in respect of the services of non-executive SJPC
Board Directors
• SJPC Board Directors have been included in a directors’ and officers’ insurance policy negotiated on a group basis
by HBOS
Transactions with key management personnel
The compensation paid to key management personnel, being the Board of Directors of SJPC, is set out in the
Remuneration Report on page 44.The Remuneration Report also sets out transactions with the Directors under the
Deferred Bonus Scheme, the Executive Share Option Scheme and the SAYE Share Option Schemes, together with
details of the Directors’ interests in the share capital of the Company.
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34. PARENT C OMPANY
The ultimate parent company of SJPC is HBOS plc, a company registered in Scotland. HBOS plc is the parent
of the largest group in which the results of the Company are consolidated. Copies of the consolidation accounts of
HBOS plc may be obtained from The Mound, Edinburgh EH1 1YZ.
The immediate parent company is HBOS Insurance and Investment Group Limited, a company registered in England
and Wales.

35. E XPLANATION

OF

T RANSITION TO IFRS

As stated in note 1, these are the Group’s first financial statements prepared in accordance with IFRS.
The accounting policies set out in note 1 have been applied in preparing the financial statements for the year ended
31 December 2005, the comparative information presented in these financial statements for the year ended
31 December 2004 and in the preparation of the opening IFRS balance at 1 January 2004, the Group’s date of transition
to IFRSs. IFRS 1 (First-time Adoption of International Financial Reporting Standards) does allow a number of exemptions
or elections on adoption of IFRS for the first time, and the Group has taken advantage of the following provisions:
• The Group has elected not to apply the provisions of IFRS 2 (Share-based Payment) to options and equity
instruments granted on or before 7 November 2002 or to equity instruments that were granted after 7 November
2002 that had vested before 1 January 2005.
• The Group has also elected not to apply the provisions of IFRS 3 (Business Combinations) prior to the date of
transition, and no adjustments have therefore been made for business combinations prior to 1 January 2004.
• The Group has elected to restate owner occupied property at fair value at 1 January 2004 and to treat this fair
value as the deemed cost at that date.
The Group has not taken advantage of the exemption from the requirement to restate comparative information
in the first year of adoption of IFRS for IAS 32 (Financial Instruments: Disclosure and Presentation), IAS 39 (Financial
Instruments: Recognition and Measurement) and IFRS 4 (Insurance Contracts).
In preparing its opening IFRS balance sheet the Group has adjusted amounts previously reported in its financial
statements prepared in accordance with its former basis of accounting, UK GAAP. An explanation of how the
transition from UK GAAP to IFRSs has affected the Group’s financial position, financial performance and cash flows is
set out in the following tables and the accompanying commentary.This transition statement differs from that initially
published by the Group on 26 July 2005 principally as a result of the further refinement of the Group’s approach to the
analysis of contracts between investment and insurance and the treatment of tax within the Group’s UK unit linked
funds.The restated profit after tax and net assets are unaffected.
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Group Transition Statement
Consolidated Income Statement for the year ended 31 December 2004
UK GAAP
Investment
Contracts

DAC /
DIR

ADJUSTMENTS
Unit
Unit
Other –
Linked
Trusts
Equity
Assets
Impact

Note (c)
£’ m

Note (d)
£’ m

Note (a)
£’ m

Note (b)
£’ m

Net insurance
premium revenue
Fee & commission income
Investment income
Other operating income

1,107.6
14.5
845.2
1.5

(1,026.3)

Net income

1,968.8

(1,026.3)

(476.7)

438.6

(38.1)

(1,258.7)

1,241.3

(17.4)

Net policyholder claims &
benefits incurred
Change in insurance
contractliabilities
Change in investment
contract liabilities
Expenses

Note (e)
£’ m

Note (f)
£’ m

IFRS
Other –
No Equity
Impact

(8.2)

(8.2)

56.4
(2.4)

4.9

(0.2)

(2.4)

4.9

(0.2)

(200.0)

(662.8)

20.2

Operating profit
Financing costs

33.4
(1.2)

(9.2)

19.1

17.8

Profit before tax

32.2

(9.2)

19.1

17.8

Tax on policyholders’ return
Tax on shareholders’ return

8.0
(3.4)

1.5

(6.7)

(17.8)
(0.5)

56.4

(4.9)

27.3

£’ m
81.3
62.7
847.5
1.5
993.0

(647.5)
(232.0)

(2.1)

(57.2)

-

(2.3)

(0.8)

58.0
(1.2)

-

(2.3)

(0.8)

56.8

1.0

(12.6)
13.4

(22.4)
5.3

0.8

(17.1)

Total tax (expense) / credit
Profit for the period
attributable to shareholders

4.6

1.5

(6.7)

(18.3)

-

1.0

36.8

(7.7)

12.4

(0.5)

-

(1.3)

Dividends

12.3

(0.5)
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Note (g)
£’ m

-

39.7
11.8
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Consolidated Balance Sheet at 31 December 2004
UK GAAP*
Investment
Contracts

Assets
Intangible assets
Deferred acquisition costs
Acquired value of in-force
business
Property & equipment
Deferred tax assets
Investment property
Investments
Equities
Fixed income securities
Investment in Collective
Investment Schemes
Currency forwards
Assets held to cover
linked liabilities
Reinsurers’share of
insurance provisions
Insurance contract receivables
Income tax assets
Other receivables
Cash & cash equivalents
Total assets
Liabilities
Insurance contract liability
provisions
Unit linked liabilities
Other provisions
Financial liabilities
Investment contracts
Borrowings
Currency forwards
Deferred tax liabilities
Reinsurance payables
Payables related to direct
insurance contracts
Deferred income
Income tax liabilities
Other payables
Net asset value attributable
to unit holders
Total liabilities

Note (a)
£’ m

Note (b)
£’ m

44.5

DAC /
DIR

ADJUSTMENTS
Unit
Linked
Assets

Note (c)
£’ m

Note (d)
£’ m

IFRS
Unit
Trusts
Note (e)
£’ m

Other –
Other –
Equity No Equity
Impact
Impact
Note (f)
£’ m

249.9

94.0
7.1

249.9
0.5

(0.2)
1.7

45.4

-

129.8

57.6

5,582.1
598.7

-

305.3
0.2

7,456.2

21.0

70.5

21.0

364.9
6.9
54.9
129.8

7.3

55.8

5,637.9
656.3
76.1

(7,456.2)

70.3
8.5
7.8
52.3
159.8
7,913.6

0.5

124.2
7,456.2
17.7

227.1
(7,456.2)

22.4
4.7
11.3

7,223.8
3.2

11.2
5.1
45.8

295.3

37.3
811.3

0.3
2.2

8.5

58.3

1.5

(76.1)

70.3
8.5
7.8
89.9
897.2

28.3

8,306.0

351.3
17.7
(31.6)
66.9

6.6
21.7

12.3

-

28.3

0.1

298.7
(3.4)

9.0

Net assets

215.0

Shareholders’ equity
Share capital
Share premium
Other reserves
Retained earnings

65.9
15.9
(8.4)
141.6

2.6

(3.4)

(0.5)

Total shareholders’ equity

215.0

2.6

(3.4)

(0.5)

* Reanalysed under IFRS format
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(0.5)

58.3
-

(7.0)

58.2
(7.0)
8.5

28.3

8,083.8

-

222.2
65.9
15.9
(8.4)
148.8

8.5
-

7,192.2
22.4
6.6
124.8
11.3
11.2
231.8
5.1
51.2

58.2
2.6

381.4
0.2
-

231.8

(2.1)

£’ m
294.4

49.5

7,698.6

Note (g)
£’ m

8.5

-

222.2
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity Year Ended 31 December 2004
UK GAAP

IFRS

£’ Million

£’ Million

179.6

181.6

Profit for the financial period

36.8

39.7

Total recognised income for the financial period

36.8

39.7

(12.3)

(11.8)

8.0
3.8
(1.4)
0.5

8.0
3.8
(1.4)
2.3

Net increase to shareholders’ funds

35.4

40.6

Closing equity shareholders’ funds

215.0

222.2

Opening equity shareholders’ funds

Dividends
Issue of share capital
Scrip dividend
Exercise of share options
Consideration paid for own shares
P & L reserve credit in respect of share option charges
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Consolidated Balance Sheet at 1 January 2004
UK GAAP*
Investment
Contracts

Assets

Note (a)
£’ m

Intangible assets
Deferred acquisition costs
Acquired value of in-force
business
Property & equipment
Deferred tax assets
Investment property
Investments
Equities
Fixed income securities
Investment in Collective
Investment Schemes
Currency forwards
Assets held to cover linked
liabilities
Reinsurers’ share of insurance
provisions
Insurance contract receivables
Income tax assets
Other receivables
Cash & cash equivalents
Total assets
Liabilities
Insurance contract liability
provisions
Unit linked liabilities
Other provisions
Financial liabilities
Investment contracts
Borrowings
Currency forwards
Deferred tax liabilities
Reinsurance payables
Payables related to direct
insurance contracts
Deferred income
Income tax liabilities
Other payables
Net asset value attributable to
unit holders
Total liabilities

Note (b)
£’ m

53.5

DAC /
DIR

ADJUSTMENTS
Unit
Linked
Assets

Note (c)
£’ m

Note (d)
£’ m

IFRS
Unit
Trusts
Note (e)
£’ m

Other –
Other –
Equity No Equity
Impact
Impact
Note (f)
£’ m

222.6

222.6
44.5
4,581.5
489.3

-

235.8
8.6

53.6
14.8
11.6

-

349.5
7.1
45.1
-

39.9

4,653.0
542.1
25.4

267.1

21.5
861.4

0.2
2.1

2.3

42.2

0.6

(25.4)

79.1
4.5
5.9
73.4
956.2

21.8

6,985.7

341.3
1.3

5,973.4
4.1

261.2
8.6
-

208.0
(6,195.8)

9.4
5.1
47.2

(11.4)
59.3

0.7
3.5

21.8

9.5

0.1

(6.9)

42.1
(10.3)

282.9

10.3

(15.8)

Net assets

179.6

Shareholders’ equity
Share capital
Share premium
Other reserves
Retained earnings

64.8
5.1
(7.7)
117.4

10.3

(15.8)

Total shareholders’ equity

179.6

10.3

(15.8)

* Reanalysed under IFRS format
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2.3

42.2

-

-

42.1
(6.9)
7.5

21.8

6,804.1

-

181.6
64.8
5.1
(7.7)
119.4

7.5
-

-

5,962.0
53.6
0.7
103.5
11.6
9.4
223.6
5.1
49.9

223.6

6,472.1

73.4

21.8

(6,195.8)

79.1
4.5
5.9
51.7
118.1

133.3
6,195.8
1.3

21.8

0.6

31.6
52.8

6,195.8

£’ m
276.1

51.6
105.1
7.1
-

6,651.7

Note (g)
£’ m

7.5

-

181.6
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(a) UK GAAP Mapping to IFRS Format
The UK GAAP balance sheet has been presented in a format consistent with International Financial Reporting
Standards, IFRS. No changes, other than the reanalysis under IFRS format, have been made to the numbers previously
reported for UK GAAP.
(b) Accounting for Investment Contracts
Under UK GAAP all long-term contracts written by an insurance company are accounted for on a similar basis. Under
IFRS 4 (Insurance Contracts) products are classified for accounting purposes between insurance and investment contracts,
depending on the level of insurance risk assumed, and the liabilities for insurance and investment contracts are disclosed
separately within the balance sheet. Amounts receivable under investment contracts are no longer shown as premiums in
the income statement but are treated as deposits and added to investment contract liabilities. Similarly amounts payable
under investment contracts are not recorded as claims in the income statement but as deductions from investment
contract liabilities. None of these reclassification adjustments has any impact on profit after tax or shareholders’ equity.
In addition, however, under UK GAAP the Group held certain reserves on products that are now classified as investment
contracts.These reserves are released under IFRS.The impact is to decrease profit after tax by £7.7 million for the year
ended 31 December 2004, with a £2.6 million increase in shareholders’ equity (£10.3 million at 1 January 2004).
(c) Deferred Acquisition Costs and Deferred Income (DAC/DIR)
Revenue and expense for investment contracts are recognised in accordance with IAS 18 (Revenue). Under IAS 18,
revenue arising from investment contracts must be recognised over the life of the contract and an explicit deferred
income liability is recognised for any front end fees which relate to services to be provided in future periods. Under
UK GAAP no such liability is recognised and front end fees are recognised when received. The recognition of deferred
income (net of the associated deferred tax asset) decreases shareholders’ equity by £186.4m at 31 December 2004
(£179.1 million at 1 January 2004) and decreases profit after tax by £7.3 million for the year ended 31 December 2004.
In addition under IAS 18 (Revenue) only directly attributable incremental acquisition costs are deferred. However
the introduction of IFRS significantly extends the range of investment contracts where costs may be deferred.This
deferral of additional acquisition costs (net of the associated deferred tax liability) has increased shareholders’ equity
by £183.0 million at 31 December 2004 (£163.3 million at 1 January 2004) and increased profit after tax by £19.7
million for the year ended 31 December 2004.
Consequently, the aggregate deferred income and deferred acquisition cost adjustments have decreased shareholders’
equity by £3.4 million as at 31 December 2004 (£15.8 million at 1 January 2004), and increased profit after tax by
£12.4 million for the year ended 31 December 2004.
(d) Unit Linked Asset Analysis and Valuation
There are a number of adjustments associated with the presentation, valuation and taxation of unit linked business:

(i)

Under UK GAAP assets held to cover unit linked liabilities are disclosed as a single line item, whereas
under IFRS they are disclosed under the relevant investment and other balance sheet categories.This
reclassification has no impact on profit after tax or shareholders’ equity.

(ii)

Under IFRS the Group’s investments are classified as fair value through profit or loss and IAS 39 (Financial
Instruments: Recognition and Measurement) requires that the fair value for listed investment be determined at a
bid value, rather than at mid value as under UK GAAP.
This revaluation from mid to bid for the assets held within the unit linked funds is offset by a change in
investment contract liability benefits and thus has no impact on profit after tax or shareholders’ equity.
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NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS
continued

(iii) Under IFRS the Group is required to account for the movement in the deferred tax on unrealised capital
gains provided within the unit linked funds as a tax charge (or credit) rather than being offset against the
unrealised capital gains within investment return. Adjustment has therefore been made to gross up the
£17.8 million movement in deferred tax for the year ended 31 December 2004.This has increased profit
before tax by £17.8 million, but profit after tax and shareholder’s equity are unaffected.
(iv)

Under UK GAAP Group discounted the deferred tax on unrealised capital gains provided within the unitlinked funds to reflect the expected time period over which the gains are expected to be realised.While
this discounting is required in determining the unit linked liability, IFRS does not permit the discounting
of deferred tax in the computation of unit linked assets (resulting in an asset liability mismatch).
Additional adjustments have therefore been made to account for the unprovided tax liability within the
unit linked assets.This has reduced profit after tax by £0.5 million for the year ended 31 December 2004
and shareholders’ equity by £0.5 million at 31 December 2004 (£ nil at 1 January 2004). Any tax liability
will be settled by the unit linked funds rather than the Group.

(e) Consolidation of Unit Trusts
IFRS requires the consolidation of certain St. James’s Place Unit Trusts in which the Group, via its unit linked funds,
owns more than half of the units. These did not previously require consolidation under UK GAAP, but a different
definition of the circumstances in which an entity is deemed to be under the control of an investor applies under
IFRS.The consolidation of these unit trusts has no impact on profit after tax or shareholders’ equity.
(f) Other Adjustments – Impact on Shareholders’ Equity
There are a number of other adjustments which affect profit after tax and shareholders’ equity, as set out below:

(i)

Dividend Recognition
Under previous UK GAAP dividends were recognised in the period to which they related regardless
of whether they had been declared or approved. Under IAS 10 (Events After the Balance Sheet Date)
dividends may only be recognised when they have been declared and approved.The IFRS dividend for
the year ended 31 December 2004 therefore represents the final 2003 dividend and the interim 2004
dividend.The reversal of the final 2004 dividend has resulted in an increase in shareholders’ equity of £7.0
million at 31 December 2004 (1 January 2004 £6.5 million).

(ii)

Share-Based Payment
Under UK GAAP the costs of awards to employees and members of the St. James’s Place Partnership
under share-based payment plans, other than Save As You Earn Plans, were recognised immediately if no
performance criteria applied.Where performance criteria applied, the cost was recognised over the
period to which the performance criteria related. In both circumstances the cost of awards was based
on the underlying share price at the date of grant of the awards, less any expected contribution.The cost
was based on a reasonable expectation of the extent to which performance criteria would be met and any
subsequent changes in that expectation were reflected in the income statement.
Under IFRS 2 (Share-based Payment) equity instruments granted after 7 November 2002 which remain
unvested at 1 January 2005 are measured at fair value.The fair value of the equity instrument is
determined at grant date and recognised over the vesting period, with a corresponding adjustment in
equity. In addition, a deferred tax asset, representing the expected future tax deduction in respect of
instruments granted and based on intrinsic value, is also recognised.
The effect of this change in accounting treatment is to decrease profit after tax by £1.1 million in the year
ended 31 December 2004. However due to adjustments in equity, shareholders’ equity increased by £1.7
million at 31 December 2004 (£1.0 million at 1 January 2004).
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NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS
continued

(iii) Revaluation of Owner Occupied Property
The Group has elected to value owner occupied property at the date of transition to IFRS (1 January 2004)
and apply this fair value as the deemed cost at that date. Revaluation adjustments made in the year ended
31 December 2004 have therefore been reversed, decreasing profit after tax for the year by £0.2 million.
Similarly, shareholders’ equity has decreased by £0.2 million at 31 December 2004 (£ nil at 1 January 2004).
(g) Other Adjustments – Nil Impact on Shareholders’ Equity
IFRS also require a number of gross up adjustments and balance sheet reclassifications, none of which affect profit
after tax or shareholders’ equity. Further details are shown below:

(i)

Policyholder and Shareholder Tax
The Group discloses policyholders’ and shareholders’ tax separately within the income statement. For the
purposes of mapping the UK GAAP accounts under the IFRS format the tax on the long-term business
fund was treated as policyholder tax. Under IFRS, however, the Group is treating the tax paid by the
unit linked funds to relevant tax authorities as policyholder tax, with all other tax being treated as
shareholder tax.This has resulted in the reclassification of certain non unit linked tax items out of
policyholder tax into shareholder tax.The overall impact of the adjustment is to increase policyholder tax
by £12.6 million and decrease shareholder tax by £12.6 million in the year ended 31 December 2004.
There is no impact on the balance sheet as a result of these adjustments.

(ii)

Acquired value of in-force business
Under UK GAAP the acquired value of in-force business was disclosed net of tax. The asset has been
grossed up for deferred tax under IFRS, both increasing the acquired value of in-force business and the
deferred tax liability by £21.0 million at 31 December 2004 (£21.8 million at 1 January 2004). This
adjustment has also given rise to an increase of £0.8 million in the cost of amortisation and a similar
decrease in the tax expense in the income statement for the year ended 31 December 2004.

(iii) Income Expense Gross Up
Within the primary statements of the UK GAAP accounts the expenses of the unit trust business and
other operations were netted off against their respective income streams. These expenses, which totalled
£56.4 million in the year ended 31 December 2004, have been grossed up under IFRS.There is no balance
sheet impact as a result of this adjustment.
(iv)

Deferred Tax Gross Up
The £7.3 million deferred tax asset (£ nil at 1 January 2004) in respect of unrelieved expenses, which had
previously been netted off against deferred tax liability under UK GAAP, has been grossed up under IFRS
for presentational purposes.There is no impact on the income statement.

(v)

Reclassification Adjustment
Monies held for the longer term in unitised money market funds (£76.1 million at 31 December 2004,
£25.4 million at 1 January 2004) have been reclassified as investment in collective investment schemes.
This adjustment has no impact on the income statement.

(h) Cash Flow Statement
Under IFRS the Group’s consolidated cash flow statement includes all cash flows of the Group, including those
relating to the long-term fund. Under UK GAAP the cash flows of the long-term fund are explicitly excluded, except
to the extent that funds are transferred to or from the shareholder.
The inclusion of cash and cash equivalents held within the unit linked funds (as referred to in note 35 para (d)(i)) and
the unit trusts subject to consolidation (as disclosed within note 35 para (e)), offset by the reclassification of monies held
for the longer term in unitised money market funds (as set out in note 35 para (g)(v)), has increased the overall amount
disclosed under cash and cash equivalents by £737.4 million as at 31 December 2004 (£838.1 million at January 2004).
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF
ST. JAMES’S PLACE CAPITAL PLC

We have audited the parent company financial statements of St. James’s Place Capital plc on pages 106 to 109 for the
year ended 31 December 2005 which comprise the parent company Balance Sheet and the related notes.These parent
company financial statements have been prepared under the accounting policies set out therein.We have also audited
the information in the Directors’ Remuneration Report that is described as having been audited.
We have reported separately on the group financial statements of St. James’s Place Capital plc for the year ended 31
December 2005.
This report is made solely to the company’s members, as a body, in accordance with section 235 of the Companies Act
1985. Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the company’s members those matters we are
required to state to them in an auditor’s report and for no other purpose.To the fullest extent permitted by law, we
do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the company and the company’s members as a body, for
our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we have formed.
Respective responsibilities of directors and auditors
The directors’ responsibilities for preparing the Report and Accounts, the Directors’ Remuneration Report and the
parent company financial statements in accordance with applicable law and UK Accounting Standards (UK Generally
Accepted Accounting Practice) are set out in the Statement of Directors’ Responsibilities on page 34.
Our responsibility is to audit the parent company financial statements and the part of the Directors’ Remuneration
Report to be audited in accordance with relevant legal and regulatory requirements and International Standards on
Auditing (UK and Ireland).
We report to you our opinion as to whether the parent company financial statements give a true and fair view and
whether the parent company financial statements and the part of the Directors’ Remuneration Report to be audited
have been properly prepared in accordance with the Companies Act 1985.We also report to you if, in our opinion, the
Directors’ Report is not consistent with the parent company financial statements, if the company has not kept proper
records, if we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit, or if information
specified by law regarding directors’ remuneration and other transactions is not disclosed.
We read other information contained in the Report and Accounts and consider whether it is consistent with the
audited parent company financial statements.We consider the implications for our report if we become aware of any
apparent misstatements or material inconsistencies with the financial statements. Our responsibilities do not extend to
any other information.
Basis of audit opinion
We conducted our audit in accordance with International Accounting Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland) issued
by the Auditing Practices Board. An audit includes examination, on a test basis, of evidence relevant to the amounts
and disclosures in the financial statements and the part of the Directors’ Remuneration Report to be audited. It also
includes an assessment of the significant estimates and judgments made by the directors in the preparation of the
parent company financial statements, and of whether the accounting policies are appropriate to the company’s
circumstances, consistently applied and adequately disclosed.
We planned and performed our audit so as to obtain all the information and explanations which we considered
necessary in order to provide us with sufficient evidence to give reasonable assurance that the parent company
financial statements and the part of the Directors’ Remuneration Report to be audited are free from material
misstatement, whether caused by fraud or other irregularity or error. In forming our opinion, we also evaluated the
overall adequacy of the presentation of information in the parent company financial statements and the part of the
Directors’ Remuneration Report to be audited.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF
ST. JAMES’S PLACE CAPITAL PLC
continued

Opinion

In our opinion:
• the parent company financial statements give a true and fair view, in accordance with UK Generally Accepted
Accounting Practice, of the state of the parent company’s affairs as at 31 December 2005; and
• the parent company financial statements and the part of the Directors’ Remuneration Report to be audited have
been properly prepared in accordance with the Companies Act 1985.

KPMG Audit Plc

Chartered Accountants
Registered Auditor
London
27 February 2006
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BALANCE SHEET OF THE PARENT COMPANY AT 31 DECEMBER

2005

2004

Note

£’ Million

£’ Million

2

311.4
2.5
0.8

311.4
0.2

Total assets

314.7

311.6

Liabilities
Amounts owed to group undertakings
Other creditors

118.3
2.0

178.8
1.4

Total liabilities

120.3

180.2

Net assets

194.4

131.4

67.1
29.6
0.1
97.6

65.9
15.9
0.1
49.5

194.4

131.4

Assets
Investment in subsidiary undertakings
Income tax assets
Other receivables

Shareholders’ equity
Share capital
Share premium
Other reserves
Retained earnings

4
5
5
5

Total shareholders’ equity

The financial statements on pages 106 to 109 were approved by the Board of Directors on 27 February 2006 and signed
on its behalf by:

M Lund
Chief Executive

A Croft
Finance Director

The notes and information on pages 107 to 109 form part of these accounts.
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NOTES TO THE PARENT COMPANY ACCOUNTS

1.

ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Basis of preparation

St James’s Place Capital plc (the “Company”) is a limited liability company incorporated in England and Wales and
whose shares are publicly traded.The Company offers a range of insurance, investment and other wealth management
services through its subsidiaries, which are principally incorporated in the UK and Ireland.
The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with applicable accounting standards and under the
historical cost convention.The Company has elected to continue to prepare the parent financial statements in
accordance with UK Generally Accepted Accounting Practice. In publishing the parent company financial statements,
the Company has taken advantage of the exemption in Section 230 of the Companies Act 1985 not to present its
individual income statement and related notes that form part of these financial statements.
All accounting policies have been reviewed for appropriateness in accordance with Financial Reporting Standard
(FRS) 18 (Accounting Policies). In accordance with FRS 1 (Cash Flow Statements), the company is exempt from the
requirement to prepare a cash flow statement on the grounds that this is provided in its consolidated financial
statements, which are publicly available.
Accounting policy changes

Events after the Balance Sheet Date
FRS 21 (Events after the Balance Sheet Date) has been adopted for the year ended 31 December 2005.This is in
alignment with International Accounting Standard (IAS) 10 (Events after the Balance Sheet Date) that has been
adopted in the Group financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2005.The impact of this change in
accounting policy is that the proposed final dividend of £8.6 million for the year ending 31 December 2005 has not
been recognised in the accounts.The 2004 comparatives have been restated to show a reduction in other creditors of
£7.0 million and a corresponding increase in retained profits.
If FRS 21 had not been adopted in the accounts, retained profit for the year ending 31 December would have
decreased by £8.6 million.

Financial Instruments
FRS 25 (Financial Instruments: Disclosure and Presentation) and FRS 26 (Financial Instruments: Measurement) have
been adopted for the year ended 31 December 2005.These align the Company accounting with the requirements of
IAS 32 (Financial Instruments: Disclosure and Presentation) and IAS 39 (Financial Instruments: Recognition and
Measurement) that have been adopted in the Group consolidated financial statements.The adoption of these standards
has resulted in additional disclosure.
Significant accounting policies

(a)

Investment return
Investment return comprises dividends from subsidiaries, which are accounted for when received.

(b)

Taxation
Taxation is based on profits and income for the period as determined in accordance with the relevant tax
legislation, together with adjustments to provisions for prior periods.

(c)

Investment in Subsidiaries
Investment in subsidiaries are carried at cost.
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NOTES TO THE PARENT COMPANY ACCOUNTS
continued

(d)

Receivables
Other receivables are stated at amortised cost less impairment losses.

(e)

Other creditors and amounts owed to group undertakings
Other creditors and amounts owed to group undertakings are stated at amortised cost.

2. INVESTMENT IN SUBSIDIARY UNDERTAKINGS
Year Ended
31 December
2005

Year Ended
31 December
2004

£’ Million

£’ Million

311.4

311.4

-

-

311.4

311.4

At 1 January
Movement in the year
At 31 December

Principal Subsidiary Undertakings at 31 December 2005
Investment Holding

St. James’s Place Investments plc
St. James’s Place Wealth Management Group plc

Life Assurance

St. James’s Place UK plc
St. James’s Place International plc (incorporated in Ireland)

Unit Trust Management

St. James’s Place Unit Trust Group Limited

Financial Services

St. James’s Place Wealth Management plc

Management Services

St. James’s Place Management Services Limited

A full list of subsidiaries is available on request from the registered office and will be submitted with the Company’s
Annual Return.
The Company owns indirectly 100% of the voting ordinary equity share capital of the above-named subsidiaries.
All of these companies are registered in England and Wales and operate principally in the United Kingdom except
where otherwise stated.
Due to ongoing solvency requirements there are restrictions on the amount of distributable reserves within the life
assurance and unit trust operating companies of the Group which restricts their ability to transfer cash dividends to
the Company.
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NOTES TO THE PARENT COMPANY ACCOUNTS
continued

3. FINANCIAL RISK
As disclosed in note 26 to the consolidated financial statements, the Group adopts a prudent approach to the
management of financial risk, with a view to minimising where practicable its exposure to market, credit, liquidity
and interest rate risks. As a stand alone entity the Company would be subject to significant liquidity risk since its assets
primarily consist of investments in subsidiaries. However, since the Group is managed on a unified basis and is subject
to minimal liquidity risk, the Company may, as required, draw on liquid resources from elsewhere within the Group.
The Company is not subject to market, credit or interest rate risks.
The Company’s financial assets comprise outstanding amounts due in respect of the exercise of share options – these
amounts are not interest bearing.The Company’s financial liabilities comprise balances owed to other Group
companies – these balances are not interest bearing and are repayable on demand.
The carrying values of financial assets and liabilities approximate their fair value.

4. SHARE CAPITAL
Share capital disclosures are made in note 27 on page 86 of the consolidated financial statements.

5. RESERVES

At 1 January 2004
Profit for the year
Dividends
Issue of share capital
Scrip dividend
Exercise of options
Release of reserves on issue of shares
At 31 December 2004
Profit for the year
Dividends
Issue of share capital
Scrip dividend
Exercise of options
At 31 December 2005

Share
Premium

Profit and
Loss Reserve

Other
Reserves

Total

£’ Million

£’ Million

£’ Million

£’ Million

5.1

61.6
(0.3)
(11.8)

7.3
3.4
0.1
15.9

49.5

0.2

66.9
(0.3)
(11.8)

(0.1)

7.3
3.4
-

0.1

65.5

60.8
(12.7)

60.8
(12.7)

7.9
5.8
29.6

7.9
5.8
97.6

0.1

127.3

6. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
Disclosure in relation to related party transactions is set out in note 33 on page 94 of the consolidated financial
statements.

7. AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION
The total audit fee in respect of the Group is set out in note 5 on page 68 of the consolidated financial statements.
The audit fee charged to the Company for the year ended 31 December 2005 is £nil (2004: £nil).
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO ST. JAMES’S PLACE CAPITAL PLC ON THE
EUROPEAN EMBEDDED VALUE BASIS SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

We have audited the EEV basis supplementary information (“the supplementary information”) of St. James’s Place
Capital plc on pages 112 to 121 in respect of the year ended 31 December 2005.The supplementary information has
been prepared in accordance with the European Embedded Value Principles issued in May 2004 by the CFO Forum
as supplemented by the Additional Guidance on European Embedded Value Disclosures issued in October 2005
(together “the EEV Principles”) using the methodology and assumptions set out on pages 115 and 116.The
supplementary information should be read in conjunction with the group financial statements which are on
pages 53 to 102.
This report is made solely to the company in accordance with the terms of our engagement. Our audit work has been
undertaken so that we might state to the company those matters we have been engaged to state in this report and for
no other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other
than the company for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we have formed.
Respective responsibilities of directors and auditor
As described in the Statement of Directors’ Responsibilities on page 34, the directors’ responsibilities include
preparing the supplementary information on the EEV basis in accordance with the EEV Principles. Our
responsibilities, as independent auditor, in relation to the supplementary information are established in the United
Kingdom by the Auditing Practices Board, by our profession’s ethical guidance and terms of our engagement.
Under the terms of engagement we are required to report to the company our opinion as to whether the
supplementary information has been properly prepared in accordance with the EEV Principles using the methodology
and assumptions set out on pages 115 and 116.We also report if we have not received all the information and
explanations we require for this audit.
Basis of audit opinion
We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland) issued by the
Auditing Practices Board. An audit includes examination, on a test basis, of evidence relevant to the amounts and
disclosures in the supplementary information. It also includes an assessment of the significant estimates and
judgments made by the directors in the preparation of supplementary information, and of whether the accounting
policies applied in the preparation of the supplementary information are appropriate to the group’s circumstances,
consistently applied and adequately disclosed.
We planned and performed our audit so as to obtain all the information and explanations which we considered
necessary in order to provide us with sufficient evidence to give reasonable assurance that the supplementary
information is free from material misstatement, whether caused by fraud or other irregularity or error. In forming
our opinion, we also evaluated the overall adequacy of the presentation of the supplementary information.
Opinion
In our opinion, the EEV basis supplementary information for the year ended 31 December 2005 has been
properly prepared in accordance with the EEV Principles using the methodology and assumptions set out on pages
115 and 116.

KPMG Audit Plc
Chartered Accountants
Registerd Auditor
London
27 February 2006
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EUROPEAN EMBEDDED VALUE BASIS

The following supplementary information shows the result for the Group adopting a European Embedded Value (EEV)
basis for reporting the results of its wholly owned life and unit trust businesses.

CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT
Year Ended
31 December
2005

Year Ended
31 December
2004

£’ Million

£’ Million

Life business
Unit trust business
Other

92.3
30.6
(4.1)

57.3
30.9
(6.8)

IT systems development

118.8
(4.3)

81.4
(5.6)

Operating profit

114.5

75.8

Investment return variances
Economic assumption changes

86.1
3.3

26.5
0.6

Profit from core business

203.9

102.9

9.5

28.0

EEV profit on ordinary activities before tax

213.4

130.9

Taxation
Life business
Unit trust business
Other
LAHC

(42.7)
(15.8)
5.8
-

(19.1)
(12.0)
1.2
-

(52.7)

(29.9)

160.7

101.0

Profit from other business
Profit on sale of LAHC

EEV profit on ordinary activities after tax

The notes and information on pages 115 to 121 form part of this supplementary information.
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EUROPEAN EMBEDDED VALUE BASIS
continued

C ONSOLIDATED S TATEMENT

OF

C HANGES

IN

E QUITY
Year Ended
31 December
2005

Year Ended
31 December
2004

£’ Million

£’ Million

Opening equity shareholders’ funds on an EEV basis
Post-tax profit for the year
Dividends
Issue of share capital
Consideration paid for own shares
P&L reserve credit in respect of share option charges

663.4
160.7
(12.7)
14.9
(0.5)
3.0

561.5
101.0
(11.8)
11.8
(1.4)
2.3

Closing equity shareholders’ funds on an EEV basis

828.8

663.4

The notes and information on pages 115 to 121 form part of this supplementary information.
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EUROPEAN EMBEDDED VALUE BASIS
continued

C ONSOLIDATED B ALANCE S HEET
Year Ended
31 December
2005

Year Ended
31 December
2004

£’ Million

£’ Million

325.0

294.4

460.9
140.7

377.2
113.5

926.6
5.9
70.5
319.4
8,473.6
77.9
15.1
21.0
97.1
1,337.7

785.1
6.9
54.9
129.8
6,675.8
70.3
8.5
7.8
89.9
897.2

11,344.8

8,726.2

430.6
9.6
9,431.6
192.5
8.9
19.5
249.7
9.9
71.4
92.3

351.3
17.7
7,221.2
103.8
11.3
11.2
231.8
5.1
51.2
58.2

10,516.0

8,062.8

Net assets

828.8

663.4

Shareholders’ equity
Share capital
Share premium
Other reserves

67.1
29.6
732.1

65.9
15.9
581.6

Total shareholders’ equity

828.8

663.4

Pence

Pence

185.2

151.0

Assets
Intangible assets
Deferred acquisition costs
Value of long-term business in-force
- long-term insurance
- unit trusts
Property & equipment
Deferred tax assets
Investment property
Investments
Reinsurance share of insurance provisions
Insurance contract receivables
Income tax assets
Other receivables
Cash & cash equivalents
Total assets
Liabilities
Insurance contract liability provisions
Other provisions
Financial liabilities
Deferred tax liabilities
Reinsurance payables
Payables related to direct insurance contracts
Deferred income
Income tax liabilities
Other payables
Net asset value attributable to unit holders
Total liabilities

Net assets per share

The supplementary information on pages 112 to 121 was approved by the Board of Directors on 27 February 2006
and signed on its behalf by:

M Lund
Chief Executive

A Croft
Finance Director

The notes and information on pages 115 to 121 form part of this supplementary information.
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NOTES TO THE EUROPEAN EMBEDDED VALUE BASIS

I.

B ASIS

OF

P REPARATION

The supplementary information on pages 112 to 121 shows the Group’s results as measured on a European
Embedded Value (EEV) basis.This includes the results of the life, pension and investment business, including unit
trust business, undertaken by the Group on a basis determined in accordance with the EEV Principles issued in May
2004 by the Chief Financial Officers Forum, a group of chief financial officers from 19 major European insurers.The
treatment of all other transactions and balances is unchanged from the primary financial statements on an IFRS basis.
The objectives of the EEV basis is to provide shareholders with more realistic information on the financial position
and performance of the Group than that provided by the IFRS basis.
Under the EEV methodology, profit is recognised as it is earned over the life of the products within the covered
business.The embedded value of the covered business is the sum of the shareholders’ net worth in respect of the
covered business and the present value of this projected profit stream.
The Group has replaced the Achieved Profits basis previously used in its supplementary financial statements with the
EEV basis. A restatement of the results for the year ended 31 December 2004 was issued on 8 December 2005 and
these results have been included as the prior year comparatives in this supplementary information. A copy of the
restatement document can be obtained from the Group’s website, www.sjpc.co.uk from 2005 Press Releases under
Company Announcements.

II. M ETHODOLOGY

AND

A SSUMPTIONS

(a) Covered business
The covered business is the life, pension and investment business, including unit trust business, undertaken by the Group.
(b) Allowance for risk
The allowance for risk in the shareholder cash flows is a key feature of the EEV Principles. The EEV Principles set
out three main areas of allowance for risk in the embedded value:
• The risk discount rate
• The allowance for the cost of financial options and guarantees
• The cost of holding both prudential reserves and any additional capital required
The reported EEV allows for risk via a risk discount rate based on a bottom-up market-consistent approach, plus
an appropriate additional margin for non-market risk.The Group does not offer products that carry any significant
financial guarantees or options.
(c) Deriving the risk discount rate
A market-consistent embedded value for each product class has been calculated.
In principle, each cash flow is valued using the discount rate applied to such a cash flow in the capital markets.
However in practice, where cash flows are either independent or move linearly with market movement, it is possible
to apply a simplified method known as the “certainty equivalent” approach. Under this approach all assets are assumed
to earn the risk free rate and are discounted using that risk free rate. A market-consistent cost of holding the required
capital has also been calculated. As part of this approach, an appropriate adjustment has been made to reflect the fact
that the value of tax relief on expenses does not move linearly with market movements. Finally, an additional
allowance for non-market risk has been made by increasing the discount rate by 0.8%.
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NOTES TO THE EUROPEAN EMBEDDED VALUE BASIS
continued

II. M ETHODOLOGY

AND

A SSUMPTIONS ( CONTINUED )

For presentational purposes, a risk discount rate has then been calculated which under the EEV basis gives the same
value determined above.This provides an average risk discount rate for the EEV. This average risk discount rate has
also been used to calculate the published value of new business.
(d) Non-market risk
Best estimate assumptions have been established based on available information and when used within the market
consistent calculations provide the primary evaluation of the impact of non-market risk. However, some non-market
operational risks are not symmetric, with adverse experience having a higher impact on the EEV than favourable
experience. Allowance has been made for this by increasing the risk discount rate by 0.8%.
(e) Cost of required capital
In light of the results of internal analysis, the Directors consider that the minimum regulatory capital provides
adequate capital cover for the risks inherent in the covered business.The required capital for the EEV calculations has
therefore been set to the minimum required capital.
The EEV includes a reduction for the cost of holding the required capital. No allowance has been made for any potential
adjustment that the investors may apply because they do not have direct control over their capital. Any such adjustment
would be subjective, as different investors will have different views of what, if any, adjustment should be made.
(f) New business
The new business contribution arising from reported new business premiums has been calculated using the same
assumptions as used in the EEV at the end of the financial year.The value of contractual incremental premiums to
existing business is treated as new business in the year of the increment, rather than at the outset of the policy. This
approach better reflects the way the Group manages its business.
The value of new business has been established at the end of the reporting period and has been calculated using actual
acquisition costs.
(g) Expenses
The expense assumptions include allowance for both the costs charged by the relevant third party administrators for
acquisition and maintenance, and the corporate costs incurred in respect of covered business.
The corporate costs have been apportioned so that the total maintenance costs represent the anticipated ongoing
expenses, including systems development costs, which are expected to arise in future years in meeting the policy
servicing requirements of the in-force business.
(h) Taxation
The EEV includes the present value of tax relief on life assurance expenses calculated on a market-consistent basis.
This calculation takes into account all expense and income amounts projected for the in-force business (including
carried forward unutilised expenses). In determining the market-consistent value an appropriate allowance is made to
reflect the fact that the value of tax relief on expenses does not move linearly with market movements.The impact of
this is assessed using a stochastic simulation model that is regularly calibrated to market conditions.
When calculating the value of new business, priority is given to relieving the expenses relating to that business.
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NOTES TO THE EUROPEAN EMBEDDED VALUE BASIS
continued

III. A SSUMPTIONS
(a) Economic Assumptions
The principal economic assumptions used within the cash flows at 31 December 2005 are set out below:

Risk discount rate (net of tax)
Future investment returns:
- Gilts
- Equities
- Unit linked funds
- Capital growth
- Dividend income
- Total
Expense inflation
Indexation of capital gains

Year Ended
31 December
2005

Year Ended
31 December
2004 Restated

7.3%

7.7%

4.3%
7.3%

4.7%
7.7%

3.6%
3.0%
6.6%
4.3%
2.0%

4.2%
2.8%
7.0%
4.4%
2.1%

The assumed future pre-tax returns on fixed interest securities are set by reference to the yield on 10 year gilts. The
other investment returns are set by reference to this assumption.
The expense inflation and indexation of capital gains assumptions are based on the rate of inflation implicit in the
valuation of 10 year index-linked gilts (2.8% at 31 December 2005).This rate is increased by 1.5%, to reflect higher
increases in earnings, to derive the expense inflation assumption.The rate is reduced by 10% to derive the indexation
of capital gains for the proportion of the fund invested in equities.
(b) Experience Assumptions
The principal experience assumptions have been set on a best estimate basis.They are reviewed on a regular basis.
The persistency assumptions are derived from the Group’s own experience, or where insufficient data exists, from
external industry experience.
Maintenance expenses have been set in line with the costs charged by the Group’s third party administrators, together
with an allowance for the Group’s own maintenance costs.
Mortality and morbidity assumptions have been set by reference to the Group’s own experience, published industry
data and the rates set by the Group’s reassurers.
(c) Other Points
Profit from existing business comprises the expected return on the value of in-force business at the start of the year
plus the impact of any changes in the assumptions regarding future operating experience, changes in reserving basis
(other than economic assumption changes) and profits and losses caused by differences between the actual experience
for the period and the assumptions used to calculate the embedded value at the end of the period.
Future taxation has been determined assuming a continuation of the current tax legislation.The EEV result has
been calculated on an after-tax basis and has been grossed up to a pre-tax level for presentation in the profit and
loss account.The corporation tax rate used for this grossing up is 28% for UK life and pensions business, 12.5% for
Irish life and pensions business and 30% for unit trust business.
A provision of £7.0 million before tax (31 December 2004: £7.0 million) has been included within the cash flows to
provide for adverse morbidity experience on critical illness plans.
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NOTES TO THE EUROPEAN EMBEDDED VALUE BASIS
continued

IV. C OMPONENTS

OF

EEV P ROFIT

(a) Life Business
Year Ended
31 December
2005

Year Ended
31 December
2004 Restated

Note

£’ Million

£’ Million

1

48.4

29.9

41.1
1.7
(2.5)
3.6

36.0
(11.2)
(0.5)
3.1

Operating profit before tax

92.3

57.3

Investment return variances
Economic assumption changes

63.6
3.8

17.2
0.9

Profit before tax

159.7

75.4

Attributed tax

(42.7)

(19.1)

Profit after tax

117.0

56.3

Year Ended
31 December
2005

Year Ended
31 December
2004 Restated

Note

£’ Million

£’ Million

1

18.8

15.9

11.2
0.6
-

9.8
5.2
-

Operating profit before tax

30.6

30.9

Investment return variances
Economic assumption changes

22.5
(0.5)

9.3
(0.3)

Profit before tax

52.6

39.9

(15.8)

(12.0)

36.8

27.9

New business contribution
Profit from existing business
Unwind of discount rate
Experience variances
Operating assumption changes
Investment income

Note 1: New business contribution after tax is £35.3 million (December 2004: £22.3 million)

(b) Unit Trust Business

New business contribution
Profit from existing business
Unwind of discount rate
Experience variances
Operating assumption changes

Attributed tax
Profit after tax
Note 1: New business contribution after tax is £13.2 million (December 2004: £11.1 million)
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NOTES TO THE EUROPEAN EMBEDDED VALUE BASIS
continued

(c) Combined Life and Unit Trust Business

New business contribution
Profit from existing business:
Unwind of discount rate
Experience variances
Operating assumption changes
Investment income

Year Ended
31 December
2005

Year Ended
31 December
2004 Restated

Note

£’ Million

£’ Million

1

67.2

45.8

52.3
2.3
(2.5)
3.6

45.8
(6.0)
(0.5)
3.1

2

Operating profit before tax

122.9

88.2

86.1
3.3

26.5
0.6

Profit before tax

212.3

115.3

Attributed tax

(58.5)

(31.1)

Profit after tax

153.8

84.2

Investment return variances
Economic assumption changes

Note 1: New business contribution after tax is £48.5 million (December 2004: £22.3 million).
Note 2: The operating assumption changes in 2005 include changes to mortality, morbidity and expense assumptions.

(d) Detailed Analysis
In order to better explain the movement in capital flows, the components of the EEV profit for the year ended
31 December 2005 are shown separately between the movement in IFRS net assets and the present value of the
in-force business (PVIF) in the table below. All figures are shown net of tax.

New business contribution
Profit from existing business
Unwind of discount rate
Experience variances
Operating assumption changes
Investment income
Investment return variances
Economic assumption changes
Profit on sale of LAHC
Miscellaneous
Profit after tax

119

Movement
in IFRS
Net Assets

Movement
in PVIF

Movement
in EEV

£’ Million

£’ Million

£’ Million

(43.4)
60.4
18.6
(13.5)
2.9
4.9
9.5
8.2

91.9
(60.4)
38.0
(17.2)
11.6
57.7
2.4
(10.9)

47.6

113.1

48.5
38.0
1.4
(1.9)
2.9
62.6
2.4
9.5
(2.7)
160.7
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NOTES TO THE EUROPEAN EMBEDDED VALUE BASIS
continued

The main component of the experience variances is the use of brought-forward realised tax losses.This has increased
the IFRS net assets and reduced the value of the tax assets in the PVIF.
The main components of the operating assumption changes are the increases in insurance contract liability provisions
due to changes in the mortality, morbidity and expense assumptions.These were allowed for in the 2004 EEV PVIF
and have resulted in a transfer from PVIF to net assets this year.

V. E UROPEAN E MBEDDED VALUE S ENSITIVITIES
The table below shows the estimated impact on the combined life and unit trust reported value of new business and
EEV to changes in various EEV calculated assumptions. In each case, only the indicated item is varied relative to the
restated values.
Change in new business contribution

Pre-tax

Post-tax

Change in
European
Emedded
Value
Post-tax

£’ Million

£’ Million

£’ Million

67.2

48.5

828.8

13.0

9.4

51.2

100bp reduction in risk free rates, with
corresponding change in fixed interest asset values

3.0

2.1

2.6

10% reduction in withdrawal rates

8.4

6.1

35.0

10.0

7.3

12.1

n/a

n/a

(53.6)

Note
Value at 31 December 2005
100bp reduction in risk discount rate

1

10% reduction in expenses
10% reduction in market value of equity assets
5% reduction in mortality and morbidity

2

0.6

0.4

3.5

100bp increase in equity expected returns

3

-

-

-

Note 1: Although not directly relevant under a market-consistent valuation where the risk discount rate is a derived disclosure only, this sensitivity
shows the level of adjustment which would be required to reflect differing investor views of risk.
Note 2: Assumes the benefit of lower experience is passed on to clients and reassurers at the earliest opportunity.
Note 3: As a market-consistent approach is used, equity expected returns only affect the derived discount rates and not the embedded value or
contribution to profit from new business.
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NOTES TO THE EUROPEAN EMBEDDED VALUE BASIS
continued

VI. R ECONCILIATION

OF

IFRS

AND

EEV P ROFIT B EFORE TAX

AND

N ET A SSETS
Year Ended
31 December
2005

Year Ended
31 December
2004

£’ Million

£’ Million

IFRS profit before tax
Movement in life value of in-force
Movement in unit trust value of in-force

127.1
46.5
39.8

56.8
46.0
28.1

Total EEV profit before tax

213.4

130.9

Year Ended
31 December
2005

Year Ended
31 December
2004

£’ Million

£’ Million

IFRS net assets
Less: acquired value of in-force
Add: deferred tax on acquired value of in-force
Add: life value of in-force
Add: unit trust value of in-force

274.5
(67.4)
20.1
460.9
140.7

222.2
(70.5)
21.0
377.2
113.5

EEV net assets

828.8

663.4

VII. R ECONCILIATION OF L IFE C OMPANY F REE A SSETS TO C ONSOLIDATED G ROUP E QUITY
AND A NALYSIS OF M OVEMENT IN F REE A SSETS
Year Ended
31 December
2005

Year Ended
31 December
2004

£’ Million

£’ Million

Life company free assets
Required life company solvency capital
Other subsidiaries, consolidation and IFRS adjustments

65.0
32.0
177.5

43.2
30.0
149.0

IFRS net assets

274.5

222.2

Year Ended
31 December
2005
£’ Million

Life company free assets at 1 January
Investment in new business
Profit from existing business
Investment return
Movement in required solvency capital

43.2
(40.1)
61.0
2.9
(2.0)

Life company free assets at 31 December

65.0
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SHAREHOLDER
I N F O R M AT I O N
Analysis of Number of Shareholders
Analysis by Number
of Shares
1 – 999
1,000– 9,999
10,000 – 99,999
100,000 and above

Holders

% Shares held

%

2,784
3,192
552
170

42
48
8
2

1,152,915
9,258,609
15,366,982
421,652,617

0.5
2
3.5
94

6,698

100

447,431,123

100

Financial Calendar
Ex-dividend date for final dividend

8 March 2006

Calculation period for scrip final dividend

8 March 2006 to 14 March 2006

Record date for final dividend

10 March 2006

Latest date for receipt of scrip dividend mandates

26 April 2006

Annual General Meeting

9 May 2006

Announcement of first quarter new business

4 May 2006

Payment date for final dividend

17 May 2006

Announcement of Interim Results and second quarter new business

25 July 2006

Announcement of third quarter new business

31 October 2006

Scrip Dividend
If you would prefer to receive, subject to shareholder approval, new shares instead of cash dividends, please complete
a scrip dividend mandate which is available from the Registrars, Computershare Investor Services plc. Their contact
details are on page 123.
Share Dealing
A telephone share dealing service has been established with the Registrars, Computershare Investor Services plc,
which provides shareholders with a simple way of buying or selling St. James’s Place Capital plc shares on the London
Stock Exchange. If you are interested in this service telephone 0870 703 0084.
Electronic Communications
If you would like to have access to shareholder communications such as the Annual Report and the Notice of General
Meeting through the internet rather than receive them by post, please register at www.etreeuk.com.
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H OW T O C O N TAC T U S
A N D A DV I S E R S
HOW TO CONTACT US

ADVISERS

Registered Office
St. James’s Place House
Dollar Street
Cirencester
GL7 2AQ

B ANKERS

Tel: 01285 640302
Fax: 01285 640436
www.sjpc.co.uk
www.sjp.co.uk
Chairman
Mike Wilson
email: mike.wilson@sjp.co.uk
Chief Executive
Mark Lund
email: mark.lund@sjp.co.uk

National Westminster Bank plc
32 Market Place
Cirencester
GL7 2NU

B ROKERS
JPMorgan Cazenove & Co Limited
20 Moorgate
London EC2R 6DA
Dresdner Kleinwort Wasserstein
20 Fenchurch Street
London EC3P 3DB

AUDITORS

Finance Director
Andrew Croft
email: andrew.croft@sjp.co.uk

KPMG Audit Plc

Company Secretary
Hugh Gladman
email: hugh.gladman@sjp.co.uk

R EGISTRARS

Customer Service
Stephen Williams
Tel: 01285 878034
Fax: 01285 656129
email: stephen.williams@sjp.co.uk

1 Canada Square
London E14 5AG
AND

T RANSFER O FFICE

Computershare Investor Services plc
P.O.Box 82
The Pavilions
Bridgwater Road
Bristol BS99 7NH
email: web-queries@computershare.co.uk
Tel: 0870 702 0197
www.computershare.com

Analyst Enquiries
Andrew Croft
Tel: 01285 878079
Fax: 01285 657208
email: andrew.croft@sjp.co.uk
Media Enquiries
Brunswick Group LLP
Nitya Bolam
Tel: 020 7404 5959
Fax: 020 7831 2823
email: sjpc@brunswickgroup.com
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S T. J A M E S ’ S P L A C E
PA RT N E R S H I P L O C AT I O N S
Belfast
St. James’s Place House
14 Cromac Place
Belfast
BT7 2JA

Glasgow
Minerva House
131 - 133 Minerva Street
Glasgow
G3 8LE

Gerry Quinn
Tel: 028 9072 6500

Hugh B Morton
Tel: 0141 304 1700

Bristol
Beech House
Brotherswood Court
Great Park Road
Bradley Stoke
Bristol
BS32 4QW

Hamilton Place
11 Hamilton Place
Mayfair
London
W1J 7DA
Simon Monks
Tel: 020 7495 1771

George Hills
Tel: 01454 618700

Kingsway
3rd Floor
York House
23 Kingsway
London
WC2B 6UJ

City
St. James’s Place House
3 Moorgate Place
London
EC2R 6EA

Charles Bird
Tel: 020 7333 1900

Roger McKibbin
Tel: 020 7638 2400

Leeds
Chancellor Court
The Calls
Leeds
LS2 7EH

Edinburgh
Melville House
18 – 22 Melville Street
Edinburgh
EH3 7NS

Mark Clifford
Tel: 0113 244 4054

Hugh B Morton
Tel: 0141 304 1700

Liverpool
Martins Building
Water Street
Liverpool
L2 3SX

Elstree
Allum Gate House
Theobald Street
Borehamwood
Herts
WD6 4RS

Terry Hurst
Tel: 0151 224 8700

Jaimin Mehta
Tel: 020 8207 4000
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ST. JAMES’S PLACE PARTNERSHIP LOCATIONS
continued

Manchester
7th Floor
Sunlight House
Little Quay Street
Manchester
M3 3LF

Solent
St. James’s Place House
1480 Parkway
Solent Business Park
Whitley
Fareham
Hants
PO15 7AF

Matt Quinn
Tel: 0161 834 9480

Peter Glew
Tel: 01635 582424

Newbury
Montague Court
London Road
Newbury
Berks
RG14 1JL

Solihull
St. James’s Place House
Central Boulevard
Blythe Valley Business Park
Shirley
Solihull

Peter Glew
Tel: 01635 582424

Peter Edwards
Tel: 0121 733 6733

Newcastle
St. James’s Place House
22 – 28 Dean Street
Newcastle upon Tyne
NE1 1PG

Westerham
1st Floor
The Crown
London Road
Westerham
Kent
TN16 1DJ

Stephen Mills
Tel: 0191 201 0700
Nottingham
St. James’s Place House
Castle Quay
Castle Boulevard
Nottingham
NG7 1FW

Bob Harvey
Tel: 01959 561606
Witham
16 Newland Street
Witham
Essex
CM8 2AQ

Jeremy Clay
Tel: 0115 924 2899

Simon Coll
Tel: 01376 501947
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